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® Our business depends on license agreements with third parties to permit us to use patented technologies. The loss of any of our rights under these agreements could
impair our ability to develop and market our products, if approved. ® If any of our pending patent applications do not issue, or are deemed invalid following
issuance, we may lose valuable intellectual property protection. ® We rely on trade secret protection and other unpatented proprietary rights for important proprietary
technologies, and any loss of such rights could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. ® We may incur substantial costs as a result of
litigation or other proceedings relating to patent and other intellectual property rightsRisks Related to Our Securities ® The market price of our common stock may
be significantly volatile. @ Our common stock may be delisted from The Nasdaq Capital Market if we fail to comply with continued listing standards. e Future sales
of our common stock in the public market could cause our stock price to fall. @ Our stockholders may experience significant dilution as a result of future equity
offerings or issuances and exercise of outstanding options and warrants. ® Our ability to use net operating losses to offset future taxable income are-is subject to
certain limitations. ® We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future. RISKS RELATED
TO OUR BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS We have a history of significant losses from operations and expect to continue to incur significant losses for the
foreseeable future, and we may never achieve or maintain profitability. Since our inception, our expenses have substantially exceeded our revenue, resulting in
continuing losses and an accumulated deficit of $ 388407 million at December 31, 2623-2024 . For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard2022- we
incurred net losses of $ 18. 6 million and $ 19. 5 mithenr-and-$-35-9-million, respectively. We currently have no product revenue and do not expect to generate any
product revenue for the foreseeable future. Because we are committed to continuing our product research, development, clinical trial and commercialization
programs, we will continue to incur significant operating losses unless and until we complete the development of IMNN- 001 and other new drug candidates and
these drug candidates have been clinically tested, approved by the FDA and successfully marketed. The amount of future losses is uncertain. Our ability to achieve
profitability, if ever, will depend on, among other things, the following, which we cannot guarantee: ;-us or our collaborators successfully developing drug
candidates, obtaining regulatory approvals to market and commercialize drug candidates, manufacturing any approved products on commercially reasonable terms,
establishing a sales and marketing organization or suitable third- party alternatives for any approved product, generating sufficient sales revenue from our drug
candidates, and raising sufficient funds to finance business activities. We might not be able to continue as a going concern, which could cause our stockholders to
lose most or all of their investment. Our audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 were prepared under the assumption that we would
continue as a going concern. However, we have concluded that there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern, therefore our independent
registered public accounting firm included a “ going concern ” explanatory paragraph in its report on our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
2024, indicating that, without additional sources of funding, our cash at December 31, 2623-2024 is not sufficient for us to operate as a going concern for a period of
at least one year from the date that the financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10- K are issued. Management’ s plans concerning these matters,
including our need to raise additional capital, are described in Note 2 of our financial statements included within this Annual Report on Form 10- K, however,
management cannot assure you that its plans will be successful. If we cannot continue as a viable entity, our stockholders would likely lose most or all of their
investment in us. We will need to raise additional capital to fund our planned future operations, and we may be unable to secure such capital without significant
dilutive financing transactions. If we are not able to raise additional capital, we may not be able to complete the development, testing and commercialization of our
drug candidates. We have not generated significant revenue and have incurred significant net losses in each year since our inception. For the year ended December
31,2023-2024 , we incurred a net loss of $ 49-18 . 5—6 mllllon We have mcurred approx1mately $ 3—88—407 mllllon ofcumulatlve net losses As of December 31,
2623-2024 , we had cash and cash equivalents ;she 5 P d P of $ 445 . 6-9 million.
We have substantial future capital requirements to continue our research and development aetlvmes and advance our drug candldates through various development
stages , including the Phase 3 registrational trial of IMNN- 001 in advanced ovarian cancer . We are unable to estimate the duration and completion costs of our
research and development projects or when, if ever, and to what extent we will receive cash inflows from the commercialization and sale of a product. Our inability
to complete any of our research and development activities, preclinical studies or clinical trials in a timely manner or our failure to enter into collaborative
agreements when appropriate could significantly increase our capital requirements and could adversely impact our liquidity. While our estimated future capital
requirements are uncertain and could increase or decrease as a result of many factors, including the extent to which we choose to advance our research, development
activities, preclinical studies and clinical trials, or if we are in a position to pursue manufacturing or commercialization activities, we will need significant additional
capital to develop our drug candidates through development and clinical trials, obtain regulatory approvals and manufacture and commercialize approved products, if
any. We do not know whether we will be able to access additional capital when needed or on terms favorable to us or our stockholders. Our inability to raise
additional capital, or to do so on terms reasonably acceptable to us, would jeopardize the future success of our business. If we do not obtain or maintain FDA and
foreign regulatory approvals for our drug candidates on a timely basis, or at all, or if the terms of any approval impose significant restrictions or limitations on use,
we will be unable to sell those products and our business, results of operations and financial condition will be negatively affected. To obtain regulatory approvals
from the FDA and foreign regulatory agencies, we must conduct clinical trials demonstrating that our drug candidates are safe and effective. We may need to amend
ongoing trials, or the FDA and / or foreign regulatory agencies may require us to perform additional trials beyond those we planned. The testing and approval
process requires substantial time, effort and resources, and generally takes a number of years to complete. The time to obtain approvals is also uncertain, and the
FDA and foreign regulatory agencies have substantial discretion, at any phase of development, to terminate clinical studies, require additional clinical studies or other
testing, delay or withhold approval, and mandate product withdrawals, including recalls. In addition, our drug candidates may have undesirable side effects or other
unexpected characteristics that could cause us or regulatory authorities to interrupt, delay or halt clinical trials and could result in a more restricted label or the delay
or denial of regulatory approval by regulatory authorities. Even if we receive regulatory approval of a product, the approval may limit the indicated uses for which
the drug may be marketed. The failure to obtain timely regulatory approval of drug candidates, the imposition of marketing limitations, or a product withdrawal
would negatively impact our business. Even if we receive approval, we will be subject to ongoing regulatory obligations and continued regulatory review, which
may result in significant additional expense and subject us to restrictions, withdrawal from the market, or penalties if we fail to comply with applicable regulatory
requirements or if we experience unanticipated problems with our drug candidates, when and if approved. Finally, even if we obtain FDA approval of any of our drug
candidates, we may never obtain approval or commercialize such products outside of the U. S., given that we may be subject to additional regulatory burdens in
other markets. This could limit our ability to realize their full market potential. Drug development is an inherently uncertain process with a high risk of failure at
every stage of development. Securing FDA or comparable foreign regulatory approval requires the submission of extensive preclinical and clinical data and
supporting information for each therapeutic indication to establish the drug candidate’ s safety and efficacy for its intended use. It takes years to complete the testing
of a new drug or biological product and development delays and / or failure can occur at any stage of testing. Any of our present and future clinical trials may be
delayed, halted, not authorized, or approval of any of our products may be delayed or may not be obtained due to any of the following: e factors related to the
ongoing effects of the COVID- 19 pandemic, including regulators or institutional review boards, or IRBs, or ethics committees may not authorize us or our
investigators to commence a clinical trial or conduct a clinical trial at a prospective trial site; ® any preclinical test or clinical trial may fail to produce safety and
efficacy results satisfactory to the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities; ® preclinical and clinical data can be interpreted in different ways, which could
delay, limit, or prevent marketing approval; ® negative or inconclusive results from a preclinical test or clinical trial or adverse events during a clinical trial could
cause a preclinical study or clinical trial to be repeated or a development program to be terminated, even if other studies relating to the development program are
ongoing or have been completed and were successful; ® the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities can place a clinical hold on a trial if, among other
reasons, it finds that subjects enrolled in the trial are or would be exposed to an unreasonable and significant risk of illness or injury; e the facilities that we utilize, or
the processes or facilities of third- party vendors, including without limitation the contract manufacturers who will be manufacturing drug substance and drug product
for us or any potential collaborators, may not satisfactorily complete inspections by the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities; and ® we may encounter
delays or rejections based on changes in FDA policies or the policies of comparable foreign regulatory authorities during the period in which we develop a drug
candidate, or the period required for review of any final marketing approval before we are able to market any drug candidate. In addition, information generated
during the clinical trial process is susceptible to varying interpretations that could delay, limit, or prevent marketing approval. Moreover, early positive preclinical or
clinical trial results may not be replicated in later clinical trials. As more drug candidates within a particular class of drugs proceed through clinical development to
regulatory review and approval, the amount and type of clinical data that may be required by regulatory authorities may increase or change. Failure to demonstrate




adequately the quality, safety, and efficacy of any of our drug candidates would delay or prevent marketing approval. We cannot assure you that if clinical trials are
completed, either we or our potential collaborators will submit applications for required authorizations to manufacture or market potential products or that any such
application will be reviewed and approved by appropriate regulatory authorities in a timely manner, if at all. New gene- based products for therapeutic applications
are subject to extensive regulation by the FDA and comparable agencies in other countries. The precise regulatory requirements with which we will have to comply,
now and in the future, are uncertain due to the novelty of the gene- based products we are developing. The regulatory approval process for novel drug candidates
such as ours can be significantly more expensive and take longer than for other, better - known or more extensively studied drug candidates. Limited data exist
regarding the safety and efficacy of DNA- based therapeutics compared with conventional therapeutics, and government regulation of DNA- based therapeutics is
evolving. Regulatory requirements governing gene and cell therapy products have changed frequently and may continue to change in the future. The FDA has
established the Office of Therapeutic Products within CBER, to consolidate the review of gene therapy and related products, and has established the Cellular, Tissue
and Gene Therapies Advisory Committee to advise CBER in its review. It is difficult to determine how long it will take or how much it will cost to obtain regulatory
approvals for our drug candidates in either the U. S. or the European Union or how long it will take to commercialize our drug candidates. Adverse events or the
perception of adverse events in the field of gene therapy generally, or with respect to our drug candidates specifically, may have a particularly negative impact on
public perception of gene therapy and result in greater governmental regulation, including future bans or stricter standards imposed on gene- based therapy clinical
trials, stricter labeling requirements and other regulatory delays in the testing or approval of our potential products. For example, if we were to engage an NIH-
funded institution to conduct a clinical trial involving recombinant or nucleic acid molecules, we may be subject to review by an IBC and, in some cases, the NIH.
Such review can delay the initiation of a clinical trial, even if the FDA has reviewed the trial design and details and approved its initiation. Conversely, the FDA can
put an IND application on a clinical hold even if the IBC or the NIH has provided a favorable review. Such reviews and any new guidelines may lengthen the
regulatory review process, require us to perform additional studies, increase our development costs, lead to changes in regulatory positions and interpretations, delay
or prevent approval and commercialization of our drug candidates or lead to significant post- approval limitations or restrictions. Any increased scrutiny could delay
or increase the costs of our product development efforts or clinical trials. Even if our products receive regulatory approval, they may still face future development
and regulatory difficulties. Government regulators may impose ongoing requirements for potentially costly post- approval studies. This governmental oversight may
be particularly strict with respect to gene- based therapies. If we encounter difficulties enrolling patients in our clinical trials, our clinical development activities
could be delayed or otherwise adversely affected. We have experienced and may experience difficulties in patient enrollment in our clinical trials for a variety of
reasons. The timely completion of clinical trials in accordance with their protocols depends, among other things, on our ability to enroll a sufficient number of
patients who remain in the trial until its conclusion. The enrollment of patients depends on many factors, including: e the patient eligibility and exclusion criteria
deﬁned in the protocol . the size of the patlent populatlon requlred for analy31s of the trial” s primary endpoints and the process for identifying patients +-e-delays-in
e o A v ; ® the willingness or availability of patients to participate in our trials; e the
pr0x1m1ty of patlents to trlal sues ° the design of the trial; ® our ability to recruit chmcal trial investigators with the appropriate competencies and experience; ®
clinicians’ and patients’ perceptions as to the potential advantages and risks of the drug candidate being studied in relation to other available therapies, including any
new products that may be approved for the indications we are investigating; ® the availability of competing commercially available therapies and other competing
drug candidates’ clinical trials; ® our ability to obtain and maintain patient informed consents; and e the risk that patients enrolled in clinical trials will drop out of
the trials before completion. Our inability to enroll a sufficient number of patients for our clinical trials could result in significant delays or may require us to abandon
one or more clinical trials altogether. Enrollment delays in our clinical trials may result in increased development costs for our drug candidates, delay or halt the
development of and approval processes for our drug candidates and jeopardize our ability to achieve our clinical development timeline and goals, including the dates
by which we will commence, complete and receive results from clinical trials. Enrollment delays may also delay or jeopardize our ability to commence sales and
generate revenues from our drug candidates. Any of the foregoing could cause the value of our company to decline and limit our ability to obtain additional
financing, if needed. We rely on third parties to conduct all of our clinical trials. If these third parties are unable to carry out their contractual duties in a manner that
is consistent with our expectations, comply with budgets and other financial obligations or meet expected deadlines, we may not receive certain development
milestone payments or be able to obtain regulatory approval for or commercialize our drug candidates in a timely or cost- effective manner. We do not independently
conduct clinical trials for our drug candidates. We rely, and expect to continue to rely, on third- party clinical investigators, CROs, clinical data management
organizations and consultants to design, conduct, supervise and monitor our clinical trials. Because we do not conduct our own clinical trials, we must rely on the
efforts of others and have reduced control over aspects of these activities, including the timing of such trials, the costs associated with such trials and the procedures
that are followed for such trials. We do not expect to significantly increase our personnel in the foreseeable future and may continue to rely on third parties to
conduct all of our future clinical trials. If we cannot contract with acceptable third parties on commercially reasonable terms or at all, if these third parties are unable
to carry out their contractual duties or obligations in a manner that is consistent with our expectations or meet expected deadlines, if they do not carry out the trials in
accordance with budgeted amounts, if the quality or accuracy of the clinical data they obtain is compromised due to their failure to adhere to our clinical protocols or
for other reasons, or if they fail to maintain compliance with applicable government regulations and standards, our clinical trials may be extended, delayed or
terminated or may become significantly more expensive, we may not receive development milestone payments when expected or at all, and we may not be able to
obtain regulatory approval for or successfully commercialize our drug candidates. Despite our reliance on third parties to conduct our clinical trials, we are ultimately
responsible for ensuring that each of our clinical trials is conducted in accordance with the general investigational plan and protocols for the trial. Moreover, the
FDA requires clinical trials to be conducted in accordance with good clinical practices for conducting, recording and reporting the results of clinical trials and that
the rights, integrity and confidentiality of clinical trial participants are protected. We also are required to register ongoing clinical trials and post the results of
completed clinical trials on a government- sponsored database, ClinicalTrials. gov, within certain timeframes. Failure to do so can result in fines, adverse publicity
and civil and criminal sanctions. Our reliance on third parties that we do not control does not relieve us of these responsibilities and requirements. If we or a third
party we rely on fails to meet these requirements, we may not be able to obtain, or may be delayed in obtaining, marketing authorizations for our drug candidates and
will not be able to, or may be delayed in our efforts to, successfully commercialize our drug candidates. This could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Because we rely on third- party manufacturing and supply partners, our supply of research and development,
preclinical and clinical development materials may become limited or interrupted or may not be of satisfactory quantity or quality. We rely on third- party supply and
manufacturing partners to supply the materials and components for, and manufacture, our research and development, preclinical and clinical trial drug supplies. We
do not own manufacturing facilities or supply sources for such components and materials. There can be no assurance that our supply of research and development,
preclinical and clinical development drugs and other materials will not be limited, interrupted, or restricted in certain geographic regions or will be of satisfactory
quality or will continue to be available at acceptable prices. Suppliers and manufacturers must meet applicable manufacturing requirements and undergo rigorous
facility and process validation tests required by FDA and foreign regulatory authorities in order to comply with regulatory standards, such as current cGMP. If we or
any of our third- party manufacturers or testing contractors fail to maintain regulatory compliance, this could cause the delay of clinical trials, regulatory
submissions, required approvals or commercialization of our drug candidates, cause us to incur higher costs and prevent us from commercializing our products
successfully. Furthermore, if our suppliers fail to meet contractual requirements, and we are unable to secure one or more replacement suppliers capable of
production at a substantially equivalent cost, our clinical trials may be delayed, or we could lose potential revenue. In the event that any of our suppliers or
manufacturers fails to comply with such requirements or to perform its obligations to us in relation to quality, timing or otherwise, or if our supply of components or
other materials becomes limited or interrupted for other reasons, we may be forced to manufacture the materials ourselves, for which we currently do not have the
capabilities or resources, or enter into an agreement with another third party, which we may not be able to do on reasonable terms, if at all. The regulatory authorities
also may, at any time following approval of a product for sale, inspect the manufacturing facilities of our third- party manufacturers. If any such inspection or audit
identifies a failure to comply with applicable regulations or if a violation of our product specifications or applicable regulations occurs independent of such an
inspection or audit, we or the relevant regulatory authority may require remedial measures that may be costly and / or time- consuming for us or our third- party
manufacturers to implement and that may include the temporary or permanent suspension of a clinical trial or commercial sales or the temporary or permanent
closure of a manufacturing facility. Any such remedial measures imposed upon third parties with whom we contract could materially harm our business. If we fail to
enter into and maintain successful strategic alliances for our drug candidates, we may have to reduce or delay our drug candidate development or increase our
expenditures. To the extent we are able to enter into strategic transactions, we will be exposed to risks related to those collaborations and alliances. An important
element of our strategy for developing, manufacturing and commercializing our drug candidates is entering into strategic alliances with pharmaceutical companies,
research institutions or other industry participants to advance our programs and enable us to maintain our financial and operational capacity. We face significant
competition in seeking appropriate alliances. We may not be able to negotiate alliances on acceptable terms, if at all. In addition, these alliances may be
unsuccessful. If we fail to create and maintain suitable alliances, we may have to limit the size or scope of, or delay, one or more of our drug development or research




programs. If we elect to fund drug development or research programs on our own, we will have to increase our expenditures and will need to obtain additional
funding, which may be unavailable or available only on unfavorable terms. We may not successfully engage in future strategic transactions, which could adversely
affect our ability to develop and commercialize drug candidates, impact our cash position, increase our expenses and present significant distractions to our
management. In the future, we may consider strategic alternatives intended to further the development of our business, which may include acquiring businesses,
technologies, or products, out- or in- licensing drug candidates or technologies or entering into a business combination with another company. Any strategic
transaction may require us to incur non- recurring or other charges, increase our near- and long- term expenditures and pose significant integration or implementation
challenges or disrupt our management or business. These transactions would entail numerous operational and financial risks, including exposure to unknown
liabilities, disruption of our business and diversion of our management’ s time and attention in order to manage a collaboration or develop acquired products, drug
candidates or technologies, incurrence of substantial debt or dilutive issuances of equity securities to pay transaction consideration or costs, higher than expected
collaboration, acquisition or integration costs, write- downs of assets or goodwill or impairment charges, increased amortization expenses, difficulty and cost in
facilitating the collaboration or combining the operations and personnel of any acquired business, impairment of relationships with key suppliers, manufacturers or
customers of any acquired business due to changes in management and ownership and the inability to retain key employees of any acquired business. Accordingly,
although there can be no assurance that we will undertake or successfully complete any transactions of the nature described above, any transactions that we do
complete may be subject to the foregoing or other risks and have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.
Conversely, any failure to enter any strategic transaction that would be beneficial to us could delay the development and potential commercialization of our drug
candidates and have a negative impact on the competitiveness of any drug candidate that reaches market. We have obtained Orphan Drug Designation for IMNN-
001 and may seek Orphan Drug Designation for other drug candidates, but we may be unsuccessful or may be unable to maintain the benefits associated with
Orphan Drug Designation, including the potential for market exclusivity. IMNN- 001 has been granted orphan drug designation for ovarian cancer in both the U. S.
and Europe. Regulatory authorities in some jurisdictions, including the U. S. and Europe, may designate drugs or biologics for relatively small patient populations as
orphan drugs. Under the Orphan Drug Act, the FDA may designate a drug or biologic as an orphan drug if the disease or condition for which the drug is intended
affects fewer than 200, 000 individuals in the U. S., or, if the drug is intended for a disease or condition affecting 200, 000 or more people in the U. S., there is no
reasonable expectation that the cost of developing and making available in the U. S. the drug or biologic for the disease or condition will be recovered from sales of
the drug in the U. S. Even though we have obtained Orphan Drug Designation for IMNN- 001 and may obtain such designation for other drug candidates in specific
indications, we may not be the first to obtain marketing approval of these drug candidates for the orphan- designated indication due to the uncertainties associated
with developing pharmaceutical products. In addition, exclusive marketing rights in the U. S. may be limited if we seek approval for an indication broader than the
orphan- designated indication or may be lost if the FDA later determines that the request for designation was materially defective or if the manufacturer is unable to
assure sufficient quantities of the product to meet the needs of patients with the rare disease or condition. Further, even if we obtain orphan drug exclusivity for a
product, that exclusivity may not effectively protect the product from competition because different drugs with different active moieties can be approved for the
same indication. Even after an orphan product is approved, the FDA can subsequently approve a different sponsor’ s application for the same drug for the same
indication if the FDA concludes that the later drug is safer, more effective or makes a major contribution to patient care. Orphan Drug Designation neither shortens
the development time or regulatory review time of a drug nor gives the drug any advantage in the regulatory review or approval process. Fast Track designation may
not actually lead to a faster development or regulatory review or approval process. IMNN- 001 received U. S. FDA Fast Track designation in 2021. However, we
may not experience a faster development process, review, or approval compared to a product that lacks Fast Track designation. The FDA may withdraw our Fast
Track designation if the FDA believes that the designation is no longer supported by data from our clinical or pivotal development program. Our Fast Track
designation does not guarantee that we will qualify for or be able to take advantage of the FDA’ s expedited review procedures or that any application that we may
submit to the FDA for regulatory approval will be accepted for filing or ultimately approved. Our relationships with healthcare providers and physicians and third-
party payors will be subject to applicable false claims act, anti- kickback, transparency, fraud and abuse and other healthcare laws and regulations, which could
expose us to criminal sanctions, civil penalties, contractual damages, administrative burdens, reputational harm and diminished profits and future earnings.
Healthcare providers, physicians and third- party payors in the U. S. and elsewhere play a primary role in the recommendation and prescription of biopharmaceutical
products. Arrangements with third- party payors and customers can expose biopharmaceutical manufacturers to broadly applicable fraud and abuse and other
healthcare laws and regulations, including, without limitation, the federal Anti- Kickback Statute and the federal False Claims Act, which may constrain the business
or financial arrangements and relationships through which such companies sell, market and distribute biopharmaceutical products. In particular, the research of our
drug candidates, as well as the promotion, sales and marketing of healthcare items and services, as well as certain business arrangements in the healthcare industry,
are subject to extensive laws designed to prevent fraud, kickbacks, self- dealing and other abusive practices. These laws and regulations may restrict or prohibit a
wide range of pricing, discounting, marketing and promotion, structuring and commission (s), certain customer incentive programs and other business arrangements
generally. Activities subject to these laws also involve the improper use of information obtained in the course of patient recruitment for clinical trials. The
distribution of biopharmaceutical products is subject to additional requirements and regulations, including extensive record- keeping, licensing, storage, and security
requirements intended to prevent the unauthorized sale of biopharmaceutical products. The scope and enforcement of each of these laws is uncertain and subject to
rapid change in the current environment of healthcare reform, especially in light of the lack of applicable precedent and regulations. Ensuring business arrangements
comply with applicable healthcare laws, as well as responding to possible investigations by government authorities, can be time- and resource- consuming and can
divert a company’ s attention from the business. It is possible that governmental and enforcement authorities will conclude that our business practices may not
comply with current or future statutes, regulations or case law interpreting applicable fraud and abuse or other healthcare laws and regulations. If any such actions are
instituted against us, and we are not successful in defending ourselves or asserting our rights, those actions could have a significant impact on our business, including
the imposition of significant civil, criminal and administrative penalties, damages, fines, disgorgement, imprisonment, reputational harm, possible exclusion from
participation in federal and state funded healthcare programs, contractual damages and the curtailment or restricting of our operations, as well as additional reporting
obligations and oversight if we become subject to a corporate integrity agreement or other agreement to resolve allegations of non- compliance with these laws.
Further, if any of the physicians or other healthcare providers or entities with whom we expect to do business is found to be not in compliance with applicable laws,
they may be subject to significant criminal, civil or administrative sanctions, including exclusions from government funded healthcare programs. Any action for
violation of these laws, even if successfully defended, could cause a biopharmaceutical manufacturer to incur significant legal expenses and divert management’ s
attention from the operation of the business. Prohibitions or restrictions on sales or withdrawal of future marketed products could materially affect business in an
adverse way. Ongoing legislative and regulatory changes affecting the healthcare industry could have a material adverse effect on our business. Political, economic
and regulatory influences are subjecting the healthcare industry to potential fundamental changes that could substantially affect our results of operations by
requiring, for example: (i) changes to our manufacturing arrangements; (ii) additions or modifications to product labeling; (iii) the recall or discontinuation of our
products, if approved; or (iv) additional record- keeping requirements. We cannot predict what healthcare reform initiatives may be adopted in the future. Further,
federal and state legislative and regulatory developments are likely, and we expect ongoing initiatives in the U. S. to increase pressure on drug pricing. Such reforms
could have an adverse effect on anticipated revenues for any drug candidates that we may successfully develop and for which we may obtain regulatory approval and
may affect our overall financial condition and ability to develop drug candidates. We may fail to comply with evolving European and other privacy laws. We are
subject to varying degrees of privacy regulation in the countries in which we operate eperatiens-, and the general trend is toward increasingly stringent regulation and
enforcement. We are, for example, subject to costly and complex U. S. and foreign laws governing the collection, use, disclosure, and cross- border transfer of
information about patients and other individuals that may materially adversely affect our financial condition and business operations. Since we have conducted and
may conduct clinical trials in the European Economic Area (“ EEA ), we are subject to additional data protection and clinical trial laws in the European Union. The
General Data Protection Regulation, (EU) 2016 / 679 (“ GDPR ”), for example, governs the processing of personal data, and imposes numerous requirements on
companies that process personal data, including requirements relating to processing health and other sensitive data, obtaining consent of the individuals to whom the
personal data relates, providing notices to individuals regarding data processing activities, implementing safeguards to protect the security and confidentiality of
personal data, alerting data subjects and authorities about data breaches, and taking specific measures when engaging third- party processors. The GDPR also
imposes strict rules on the transfer of personal data to countries outside the EEA, including the U. S., and confers on data subjects the right to lodge complaints with
supervisory authorities, and seek certain judicial review for violations of the GDPR. In addition, the GDPR includes restrictions on cross- border data transfers.
Under the GDPR, competent regulatory authorities have the power to impose fines up to EUR 20 million or 4 % of the global annual turnover (whichever is higher),
depending on the nature of the violation (see Art. 83, GDPR). Further consequences of non- compliance could be cease and desist claims by certain organizations /
competitors, damage claims and reputational damage. Further, Regulation (EU) No 536 /2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on
clinical trials on medicinal products for human use and repealing Directive 2001 /20 / EC governs how we conduct clinical trials in the European Union together



with Good Clinical Practices. As a result of Brexit, moreover, we also have independent obligations, similar to those already imposed on us by GDPR, under the
United Kingdom’ s Data Protection Act, 2018. Additionally, there are other local data protection laws, industry- specific requirements, regulations, or applicable
codes of conduct which may impact our operations. We have taken steps to implement privacy compliance programs and controls, but our business remains subject
to potential risks of controls imposed on cross border data flows, unauthorized access, and loss of personal data through internal and external threats that could
impact our business operations and research activities. The success of our products, if approved, may be harmed if the government, private health insurers and other
third- party payers do not provide sufficient coverage or reimbursement. Our ability to commercialize our new cancer treatment systems successfully will depend in
part on the extent to which reimbursement for the costs of such products, if approved, and related treatments will be available from third- party payors, which
include government authorities such as Medicare, Medicaid, TRICARE, and the Veterans Administration, managed care providers, private health insurers, and other
organizations. Patients who are provided medical treatment for their conditions generally rely on third- party payors to reimburse all or part of the costs associated
with their treatment. Patients are unlikely to use our drug candidates unless coverage is provided, and reimbursement is adequate to cover a significant portion of the
cost. We cannot be sure that coverage and reimbursement will be available for, or accurately estimate the potential revenue from, our drug candidates. Our products,
if approved, may not achieve sufficient acceptance by the medical community to sustain our business. The commercial success of our products, if approved, will
depend upon their acceptance by the medical community and third- party payors as clinically useful, cost effective and safe. Any of our drug candidates or similar
drug candidates being investigated by our competitors may prove not to be effective in trial or in practice, cause adverse events or other undesirable side effects. Our
testing and clinical practice may not confirm the safety and efficacy of our drug candidates or even if further testing and clinical practice produce positive results, the
medical community may view these new forms of treatment as effective and desirable or our efforts to market our new products, if approved, may fail. Market
acceptance depends upon physicians and hospitals obtaining adequate reimbursement rates from third- party payors to make our products, if approved, commercially
viable. Any of these factors could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We have no internal sales or marketing
capability. If we are unable to create sales, marketing and distribution capabilities or enter into alliances with others possessing such capabilities to perform these
functions, we will not be able to commercialize our products, if approved, successfully. We currently have no sales, marketing, or distribution capabilities. We intend
to market our products, if and when such products are approved for commercialization by the FDA and foreign regulatory agencies, either directly or through other
strategic alliances and distribution arrangements with third parties. If we decide to market our products directly, we will need to commit significant financial and
managerial resources to develop a marketing and sales force with technical expertise and with supporting distribution, administration, and compliance capabilities,
including providing adequate training on such topics. If we rely on third parties with such capabilities to market our products, we will need to establish and maintain
partnership arrangements, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to enter into third- party marketing or distribution arrangements on acceptable terms or
at all. To the extent that we do enter into such arrangements, we will be dependent on our marketing and distribution partners. In entering into third- party marketing
or distribution arrangements, we expect to incur significant additional expenses and there can be no assurance that such third parties will establish adequate sales and
distribution capabilities or be successful in gaining market acceptance for our products and services. Our success will depend in part on our ability to grow and
diversify, which in turn will require that we manage and control our growth effectively. Our business strategy contemplates growth and diversification. Our ability to
manage growth effectively will require that we continue to expend funds to improve our operational, financial and management controls, reporting systems and
procedures. In addition, we must effectively expand, train and manage our employees. We will be unable to manage our business effectively if we are unable to
alleviate the strain on resources caused by growth in a timely and successful manner. There can be no assurance that we will be able to manage our growth and a
failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on our business. We face intense competition and the failure to compete effectively could adversely affect our
ability to develop and market our products, if approved. There are many companies and other institutions engaged in research and development of various
technologies for cancer treatment products that seek treatment outcomes similar to those that we are pursuing. We believe that the level of interest by others in
investigating the potential of possible competitive treatments and alternative technologies will continue and may increase. Potential competitors engaged in all areas
of cancer treatment research in the U. S. and other countries include, among others, major pharmaceutical, specialized technology companies, and universities and
other research institutions. Most of our current and potential competitors have substantially greater financial, technical, human and other resources, and may also
have far greater experience than we do we-, both in pre- clinical testing and human clinical trials of new products and in obtaining FDA and other regulatory
approvals. One or more of these companies or institutions could succeed in developing products or other technologies that are more effective than the products and
technologies that we have been or are developing, or which would render our technology and products obsolete and non- competitive. Furthermore, if we are
permitted to commence commercial sales of any of our products, we will also be competing, with respect to manufacturing efficiency and marketing, with companies
having substantially greater resources and experience in these areas. We may be subject to significant product liability claims and litigation. Our business exposes us
to potential product liability risks inherent in the testing, manufacturing and marketing of human therapeutic products. We presently have product liability insurance
limited to $ 10 million per incident and $ 10 million annually. If we were to be subject to a claim in excess of this coverage or to a claim not covered by our insurance
and the claim succeeded, we would be required to pay the claim with our own limited resources, which could have a severe adverse effect on our business. Whether
or not we are ultimately successful in any product liability litigation, such litigation would harm the business by diverting the attention and resources of our
management, consuming substantial amounts of our financial resources and by damaging our reputation. Additionally, we may not be able to maintain our product
liability insurance at an acceptable cost, if at all. Our internal computer systems, or those of our CROs or other contractors or consultants may farl or suffer security
breaches, which could result in a material disruption of our product development programs. Our i m r-internal
computer systems and those of our CROs and other contractors and consultants are vulnerable to damage from computer viruses and malrcmus software that could
attack our networks and data centers or those of our service providers; unauthorized parties may attempt to gain access to our systems, networks, or facilities, or
those of third parties with whom we do business, through fraud, trickery, or other forms of deceiving our employees or contractors, direct social engineering,
phishing, credential stuffing, ransomware, denial or degradation of service attacks and similar types of attacks against any or all of us, our patients and our services
providers; inadvertent security breaches or theft, misuse, unauthorized access or other improper actions by our employees, patients, service providers and other
business partners; natural disasters, terrorism, war and telecommunication and electrical failures. These extensive information security and cybersecurity threats,
which affect companres globally, pose a rrsk to the securrty and avarlabrlrty of our systems and networks and the conﬁdentralrty, 1ntegr1ty, and avarlabrlrty of our
sensrtrve data e-eontintatly-assess h ad vestments-to-inerease d v

operations. For 1nstance the loss of preclinical data or data from any clinical trial 1nvolV1ng our drug candidates could result in delays in our development and
regulatory filing efforts and significantly increase our costs. To the extent that any disruption or privacy or security breach were to result in a loss of, or damage to,
our data, or inappropriate disclosure of confidential or proprietary information, we could be subject to reputational harm, monetary fines, civil suits, civil penalties or
criminal sanctions and requirements to disclose the breach, and other forms of liability and the development of our drug candidates could be delayed. In addition,
such interruptions and cyber security incidents and faults can cause reputational damage. Our employees, independent contractors, consultants, collaborators and
contract research organizations may engage in misconduct or other improper activities, including non- compliance with regulatory standards and requirements, which
could cause significant liability for us and harm our reputation. We are exposed to the risk that our employees, independent contractors, consultants, collaborators
and contract research organizations may engage in fraudulent conduct or other illegal activity. Misconduct by those parties could include intentional, reckless and / or
negligent conduct or disclosure of unauthorized activities to us that violates: (1) FDA regulations or similar regulations of comparable non- U. S. regulatory
authorities, including those laws requiring the reporting of true, complete and accurate information to such authorities, (2) manufacturing standards, (3) federal and
state healthcare fraud and abuse laws and regulations and similar laws and regulations established and enforced by comparable non- U. S. regulatory authorities, and
(4) laws that require the reporting of financial information or data accurately. In particular, sales, marketing and business arrangements in the healthcare industry are
subject to extensive laws and regulations intended to prevent fraud, misconduct, kickbacks, self- dealing, bribery and other abusive practices. These laws and
regulations restrict or prohibit a wide range of pricing, discounting, marketing and promotion, sales commission, customer incentive programs and other business
arrangements. Employee or collaborator misconduct could also involve the improper use of, including trading on, information obtained in the course of clinical trials,
which could result in regulatory sanctions and serious harm to our reputation. While we have a code of conduct and business ethics, it is not always possible to
identify and deter misconduct, and the precautions we take to detect and prevent this activity may not be effective in controlling unknown or unmanaged risks or
losses or in protecting us from governmental investigations or other actions or lawsuits stemming from a failure to be in compliance with such laws, standards or
regulations. If any such actions are instituted against us, and we are not successful in defending ourselves or asserting our rights, those actions could have a
significant impact on our business and results of operations, including the imposition of civil, criminal and administrative penalties, damages, monetary fines,
possible exclusion from participation in Medicare, Medicaid and other federal healthcare programs, additional reporting requirements and / or oversight if we become
subject to a corporate integrity agreement or similar agreement to resolve allegations of non- compliance with these laws, imprisonment, contractual damages,



reputational harm, diminished profits and future earnings, and curtailment of our operations, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our ability to
operate our business and our results of operations . Litigation and other legal proceedings against the Company, which may arise in the ordinary course of
Company’ s business, could be costly and time consuming to defend. The Company is from time to time subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in
the ordinary course of business. From time to time, third parties may in the future assert intellectual property rights to technologies that are important to
the Company’ s business and may in the future demand that we license their technology. Litigation may result in substantial costs and may divert
management’ s attention and resources, which may seriously harm the Company’ s business, overall financial condition and operating results . RISKS
RELATED TO OUR INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY Our business depends on license agreements with third parties to permit us to use patented technologies. The
loss of any of our rights under these agreements could impair our ability to develop and market our products, if approved. Our success will depend, in a substantial
part, on our ability to maintain our rights under license agreements granting us rights to use patented technologies. For instance, we are party to license agreements
with Duke University, under which we have exclusive rights to commercialize medical treatment products and procedures based on Duke’ s thermo- sensitive
liposome technology. The Duke University license agreement contains a license fee, royalty and / or research support provisions, testing and regulatory milestones,
and other performance requirements that we must meet by certain deadlines. If we breach any provisions of the license and research agreements, we may lose our
ability to use the subject technology, as well as compensation for our efforts in developing or exploiting the technology. Any such loss of rights and access to
technology could have a material adverse effect on our business. Further, we cannot guarantee that any patent or other technology rights licensed to us by others will
not be challenged or circumvented successfully by third parties, or that the rights granted will provide adequate protection. We may be required to alter any of our
potential products or processes or enter into a license and pay licensing fees to a third party or cease certain activities. There can be no assurance that we can obtain a
license to any technology that we determine we need on reasonable terms, if at all, or that we could develop or otherwise obtain alternate technology. If a license is
not available on commercially reasonable terms or at all, our business, results of operations, and financial condition could be significantly harmed, and we may be
prevented from developing and commercializing the product. Litigation, which could result in substantial costs, may also be necessary to enforce any patents issued
to or licensed by us or to determine the scope and validity of another’ s claimed proprietary rights. If any of our pending patent applications are not issued, or are
deemed invalid following issuance, we may lose valuable intellectual property protection. The patent positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, such
as ours, are uncertain and involve complex legal and factual issues. We own various U. S. and international patents and have pending U. S. and international patent
applications that cover various aspects of our technologies. There can be no assurance that patents that have been issued will be held valid and enforceable in a court
of law through the entire patent term. Even for patents that are held valid and enforceable, the legal process associated with obtaining such a judgment is time-
consuming and costly. Additionally, issued patents can be subject to opposition, interferences or other proceedings that can result in the revocation of the patent or
maintenance of the patent in amended form (and potentially in a form that renders the patent without commercially relevant or broad coverage). Further, our
competitors may be able to circumvent and otherwise design around our patents. Even if a patent is issued and enforceable because development and
commercialization of pharmaceutical products can be subject to substantial delays, patents may expire early and provide only a short period of protection, if any,
following the commercialization of products, if approved, encompassed by our patents. We may have to participate in interference proceedings declared by the U. S.
Patent and Trademark Office, which could result in a loss of the patent and / or substantial cost to us. We have filed patent applications, and plan to file additional
patent applications, covering various aspects of our technologies and our proprietary drug candidates. There can be no assurance that the patent applications for
which we apply would actually issue as patents or do so with commercially relevant or broad coverage. The coverage claimed in a patent application can be
significantly reduced before the patent is issued. The scope of our claim coverage can be critical to our ability to enter into licensing transactions with third parties
and our right to receive royalties from our collaboration partnerships. Since publication of discoveries in scientific or patent literature often lags behind the date of
such discoveries, we cannot be certain that we were the first inventor of inventions covered by our patents or patent applications. In addition, there is no guarantee
that we will be the first to file a patent application directed to an invention. An adverse outcome in any judicial proceeding involving intellectual property, including
patents, could subject us to significant liabilities to third parties, require disputed rights to be licensed from or to third parties or require us to cease using the
technology in dispute. In those instances where we seek an intellectual property license from another, we may not be able to obtain the license on a commercially
reasonable basis, if at all, thereby raising concerns on our ability to freely commercialize our technologies or products. We rely on trade secret protection and other
unpatented proprietary rights for important proprietary technologies, and any loss of such rights could harm our business, results of operations and financial
condition. We rely on trade secrets and confidential information that we seek to protect, in part, by confidentiality agreements with our corporate partners,
collaborators, employees and consultants. We cannot assure you that these agreements are adequate to protect our trade secrets and confidential information or will
not be breached or, if breached, we will have adequate remedies. Furthermore, others may independently develop substantially equivalent confidential and
proprietary information or otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or disclose such technology. Any loss of trade secret protection or other unpatented proprietary
rights could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. We may incur substantial costs as a result of litigation or other proceedings relating to
patent and other intellectual property rights. Our commercial success depends on our ability to operate without infringing the patents and other proprietary rights of
third parties. Although we currently are not involved in any material litigation involving patents, a third- party patent holder may assert a claim of patent
infringement against us in the future. Alternatively, we may initiate litigation against the third- party patent holder to request that a court declare that we are not
infringing the third party’ s patent and / or that the third party’ s patent is invalid or unenforceable. Any infringement action asserted against us, even if we are
ultimately successful in defending against such action, would likely delay the regulatory approval process of our products, harm our competitive position, be
expensive and require the time and attention of our key management and technical personnel. In addition, there is a risk that the court will decide that such patents
are not valid and that we do not have the right to stop the other party from using the inventions. RISKS RELATED TO OUR SECURITIES The market price of our
common stock has been, and may continue to be volatile and fluctuate significantly, which could result in substantial losses for investors and subject us to securities
class action litigation. The trading price for our common stock has been, and we expect it to continue to be, volatile. The price at which our common stock trades
depends upon a number of factors, some of these factors are beyond our control. Broad market fluctuations may lower the market price of our common stock and
affect the volume of trading in our stock, regardless of our financial condition, results of operations, business or prospects. In addition to the factors discussed in this
“ Risk Factors ” section and elsewhere in this Annual Report, these factors include: ® disclosure of actual or potential clinical results with respect to drug candidates
we are developing; e regulatory developments in both the United States and abroad; @ developments concerning proprietary rights, including patents and litigation
matters; ® public concern about the safety or efficacy of our drug candidates or technology, or related technology, or new technologies generally; ® concern about
the safety or efficacy of our drug candidates or technology, or related technology, or new technologies generally; ® public announcements by our competitors or
others; and e general market conditions and comments by securities analysts and investors. Our common stock may be delisted from The Nasdaq Capital Market if
we fail to comply with continued listing standards. Our common stock is currently traded on The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ IMNN. ” If we fail to
comply with Nasdaq’ s continued listing standards, we may be delisted and our common stock will trade, if at all, only on the over- the- counter market, such as the
OTC Bulletin Board or OTCQX market, and then only if one or more registered broker- dealer market makers comply with quotation requirements. In addition,
delisting of our common stock could depress our stock price, substantially limit liquidity of our common stock and materially adversely affect our ability to raise
capital on terms acceptable to us, or at all. Further, delisting of our common stock would likely result in our common stock becoming a “ penny stock ” under the
Exchange Act. On Beeember-November 26, 2623-2024 , we received a notice from the staff of the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (the “ Staff ™) notifying us that, based
upon the closing bid price of our common stock, for the 30 consecutive business days prior to the notice, we no longer met the requirement to maintain a minimum
closing bid price of $ 1. 00 per share, as set forth in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550 (a) (2). In accordance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5810 (c) (3) (A), we were granted 180
calendar days, or until June24-May 27 , 2624-2025 , to regain compliance with the minimum bid price rule. To regain compliance, the closing bid price of our
common stock must be $ 1. 00 per share or more for a minimum of 10 consecutive business days at any time before Fune24-May 27 , 2024-2025 . If we do not
regain compliance with Rule 5550 (a) (2) by June24-May 27 , 20624-2025 , we may be eligible for an additional 180 calendar day compliance period. To qualify, we
will be required to meet the continued listing requirement for market value of publicly held shares and all other Nasdaq initial listing standards, except the bid price
requirement, and would need to provide written notice to Nasdaq of our intention to cure the deficiency during the second compliance period. If it appears to the
Staff that we will not be able to cure the deficiency, or if we are otherwise not eligible, Nasdaq would notify us that our securities will be subject to delisting. In the
event of such notification, we may appeal the Staff’ s determination to delist our securities, but there can be no assurance the Staff would grant our request for
continued listing. If our common stock is-were to be delisted by Nasdag, it may be eligible for quotation on an over- the- counter quotation system or on the pink
sheets. Upon any such delisting, our common stock would become subject to the regulations of the SEC relating to the market for penny stocks. A penny stock is any
equity security not traded on a national securities exchange that has a market price of less than $ 5. 00 per share. The regulations applicable to penny stocks may
severely affect the market liquidity for our common stock and could limit the ability of stockholders to sell securities in the secondary market. In such a case, an
investor may find it more difficult to dispose of or obtain accurate quotations as to the market value of our common stock, and there can be no assurance that our



common stock will be eligible for trading or quotation on any alternative exchanges or markets. Delisting from Nasdaq could adversely affect our ability to raise
additional financing through public or private sales of equity securities, would significantly affect the ability of investors to trade our securities and would negatively
affect the value and liquidity of our common stock. Delisting could also have other negative results, including the potential loss of confidence by employees, the loss
of institutional investor interest and fewer business development opportunities. Future sales of our common stock in the public market could cause our stock price to
fall. Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that these sales might occur, could depress the market price
of our common stock and could impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of additional equity securities. As of Mareh26-February 21 , 2624-2025 , we had
914, 399-620 , 789-732 shares of common stock outstanding, all of which, other than shares held by our directors and certain officers, were eligible for sale in the
public market, subject in some cases to compliance with the requirements of Rule 144, including the volume limitations and manner of sale requirements. In addition,
all of the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants will be freely tradable without restriction or further registration upon issuance. Our stockholders
may experience significant dilution as a result of future equity offerings or issuances and exercise of outstanding options and warrants. In order to raise additional
capital or pursue strategic transactions, we may in the future offer, issue or sell additional shares of our common stock or other securities convertible into or
exchangeable for our common stock, including the issuance of common stock in relation to the achievement, if any, of milestones triggering our payment of earn- out
consideration in connection with the EGEN acquisition. Our stockholders may experience significant dilution as a result of future equity offerings or issuances.
Investors purchasing shares or other securities in the future could have rights superior to existing stockholders. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , we had the following
number of securities convertible into, or allowing the purchase of, our common stock, including +66-5, 155, 060 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
warrants outstanding, 1, 895-645 , 582-873 options to purchase shares of our common stock and restricted stock awards outstanding, and +420 , 000 266;342-shares
of common stock reserved for future issuance under our stock incentive plan. Unstable global market and economic conditions may have serious adverse
consequences on our business, financial condition and share price. The global economy, including credit and financial markets, has experienced extreme volatility
and disruptions, including severely diminished liquidity and credit availability, declines in consumer confidence, declines in economic growth, increases in
unemployment rates, increases in inflation rates and uncertainty about economic stability. For example, the COVID- 19 pandemic resulted in widespread
unemployment, economic slowdown and extreme volatility in the capital markets. Similarly, the ongoing conflict between Ukraine and Russia and the unrest in the
Middle East has created extreme volatility in the global capital markets and is expected to have further global economic consequences, including with respect to
global supply chain and energy concerns. Any such volatility may have adverse consequences on us or the third parties on whom we rely. If the equity and credit
markets deteriorate, including as a result of political unrest or war, it may make any necessary debt or equity financing more difficult to obtain in a timely manner or
on favorable terms, more costly or more dilutive. Our ability to use net operating losses to offset future taxable income are-is subject to certain limitations. On
December 22, 2017, the then President of the U. S. signed into law the Tax Reform Act. The Tax Reform Act significantly changed U. S. tax law by, among other
things, lowering corporate income tax rates, implementing a quasi- territorial tax system, providing a one- time transition toll charge on foreign earnings, creating a
new limitation on the deductibility of interest expenses and modifying the limitation on officer compensation. The Tax Reform Act permanently reduced the U. S.
corporate income tax rate from a maximum of 35 % to a flat 21 % rate, effective January 1, 2018. We currently have significant net operating losses (“ NOLs ) that
may be used to offset future taxable income. In general, under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “ Code ™), a corporation that
undergoes an “ ownership change ” is subject to limitations on its ability to utilize its pre- change NOLSs to offset future taxable income. During 2022, 2021 and years
prior, we performed analyses to determine if there were changes in ownership, as defined by Section 382 of the Code, that-which would limit our ability to utilize
certain net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. We determined we experienced ownership changes, as defined by Section 382, in connection with certain
common stock offerings in 2011, 2013, 2015, 2017, 2018, 2020 and-, 2021 and 2024 . As a result, the utilization of our federal tax net operating loss carry- forwards
generated prior to the ownership changes is limited. Future changes in our stock ownership, some of which are outside of our control, could result in an ownership
change under Section 382 of the Code, which would significantly limit our ability to utilize NOLs to offset future taxable income. Future changes in tax laws could
also impair our corporate tax rate and / or our ability to utilize our NOLs. We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock in the past and do not anticipate
paying cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock. We do not anticipate
paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain all available funds and any future earnings to fund the
development and growth of our business. As a result, capital appreciation, if any, of our common stock will be the sole source of gain for the foreseeable future for
holders of our common stock. Anti- takeover provisions in our charter documents and Delaware law could prevent or delay a change in control. Our certificate of
incorporation and bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a merger or acquisition that a stockholder may consider favorable by authorizing the issuance of ““ blank
check ” preferred stock. This preferred stock may be issued by our Board of Directors on such terms as it determines, without further stockholder approval.
Therefore, our Board of Directors may issue such preferred stock on terms unfavorable to a potential bidder in the event that our Board of Directors opposes a merger
or acquisition. In addition, our staggered Board of Directors may discourage such transactions by increasing the amount of time necessary to obtain majority
representation on our Board of Directors. Certain other provisions of our bylaws and of Delaware law may also discourage, delay or prevent a third party from
acquiring or merging with us, even if such action were beneficial to some, or even a majority, of our stockholders. ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF
COMMENTSNone. ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY We have processes for assessing, identifying and managing cybersecurity risks, which are built into our
information technology (“ IT ) function and are designed to help protect our information assets and operations from internal and external cyber threats, protect
employee and clinical trial information from unauthorized access or attack, as well as secure our networks and systems. Such processes include physical, procedural
and technical safeguards, response plans, and routine review of our policies and procedures to identify risks and refine our practices. We engage certain external
parties, including a full = service managed IT service provider, to enhance our cybersecurity oversight. Our Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (the “ Audit
Committee ) is responsible for overseeing cybersecurity risk and periodically updates our Board of Directors on such matters. The Audit Committee receives
periodic updates from management regarding cybersecurity matters and is notified between such updates regarding any significant new cybersecurity threats or
incidents. We do not believe that there are currently any known risks from cybersecurity threats that are reasonably likely to materially affect us or our business
strategy, results of operations or financial condition. Management is responsible for the operational oversight of company- wide cybersecurity strategy, policy, and
standards across relevant departments to assess and help prepare us to address cybersecurity risks. In an effort to deter and detect cyber threats, we annually provide
all employees with cybersecurity and prevention training, which covers timely and relevant topics, including social engineering, phishing, password protection,
confidential data protection, and mobile security, and educates employees on the importance of reporting all incidents immediately. We also use technology- based
tools to mitigate cybersecurity risks and to bolster our employee- based cybersecurity programs. ITEM 2. PROPERTIESWe own no real property and have no plans
to acquire any real property in the future. Lawrenceville, NJ Lease In August 2023, the Company renewed its Lawrenceville office lease for a 24- month agreement
for 9, 850 square feet with monthly rent payments of approximately $ 22, 983 and $ 23, 394. Huntsville, AL Lease In January 2023, the Company renewed its
Huntsville facility lease for a 60- month lease agreement for 11, 420 square feet with monthly rent payments of approximately $ 28, 550 to $ 30, 903. We believe our
existing facilities are suitable and adequate to conduct our business. Following is a table of future payments and maturity of our operating lease liabilities as of
December 31, 2023-2024 : For the year ending December 31, 2024-2025 $ 626;323-2025-543, 009 2026 362, 976 2027 370, 236-235 2028 and thereafter 30, 903
Subtotal future lease payments 1, 933-307 , 447123 Less imputed interest (308167 , 733-830 ) Total lease liabilities § 1, 624-139 , H4-293 Weighted average
remaining life 3-2 . 57 years Weighted average discount rate 9. 98 % For 2024, operating lease expense was $ 651, 681 and cash paid for operating leases
included in operating cash ﬂows was $ 659 161. For 2023, opcratmg lcasc cxpcn%c was $ 646, 633 and ca%h pald for opcratmg lcach mcludcd in opcratmg cash
flows was $ 644, 593. op 4 P a d -




MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURESNot Applicable. PART IIITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’ S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIESMarket for Our Common Stock Our common stock trades on The Nasdaq Capital Market
under the symbol “ IMNN. ” Record Holders As of Mareh28-February 21 , 2624-2025 , there were approximately 2820 , 000 stockholders of record of our
common stock. The actual number of stockholders may be greater than this number of record stockholders and tnetudes— include stockholders who are beneficial
owners but whose shares are held in street name by brokers and other nominees. This number of stockholders of record also does not include stockholders whose
shares may be held in trust by other entities. Dividend Policy We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently anticipate that
we will retain all of our future earnings for use in the operation of our business and to fund future growth and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. Any future determination to declare cash dividends will be made at the discretion of our Board of Directors, subject to applicable law, and will
depend on our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general business conditions and other factors that our Board of Directors may deem
relevant. Performance Graph Not required. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities On Deeember-October 7, 2623-2024 , we granted : (i) an inducement stock
option to purchase 86-60 ., 000 shares of the Company’ s common stock with an exercise price of $ €-1 . 88-02 per share to one individual hired by the Company
during the fourth quarter of 2024 and (ii) atestrieted-an inducement stock award-of26-option to purchase 50 . 000 restrieted-shares of the Company’ s
common stock w1thto—Dr—Sebas&eﬁ—Ha‘zafd—emLE*ee1mve—Vtee-Presﬁeﬂt—aﬂd~ an Chief-Medieal-Offieer-exercise price of $ 1. 02 per share to Susan Eylward ,
our General Counsel, in each case as an *“ inducement ” grant pursuant to Rule 5635 (c¢) (4) of the Nasdaq Listing Rules. The grant of the option was exempt from
registration under the Securities Act, pursuant to Section 4 (a) (2) thereof as a transaction by an issuer not involving a public offering. Issuer Purchases of Equity
SecuritiesITEM 6. RESERVED. ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT” S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONSThe following discussions should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and related notes thereto included in this Annual Report. The
following discussion contains forward- looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the
Exchange Act and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are based on the Company’ s beliefs and expectations about future
outcomes and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from anticipated results. Factors that could cause or contribute
to such differences include those described under ““ Part I, Item 1A- Risk Factors ” appearing in this Annual Report and factors described in other cautionary
statements, cautionary language and risk factors set forth in other documents that the Company files with the SEC. The Company undertakes no obligation to
pubhcly updatc forward 1ookmg statements, ththcr asa rcsult of ncw mformatron futurc events or othcrw1sc OVCl’VchOﬂ—September—Bn"GQ%,—Gels-teﬂ

N2 Imunon isa fu-l-l-y—rnfegfafed—chnlcal- stage blotechnology company focused on advancrng a portfoho

of i 1nnovat1ve treatments that harness the body s natural mechanisms with the aim to generate safe, effective and durable responses across a broad array of human
diseases, constituting a differentiating approach from conventional therapies. Imunon is developing its non- viral DNA technology across feus-its modalities. The
first modality, TheraPlas ®, is being-developed for the coding of proteins and cytokines in the treatment of solid tumors where an immunological approach is
deemed promising. The second modality, PlaCCine ®, is being-developed for thc codlng ofvrral antlgcns that can chc1t a strong 1mmunoloycal response. Thli

e v p p e neoe he-Company’ s lead clmrcal program, IMNN-
001 isa DNA based 1mmunotherapy fcr the localized treatment of advanced ovarian cancer eﬁﬂeﬁt-l-y—m—that has completed Phase 11 elinical development studies

. IMNN- 001 works by instructing the body to produce safe and durable levels of powerful cancer- hghtrng molecules such as H-interleukin - 12 and interferon
gamma, at the tumor site. Add1t10na11y, the Company has entered into is- al-stu v At-ofa first- in- human
study of 1ts COVID- 19 booster vaccrne (IMNN 101) aﬁd—a—&e&ﬁﬂeﬁt—fer—the—l:assa—vfms—él—k%——l—@%— We

A uren-will continue to leverage these modalities and to advance the
tcchno]oglcal frontlcr ofplasmld DNA to bcttcr serve patients w1th drffcu]t— to- trcat conditions. Business Plan and Going Concern Risk As a clinical- stage
biopharmaceutical company, our business and our ability to execute our strategy to achieve our corporate goals are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties.
Material risks and uncertainties relating to our business and our industry are described in ““ Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors ” in this Annual Report on Form 10- K. We
have not generated and do not expect to generate any revenue from product sales in the next several years, if at all. An element of our business strategy has been to
pursue, as resources permit, the research and development of a range of drug candidates for a variety of indications. We may also evaluate licensing products from
third parties to expand our current product pipeline. This is intended to allow us to diversify the risks associated with our research and development expenditures. To
the extent we are unable to maintain a broad range of drug candidates, our dependence on the success of one or a few drug candidates would increase and would have
a more significant impact on our financial prospects, financial condition, and market value. We may also consider and evaluate strategic alternatives, including
investment in, or acquisition of, complementary businesses, technologies, or products. Drug research and development is an inherently uncertain process and there is
a high risk of failure at every stage prior to approval. The timing and the outcome of clinical results are extremely difficult to predict. The success or failure of any
preclinical development and clinical trial can have a disproportionately positive or negative impact on our results of operations, financial condition, prospects, and
market value. Our current business strategy includes the possibility of entering into collaborative arrangements with third parties to complete the development and
commercialization of our drug candidates. In the event that third parties are contracted to manage the clinical trial process for one or more of our drug candidates, the
estimated completion date would largely be under the control of that third party rather than us. We cannot forecast with any degree of certainty which proprietary
products or indications, if any, will be subject to future collaborative arrangements, in whole or in part, and how such arrangements would affect our development
plan or capital requirements. We may also apply for subsidies, grants or government or agency- sponsored studies that could reduce our development costs.
However, we cannot forecast with any degree of certainty whether we will be selected to receive any subsidy, grant or governmental funding. Since inception, the
Company has incurred substantial operating losses, principally from expenses associated with the Company’ s research and development programs, clinical trials
conducted in connection with the Company’ s drug candidates, and applications and submissions to the FDA. The Company has not generated significant revenue
and has incurred significant net losses in each year since our inception. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , the Company has incurred approximately $ 388407 million
ofcumulatlve net losses and had $ -15—5 -7—9 million in cash and cash equlvalcnts —sheft—tefm—mvesﬁﬂeﬁﬁ-&ﬂd—tﬁtefest—feeeﬁﬁb{e-to fund its operations —Fhe
y 5 he-sa 2 . We have substantial future capital

rcqu1rcmcnt§ to contlnuc our research and dcvclopmcnt act1V1t1c€ and advancc our drug candldatc% through various dcvclopmcnt stages. The Company believes these
expenditures are essential for the commercialization of its drug candidates and technologies. The Company’ s primary sources of cash have been proceeds from the
issuance and sale of its common stock , including via its ATM program and other potential funding transactions. There can be no assurance that the Company will
be able to do so in the future on a timely basis on terms acceptable to the Company, or at all. The Company has not yet commercialized any of its product candidates.
Even if the Company commercializes one or more of its product candidates, it may not become profitable in the near term. The Company’ s ability to achieve
profitability depends on several factors, including its ability to obtain regulatory approval for its product candidates, successfully complete any post- approval
regulatory obligations and successfully commercialize its product candidates alone or in partnership. Given our development plans, we anticipate cash resources will
not be sufficient to fund our operations inte-for the next twelve months fourth-quarter0£2024- The Company has no committed sources of additional capital. As a
result of the risks and uncertainties discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10- K, among others, we are unable to estimate the duration and completion costs of our
research and development projects or when, if ever, and to what extent we will receive cash inflows from the commercialization and sale of a product. Our inability
to complete any of our research and development activities, preclinical studies or clinical trials in a timely manner or our failure to enter into collaborative
agreements when appropriate could significantly increase our capital requirements and could adversely impact our liquidity. While our estimated future capital
requirements are uncertain and could increase or decrease as a result of many factors, including the extent to which we choose to advance our research, development
activities, preclinical studies and clinical trials, or if we are in a position to pursue manufacturing or commercialization activities, we will need significant additional
capital to develop our drug candidates through development and clinical trials, obtain regulatory approvals and manufacture and commercialized approved products,
if any. We do not know whether we will be able to access additional capital when needed or on terms favorable to us or our stockholders. Our inability to raise
additional capital, or to do so on terms reasonably acceptable to us, would jeopardize the future success of our business. Based on the above, management has
determined there is substantial doubt regarding our ability to continue as a going concern. The report of our independent registered public accounting firm for the
year ended December 31, 2023-2024 includes an explanatory paragraph which expresses substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.
Management’ s plan includes raising funds from outside investors , including via its ATM program and other potential funding sources as-mentioned-. However, as
mentioned above, there is no assurance such funding will be available to the Company or that it will be obtained on terms favorable to the Company or will provide




the Company with sufficient funds to meet its objectives. The Company’ s financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and
classification of assets, carrying amounts or the amount and classification of liabilities that may be required should the Company be unable to continue as a going
concern. The Company’ s ability to raise additional capital may alse be adversely impacted by polemial worsening global economic conditions and the recent
(l]sluptl(}ll\ to, dﬂ(l \Uldt]llt\ in, financial mallxets in the U.S. and W orld\\ ldc lcsultmg from the ongoing conflict between effeets-ofthe-COVID-—9-pandemte-and

- y ss-and Russia and enrelment-of patients—This-may-delay

------ -eontiaes niterits-operating-aetivitiesintigh —theunrestlneveﬁts—aﬂd-ﬁ—ts—reaseﬁ&blyjaessﬁ{e-thet—the

v e have-aheg A-th $ tal-eonditt 0 ens-. The specific impact, if any, is not readily

determinable as of the date of th [manual statements 111th|de in this Annm] Repon l-manulw Overview l:qull\ Debt and Other Forms of Financing Since 2018,
the Company has annually submitted applications to sell a portion of the Company’ s State of New Jersey net operating losses (“ NOLs ) as part of the Technology
Business Tax Certificate Program (the “ NOL Program ") sponsored by The New Jersey Economic Development Authority. Under the program, emerging
biotechnology companies with unused NOLs and unused research and development credits are allowed to sell these benefits to other New Jersey- based companies.
In 70] 8, 2019 and 2020, the (ompan\ sold cumulatnc T\Ol S rmm 2011 t0 2019 tota]mé $ 15 million and ICLCI\ ed net procceds of $ 14 mllllon—As-paﬁ—of—t-he—NGl:

maximum ll‘utmu, bendlt per company from S 15 m1ll1on to S 20 nnllum As part of the expanded NOL Program wh-teh—m-l-l—a-l-lew—tlk Company sold $ 4.6
million of its New Jersey NOLSs in 2021, 2022 and 2023 resulting in net proceeds to the Company of approximately $ 4. 2 million. The Company can
participate in this funding program in future years for up to an additional $ 0. 3-4 million in net operating losses under this-the $ 20 million maximum lifetime benefit
limit . As more fully discussed in Note 8 to our financial statements included in this Annual Report, in June 2021, the Company entered into a $ 10 million loan
facility with Silicon Valley Bank (the “ SVB Loan Facility ”’). The Company immediately used $ 6 million from this facility to retire all outstanding indebtedness
with Horizon Technology Finance Corporation. The funding was in the form of money market secured indebtedness bearing interest at a calculated WSJ Prime-
based variable rate. The SVB Loan Facility was repaid in full during the quarter ended June 30, 2023. During 2024 and 2023, we issued a total of 5. 1 million
shares and 1. 9 million shares of common stock, respectively, as discussed below for approximately $ 9. 0 million and approximately $ 2. 8 million,
respectively, in net proceeds. On Mafeh—l-9—May 15, 292—1—2024 1hc C Olllpng filed with the SEC a shelf registration statement on Form S- 3 (the *“ 26232024
Registration Slammm ') that-a h prefe e for the offer warrants-to-purehase-commen-stoek
and ameuﬁt—sale of up to S -1-99—75 mlllum of lts securltles Thu 292—1—2024 Registration Statement was declared effective on Marelh36-May
22, 2-92—1—2024 Tht‘ 262142024 chl\lldlloﬂ Slalt‘mcnl wﬁs—ls mlt‘ndcd to plm l(lt: wus-the Company W uh llC\Il)llll\f to ]d]sC Lapllal in the lulune lo] ucncm] corporate

fespeet—te—offer and sell its securities in a primary offerlng on thc ﬂse-ef—t-he—ZGQ-l—2024 Registration Statumm is llmlted by aﬁd—&ny—et-he&shel-f—regtsfﬁmeﬁ

seneral Instruction I. B. 6 of Form S- 3 (the “ Baby Shelf Limitation ”’), which limits the amount we-that the
Company can offer to up to one- third of ewrits public float dLlllllE any trailing 12- month pc110d We—The Company would be—no longer be sub]wt to the Baby
Shelf lemtmn if eﬂr—lts lebllC float exceeds $ 75 million. RE a

-$—59—999—0—9ﬂ—May%§%92—2—&!e—€e&1p&ny—eﬂfefed—tr&e—aﬂ-At TllL l\/ldll(k.t ()Ttumg A"lLLant (—On May 15, 2024 thu Company amended lts ATM Agreement
with ainwright o., B ainwri as sales agent -pursuant to which the Company may offer and sell, from time to time,
hH.C.W ht & Co., LLC (¢ W ight ” 1 < hich the C ff 1 sell, fi

through Wainwright, shares of the C ompdn) s common stock having an aggregate oHumL price of up to $ #5, 500, 000. The Company intends to use the net
proceeds from the offering, if any, for general corporate purposes, including research and development activities, capital expenditures and working capital. Fhe-On
July 30, 2024, the Company did-netsel-any-shares-notified Wainwright that it was suspending its use of and terminating the “ at the market offering ” sales
agreement prospectus (the “ ATM Prospectus ), related to the potential issuance from time to time of the Company’ s common stock pursuant to the ATM
Agreement, by and between the Company and Wainwright. Notwithstanding the termination of the ATM Prospectus, the ATM Agreement remains in full
force and effect. On September 3, 2024, in connection with its intent to resume sales under the ATM Agreement, the Company filed a new prospectus
supplement to the 2024 Registration Statement with the SEC for an aggregate offering price of up to $ 5, 500, 000 related to the potential issuance from time
to time of the Company’ s common stock pursuant to the ATM Agreement with Wainwright as sales agent in-the-firstnine-months-of2022- The Fronr-Oetober
+-2622-threugh-Deeember312022the-Company sold 336-88 , 675-976 shares of common stock under the ATM Agreement for net proceeds of $ 99, 506
during 2024. During 2023, the Company sold 1, 878, 488 shares of common stock for net proceeds of § 563-2 . 750 798—-During-the-yearended-Deeember3+-,
658. July 2623-2024 Offering On July 30, 2024 ., the Company setd-+entered into the July 2024 Purchase Agreement with the Purchasers (as defined therein)
, &78-pursuant to which the Company issued . 48&-in a registered direct offering, an aggregate of 5, 000, 000 shares of the Company’ s common stock fernet
proeeeds-at an offering price of S 2. 8-00 per share for gross proceeds of $ 10. 0 million before the deduction of the placement agent fees and offering
expenses. In a concurrent private placement (together with the registered direct offering, the “ July 2024 Offering ) and also pursuant to the July 2024
Purchase Agreement, the Company issued to the Purchasers unregistered warrants (the “ Warrants ) to purchase an aggregate of 5, 000, 000 shares of its
common stock at a purchase price of $ 2. 00 per share. The Warrants were exercisable i diately after i e for a term of five and one- half years
following the date of issuance. The closing of the July 2024 Offering occurred on August 1, 2024. In connection with the July 2024 Offering, the Company
entered into an engagement letter agreement with Wainwright pursuant to which the Company agreed to pay Wainwright and any other placement agents
for the July 2024 Offering a cash fee equal to 7 % of the aggregate gross proceeds raised from the sale of the securities sold in the July 2024 Offering and
reimburse the placement agents for certain of their expenses in an amount not to exceed $ 85, 000. Brookline Capital Markets, a division of Arcadia
Securities, LLC, acted as co- placement agent in the July 2024 Offering . Plcasc refer to Note 2 to our financial statements included in this Annual Report. Also
refer to Part [, Item 1A, Risk Factors, in this Annual Report, including, but not limited to, “ We will need to raise substantial additional capital to fund our planned
future operations, and we may be unable to secure such capital without significant dilutive financing transactions. If we are not able to raise additional capital, we
may not be able to complete the development, testing and commercialization of our drug candidates. ” Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates Our financial
statements included in this Annual Report have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U. S. (“ GAAP ), which require
that we make certain assumptions and estimates and, in connection therewith, adopt certain accounting policies. Our significant accounting policies are set forth in
Note 1 to our financial statements included in this Annual Report. Of those policies, we believe that the policies discussed below may involve a higher degree of
judgment and may be more critical to an accurate reflection of our financial condition and results of operations. ¥a—Preeess-Research and Development Research 5




Other-Intangible-Assets-and Geedwil-During2644;-development costs are expensed as incurred. Supplles are consumable and recorded at cost and are
charged to expense as fhe—they Gem-pan-y—are used 1n operatlons. Equlpment and facnlltles acquired

A edHn W ed-for underresearch and development actlv1t1es that have alternative
future uses are capltallzed and charged to expense over t-he—thelr aeqms-rt-ten—met-hed—ef-estlmated useful lives. Warrant aeeeu-nt-mg—Accountlng We wh-leh

account for warrants as either equlty- class1ﬁed or pareha a net-ta § 8 : llablllty classnfied
instruments bascd on an assessment of the warrants’ speclﬁc terms and appllcable authorltatlve guldance in ASC 480 “ Dlstlngulshlng Liabilities from
Equity ” (“ ASC 480 ”), and ASC 815 “ Derivatives and Hedging ” (“ ASC 815 ). The assessment considers whether the warrants are freestanding
financial instruments pursuant to ASC 480, meet the definition of a liability pursuant to ASC 480, and whether the warrants meet all of the requirements
for equity classification under ASC 815, including whether the warrants are indexed to our own ordinary shares and whether warrant holders could
potentially require “ net cash settlement ” in a circumstance outside of our control, among other conditions for equity classification. This assessment, which
requires the use of professional judgment, is conducted at the time of warrant issuance and as of each subsequent quarterly period end- date while the
warrants are outstanding. For issued or modified warrants that meet all the criteria for equity classification, the warrants are required to be recorded as a
component of equity at the time of issuance. For issued or modified warrants that do not meet all the criteria for equity classification, the warrants are
required to be recorded as liabilities at their initial fair value on the date of issuance, and each balance sheet date thereafter. Changes in the cstimated fair
vaties— value of warrants classified as liabilities are recognized as a non- cash gain or loss on our statements of operations the-aequisition-date-. As the
warrants issued upon further-diseussed+inNote-6-te-our financings finanetal-statements-ineluded-in this-Annual-Report-2024 meet the criteria for equity
classification under ASC 815 , during-the-those yearended-warrants were classified as equity as of December 31, 2022-2024 the-Cempanyteeorded-a$13- No
warrants were issued in 2023 4-mithontPR-&P-impairmenteharge-. We review our financial reporting and disclosure practices and accounting pohucs on an
ongoing basis to ensure that our financial reporting and disclosure system provides accurate and transparent information relative to the current economic and business
environment. As part of the process, the Company reviews the selection, application and communication of critical accounting policies and financial disclosures. The
preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires that our management make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. We review our estimates and the methods by which they are determined on an ongoing basis. However, actual results could differ from
our estimates. Results of Operations Comparison of Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2623-2024 and Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022-2023 . For the year
ended December 31, 2023-2024 , our net loss was $ 49-18 . 5-6 million compared to a net loss of $ 35-19 . 9-5 million for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 .
The Company recognized $ 1. 3 million and-$3—6-milter-in tax benefits from the sale of its New Jersey NOLs under the NOL Program in eaelefthe fourth
quarters— quarter of 2023 and-2022respeetively-. As of December 31, 2623-2024 | thc Lompanv had 5 45-5 . 79 million in cash and cash Lqul\dlLHTS —s-heft—tefm
mvest-meﬁts—aﬂd—tn-tefe&t—reeew&b-l-e—to fund its operations —Fh a a a
NOEs-. The Company’ s primary sources of cash have been ploeecds tl om the issuance dlld sale of its common stock , lncludlng via its A’ l M program and oth<:1
funding transactions. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to do so in the future on a timely basis on terms acceptable to the Company, or at all.
The Company has not yet commercialized any of its product candidates. Even if the Company commercializes one or more of its product candidates, it may not
become profitable in the near term or at all . The Company’ s ability to achieve profitability depends on several factors, including its ability to obtain regulatory
approval for its product candidates, successfully complete any post- approval regulatory obligations and successfully commercialize its product candidates alone or
in partnership. Such conditions raise substantial deubts—- doubt about the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the above, management has
determined there is substantial doubt regarding our ability to continue as a going concern. The report of our independent registered public accounting firm for the
year ended December 31, 2023-2024 includes an explanatory paragraph which expresses substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.
Management’ s plan includes raising funds from the issuance and sale of its common stock , including via its ATM program and other funding transactions.
However, as mentioned above, there is no assurance such funding will be available to the Company or that it will be obtained on terms favorable to the Company or
will provide the Company with sufficient funds to meet its objectives. The Company’ s financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of assets, carrying amounts or the amount and classification of liabilities that may be required should the Company be unable to
continue as a going concern. The Company operates in one segment for the research and development of our product candidates. The Company’ s chief
operating decision maker (“ CODM ”) has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer and President, who reviews operating results to make decisions
about allocating resources and assessing performance for the entire Company based on consolidated financial information. Consequently, we view the
entire organization as one reportable segment and the strategic purpose of all operating activities (including general & administrative expenses) is to
support that one segment. As a pre- revenue research and development company, the CODM evaluates company- wide performance and allocates
resources based on non- financial research and development milestones achieved, and to a lesser extent, financial measures of performance such as clinical
development (research and development expenses) and general and administrative expenses incurred. Our CODM does not generally evaluate our
performance using asset or historical cash flow information. The table below provides a summary of the significant expense categories and consolldated net
loss details provided to the CODM (in thousands): For the year ended December 31, (In thousands) Change Increase (Decrease) 2024 2023
Revente-$—$-500-$(500)-(+06-6) % Operating Expenses: Clinical Research OVATION $ 1,386 $ 1, 197 $ 189 15. 8 % Vaccine 1, 420- 5363399221 , 420 ¥%
OPHMA—950956)100. 0 3% Other €linteal-clinical and regulatory 2,434 1, 793 641 35 :-986-(H3+5- 8 9)-% Subtotal 5,240 2, 990 4-2 , 250 75 3921462y
3+ 393% Non- Clinical R & D and CMC OVATION 1, 819 1, 504 315 20 3;-659+2,3455+58-. 9 3% PlaCCine Vaccine 2,554 4, 511 2-(1 , 957) (439 43 2,072
85~ 6-4) % Manufacturing (CMC) 2, 026 2, 283 (257) (11 5244163983~ 5-3) % Subtotal 6, 399 8, 298 71 , 342-95613-899) (22 . 6-9) % Rescarch and
development expenses 11, 639 11, 288 351 H5-733-446)(3. 1 8% General and administrative expenses 7,493 9, 742 43;-688-( 3-2 , 946249 ) (2823 . 81 )%
Total opualm«Y upu es 19 132 21, ()3()2—5—42%—( 4—1 -3-92—898 ) (-1—7—9 3—0 ) “u Luss from opudllons $ ( 19 132) $ ( 21,030)$ (%4-1 92-2—898 $—( 93—892-)—(—16—

as—reveﬁu&lhsunch and Dcx Llopment EXDLH\C\ Ruunch dlld dev elopmult (“R & D’ ) expenses d&,l.lt,d%&,d $0. 4—3 mllllon to % 11. 3—6 mllllon in 292—3—2024 tmm
$ 11. 43 million in 2822-2023 . Costs associated with the OVATION 2 Study were $ 1. 2-4 and $ 1. 5-2 million in 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respectively. Costs
associated with the OPTFHMA-PlaCCine Vaccine Study were insignifieantin2023-eomparedto-$ 1. 8-4 million in 2622-2024 . Other clinical and regulatory costs
were $ 2. 4 million in 2024 compared to $ 1. 8 million in 2023 eempared-to-$1-—9-miienin2622- R & D costs associated with the development of IMNN- 001 to
support the OVATION 2 Study were $ 1. 5-8 million in 2623-2024 , a-an deerease-increase from $ 0. 3 —7Fmillion in same period of 2622-2023 . The development of
the PLACCINE DNA vaccine technology platform inereased-decreased to $ 2. 6 million in 2024 compared to $ 4. 5 million in 2023 eempared-. CMC costs
decreased to $ 2. 4-0 million in 26222024 compared —EME-eestsinereased-to $ 2. 2-3 million in 2023 eompared-te-$+-—2-mithonin2022- General and
Administrative Expenses General and administrative expenses decreased to $ 7. 5 million in 2024 compared to $ 9. 7 million in 2023

2622-. This decrease is primarily attributable to ewer-the decrease in legal expenses of § 1. 4 million, employee related costs of $ 0. 4 million, non- cash stock
compensation expenses of $ 40 . 3 million, insurance empleyeeretated-costs of $ 0. 8-1 million, and franchise tax tegal-expenses-of $1-—0-millioninsturanee-costs
of $-0-6-million; public-eompany-expenses-of § 0. 2 ml]lum olfsu h} hthu wnsullm; ku of $0.2 ml]lmn Gh&ng&rn—Ea-m—eut—%%estmbmbﬁty—"Fhe—teﬁa-}




income and interest expense The Compdny recognized interest expense of $ 0 2 mllllon in 2023 eempﬁfed—te%é—@-mﬁl-m—m%@%%— As more tully dlseussed in Note
9-7 to our financial statements included in this Annual Report, in June 2021, the Company entered into a $ 10 million loan facility with Silicon Valley Bank. The
Company immediately used $ 6 million from this facility to retire all outstanding indebtedness with Horizon Technology Finance Corporation. -In connection with
the SVB Loan Facility, the Company incurred $ 0. 2 million in interest expense in 2023 eempared-te-$-0-—-5-millienin2022-. In connection with the termination of the
SVB Loan Facility in the second quarter of2023 the Company pald early termination and end of term charges to SVB and recogmzed $0. 3 mrlhon as a loss on
debt extmgulshment A y y
rred-terestexpense i tributed-to-thePrefers erirgs—Investment income from the Company s short- term 1nvestments was $ 0.5
mllllon in 2024 compared to $ l 2 m11hon in 2023 eompared-to-$-0—-5-mithenrinr2022- Income Tax Benefit Annually, the State of New Jersey enables approved
technology and biotechnology businesses with New Jersey NOLs the opportunity to sell these losses through the NOL Program, thereby providing cash to companies
to help fund their research and development and business operations. During 2021, the New Jersey State Legislature increased the maximum lifetime benefit per
company from $ 15 million to $ 20 million, which will allow the Company to participate in this innovative funding program in future years. After the cumulative
NOL sales through 2023, the Company has approximately $ 0. 4 million remaining under the NOL Program. The Company entered into an agreement to sell the
approved portion of the New Jersey NOLs applied for in 2023 for $ 1. 3 million. At December 31, 2023, the Company evaluated the valuation reserve for its NOLs
associated with its New Jersey NOLs and reduced the valuation reserve and recognl7ed $ 1.3 mllhon asa deferred tax asset and an income tax benet't The
Company eompleted the sale of these NOLs i in March of 2024. Puring 0 y d gre pprov

e e 8 3 S f g Fmancml Condmon L1qu1d1ty and Capltal Resourccs Sll’lCC 1ncept10n we havc 1ncurrcd slénn‘lcant
losscs and ncgatlvc cash flows from operations. Wc havc financed our operations primarily through the net proceeds from the sales of equity, credit facilities and
amounts received under our product licensing agreement with Yakult and our technology development agreement with Hisun. The process of developing IMNN- 001
and other drug candidates and technologies requires significant research and development work and clinical trial studies, as well as significant manufacturing and
process development efforts. We expect these activities, together with our general and administrative expenses , to result in significant operating losses for the
foreseeable future. Our expenses have significantly and regularly exceeded our reventte-income , and we had an accumulated deficit of $ 388-407 million at
December 31, 2023-2024 . At December 31, 2023-2024 we had total current assets of $ 48-8 . 2-0 million and current liabilities of $ 7—4 . 8 million, resulting in net
Worklng, capltal of $ -1-9-3 8—2 mllhon At—On December 31, 2-92—3—2024 we had cash and cash equivalents -shert—term-investments;interestreeeivable-onshert-

v e f 0 ats-of § 475 . -9 million. A+On December 31, 2622-2023 , we had
total current asscts 0f$ 3—7—18 2 m11110n and current hablht]cs ofS +6-7 . -1—4 mllhon rcsultmg in net working capital of § 27-10 . +8 million. We have substantral
future capital requirements to continue our research and development activities and advance our drug candidates through various development stages. The Company
believes these expenditures are essential for the commercialization of its technologies. Net cash used in operating activities for 2623-2024 was $ +9-18 . 8-9 million.
Our net loss of $ 49-18 . 5-6 million for 2623-2024 included fh&feﬂewmg—non cash transactlons of $ 0. ~8—5 mllhon in non- eash stock based compensatlon expense
AtOn December 31, 2623-2024 . we had cash and cash equivalents ;-she f eft ;

84745 . 8-9 million. See Flnancm& Overv1ew The Compdny may seek dddltl()l’ldl Cdpltdl throu,g,h further
public or private equity offerings, debt financing, additional strategic alliance and licensing arrangements, collaborative arrangements, or some combination of these
financing alternatives. If we raise additional funds through the issuance of equity securities, the percentage ownership of our stockholders could be significantly
diluted, and the newly issued equity securities may have rights, preferences, or privileges senior to those of the holders of our common stock. If we raise funds
through the issuance of debt securities, those securities may have rights, preferences, and privileges senior to those of our common stock. If we seek strategic
alliances, licenses, or other alternative arrangements, such as arrangements with collaborative partners or others, we may need to relinquish rights to certain of our
existing or future technologies, drug candidates, or products we would otherwise seek to develop or commercialize on our own, or to license the rights to our
technologies, drug candidates, or products on terms that are not favorable to us. The overall status of the economic climate could also result in the terms of any equity
offering, debt financing, or alliance, license, or other arrangement being even less favorable to us and our stockholders than if the overall economic climate were
stronger. We also will continue to look for government sponsored research collaborations and grants to help offset future anticipated losses from operations and, to a
lesser extent, interest income. If adequate funds are not available through either the capital markets, strategic alliances, or collaborators, we may be required to delay
or, reduce the scope of, or terminate our research, development, clinical programs, manufacturing, or commercialization efforts, or effect additional changes to our
facilities or personnel, or obtain funds through other arrangements that may require us to relinquish some of our assets or rights to certain of our existing or future
technologies, drug candidates, or products on terms not favorable to us. Such conditions raise substantial doubts about the Company’ s ability to continue as a going
concern. Management’ s plan includes raising funds from the issuance and sale of its common stock via its ATM program and other funding transactions. However,
as mentioned above, there is no assurance such funding will be available to the Company or that it will be obtained on terms favorable to the Company or will
provide the Company with sufficient funds to meet its objectives. The Company” s financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability
and classification of assets, carrying amounts or the amount and classification of liabilities that may be required should the Company be unable to continue as a going
concern. Off- Balance Sheet Arrangements We do not utilize off- balance sheet financing arrangements as a source of liquidity or financing. ITEM 7A.
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKWe are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b- 2 of the
Exchange Act and are not required to provide the information required under this item. ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY
DATAThe financial statements, supplementary data and report of independent registered public accounting firm required to be filed pursuant to this Item 8 are
appended to this Annual Report beginning on page F- 1. ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSUREITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES (a) Disclosure Controls and ProceduresWe have conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e) under the Exchange
Act under the supervision, and with the participation, of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer. Based on that
evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that as of December 31, 2623-2024 , which is the end of the period covered by
this Annual Report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective. (b) Management’ s Report on Internal Control over Financial ReportingOur management
is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f) under the Exchange
Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, or
persons performing similar functions, and effected by our Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. Our internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and disposition of the assets of the Companys; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with GAAP and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorization of management and
directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’ s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’ s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2023-2024 . In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission in the 2013 Internal Control- Integrated Framework. Based on its evaluation, management has concluded that the Company’ s internal
control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2023-2024 . Pursuant to Regulation S- K Item 308 (b), this Annual Report does not include an
attestation report of the Company” s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Because of its inherent limitations, internal
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. A control
system, no matter how well designed and operated can provide only reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the control system’ s objectives will be met. The
design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their cost. (¢c) Changes in
Internal Control over Financial ReportingThere have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting in the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2623




2024 that were identified in connection with our management’ s evaluation required by paragraph (d) of rules 13a- 15 and 15d- 15 under the Exchange Act, that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATIONRule 10b5- 1
Trading Plans During the year ended December 31, 2823-2024 , no directors or executive officers entered into, modified or terminated, contracts, instructions or
written plans for the sale or purchase of the Company’ s securities that were intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5- 1. ITEM 9C.
DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONSNot applicable. PART IITIITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCEOur Board of Directors currently consists of six members and is divided into three classes of directors serving
staggered three- year terms. Directors for each class are elected at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held in the year in which the term for their class expires and
hold office for a three- year term and until their successors are duly elected and qualified, or their earlier death, resignation or removal. In accordance with our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws, our Board may fill any vacancy on the Board by appointment. Set forth below is certain information
regarding our Company’ s current directors, as well as our non- director executive officers. NAME AGE POSITION (S) CLASS Frederick J. Fritz Director I
Christine Pellizzari Director I James E. Dentzer Director [T Stacy R. Lindborg, Ph. D. President, Chief Executive Officer and Dircctor I Donald P. Braun, Ph. D.
Director III Michael H. Tardugno Executive Chairman III Khursheed Anwer, Ph. D. Executive Vice President and Chief Scientific Officer Susan Eylward General
Counsel SébastienHazard, M-—D-Exeeuntive-VieePresident-and Corporate Secretary Douglas Faller, MD Chief Medical Officer David Gaiero Jeffrey-W—Chureh
Exeeuntive-VieePresident-and-Chief Financial Officer 7Class I Directors (Term expires in 2026) Mr. Frederick J. Fritz. Mr. Fritz was appointed to our Board of
Directors in July 2011. Mr. Fritz has served as CEO and Founder of NeuroDx, a development stage diagnostic device company focused on the neurosurgery market,
since 2006. Mr. Fritz joined NeuroDx from Valeo Medical, a biotechnology company he founded in 2003 to develop the world’ s first non- invasive diagnostic test
for endometriosis. Prior to that, Mr. Fritz was President and CEO of Songbird Hearing, Inc., a medical device company spun out of Sarnoff Corporation. Mr. Fritz
began his career in marketing management and new product development. He joined Schering Plough’ s Wesley Jessen in 1985 as VP Marketing and Sales in 1986.
He was promoted to general manager of Schering” s Over the Counter pharmaceutical business in 1988 and of the podiatric products business in 1990. He was
President of Coleman North America from 1995 to 1997. Mr. Fritz holds a bachelor’ s degree in engineering (summa cum laude) from University of Illinois and an
MBA degree from Harvard University. Ms. Christine A. Pellizzari. Ms. Pellizzari was appointed to our Board of Directors in June 2021. Ms. Pellizzari has-most
recently served as the Chief Legal Officer and Human Resources Officer of Science 37 sineeJuly-(formerly Nasdaq: SNCE), a developer of leading
decentralized clinical trial solutions, where she had global responsibility for both the legal and human resource functions and also oversaw quality and
privacy from 2021 through 2024 . Immediately Prior-prior to joining Science 37, Ms. Pellizzari served as the General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of Insmed,
Inc., (Nasdaq: INSM) a publicly traded biotech company focused on serious and rare diseases, from 2013 to 2018 and as Chief Legal Officer from 2018 to 2021.
From 2007 through 2012 Ms. Pellizzari held various legal positions of increasing responsibility at Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, most recently as Executive Vice
President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary. Prior to Aegerion, Ms. Pellizzari was Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary at Dendrite
International, Inc., a formerly publicly traded company that provided sales effectiveness, promotional and compliance solutions to the pharmaceutical industry. Ms.
Pellizzari joined Dendrite from the law firm of Wilentz, Goldman & Spitzer, where she specialized in health care transactions and related regulatory matters. Ms.
Pellizzari has nearly three decades of relevant experience, including having served for over 25 years as Chief Legal Officer and General Counsel of publicly traded
companies in biopharmaceutical and related industries. Ms. Pellizzari also serves on the board of directors of Tempest Therapeutics (Nasdaq: TPST) , a public
clinical- stage oncology company and Neurosense Therapeutics (Nasdaq: NRSN) , a public clinical- stage development company advancing treatments for severe
neurodegenerative diseases. Ms. Pellizzari received her Bachelor of Arts, cum laude, from the University of Massachusetts (Amherst) and her Juris Doctor degree
from the University of Colorado School of Law. She is a member of Global Leaders in Law, Executive Women in Bio, Women Corporate Directors, National
Association of Corporate Directors, Association of Corporate Counsel, Society for Corporate Governance and National Association of Stock Plan Professionals.
Class II Directors (Term expires in 26242027 ) Mr. James E. Dentzer. Mr. Dentzer was appointed to our Board of Directors in September 2022. He has been
President and Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Board of Directors of Curis, Inc. (Nasdaq: CRIS) since September 2018. From March 2018 to September
2018, Mr. Dentzer served as Curis’ Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer. From March 2016 to March 2018, Mr. Dentzer served as Curis’ Chief
Administrative Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Dentzer has also held the positions of secretary and treasurer from March 2016 to March 2019. Prior to
joining Curis, Mr. Dentzer served as Chief Financial Officer of Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a formerly publicly traded biotechnology company, from December
2013 to December 2015. Prior to that, he was the Chief Financial Officer of Valeritas, Inc., a formerly publicly traded medical technology company, from March
2010 to December 2013. Prior to joining Valeritas, Inc., he was the Chief Financial Officer of Amicus Therapeutics, Inc. (Nasdaq: FOLD), a biotechnology
company, from October 2006 to October 2009. In prior positions, he spent six years as Corporate Controller of Biogen Inc. (Nasdaq: BIIB), a biotechnology
company, and six years in various senior financial roles at E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, a chemical, petroleum and biotechnology company, in the U. S.
and Asia. Mr. Dentzer holds a B. A. degree in Philosophy from Boston College and an M. B. A. from the University of Chicago. Dr. Stacy R. Lindborg. Dr.
Lindborg , a swas-appeinted-to-ourBoard-of Direetors— director since indune-2021 , has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since
May 2024 . Dr. Lindborg , a globally recognized biostatistician, brings to lmunon nearly 30 mere-than25-ycars of pharmaceutical and biotech industry
experience with a particular focus on R & D, regulatory affairs, executive management and strategy. She has worked with biologics, small molecules and cell
therapies to address a broad range of diseases and disorders, including multiple Orphan drug products, along with extensive experience in early- stage development
having taken molecules from first - in - marrhuman studies into the clinic , through regulatory approval and commercial launch. Prior to joining the Company,
Dr. Lindborg held ~s-helds-the position of co- Chief Executive Officer at Brainstorm Cell Therapeutics (Nasdaq: BCLI), which she joined in 2020 , and where she
also currently serves as an independent director since May 2024 . From 2012 to 2020, she held positions of increasing responsibility at Blogen—whefe-she
wotked-in-biostatt and-btometries;and served as Vice President for Global Analytics and Data Sciences. Prior to her time at Biogen, Dr. Lindborg jeined-had
worked at Eli Lilly and Company (NYSE: LLY) #rsince 1996 meving-advancing through the organization to serve from 2010 to 2012 as Head of R & D Strategy
with responsibility for characterizing the productivity of the portfolio and deiving-advancing key R & D strategy projects tneluding-the-annaal-by connecting
individual drug- development decisions to portfolio risk practices and driving fundamental R & D Leng—RangePlan-decisions to increase the number of
drug launches D1 Llndborg is-recelved an M. A and a gfad-ua-t&e-fPh D. in statistics from Baylor University where-shereeeived-aPh-—D-and-M-—A—in

g A maties-. She has authored more than fifey-50 abstracts, 200 presentatlons dnd 45-40 manuscripts that have
been pubhshed in peer- rev1ewed J()ledlb She has held numerous positions within the American serves-enseveral-industry-advisery-beardsrelated-to-statistt
Statistical Association and bieteehnology-International Biometric Society and was elected Fellow in 2008 . 58-Class III Directors (Term expires in 2025) Dr.
Donald P. Braun. Dr. Braun was appointed to our Board of Directors in December 2015. Dr. Braun has over 35 years of research experience in oncology, cancer
immunology, cancer immunotherapy, and inflammatory diseases. He is the author of more than 120 published peer- reviewed manuscripts, twenty- five reviews and
book chapters, and co- editor of a book on the role of prostaglandins and other COX 2 metabolites in cancer patient immunity and immunotherapy. He served from
2006 to 2014 as Vice President Clinical Research, after which he served as Vice President Translational Research and Chief Science Officer at the Cancer Treatment
Centers of America until his retirement in May 2016. Prior to this role, he was the Scientific Director of the Cancer Center and Professor of Medicine and
Immunology at Rush Medical College in Chicago from 1978 to 1999, and the Administrative Director of the Cancer Institute and a Professor of Surgery with tenure
at the Medical College of Ohio from 1999 to 2006. He received his Ph. D. in Immunology and Microbiology from the University of Illinois at the Medical Center in
Chicago. Dr. Braun has served as an advisor to numerous public agencies and private corporations concerned with cancer therapeutics and diagnostics. At the
National Cancer Institute, Dr. Braun served as a member of the Experimental Therapeutics Study Section; the Small Business Innovation Grant Review Study
Section; and the Experimental Therapy program for * Molecular Targets in Lung Cancer. ” He served as a member of the Immunology and Immunotherapy Study
Section of the American Cancer Society- National Division; as a Member of the Ohio Cancer Incidence Surveillance System; as a Member of the Biomedical
Research Technology Transfer Commission for the State of Ohio; and as an advisor to the State of Arizona’ s Disease Research Control Commission. Dr. Braun has
also served as a consultant to numerous pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies developing cancer treatments and diagnostics including Pfizer Inc. (NYSE:
PFE), Sterling Winthrop, Abbott Laboratories (NYSE: ABT), Boehringer Mannheim, Serono Corporation, Biomira Inc., Centocor and Merck KGA. Mr. Michael H.
Tardugno. Mr. Tardugno was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on January 3, 2007, and was elected to the Board of Directors on
January 22, 2007. In October of 2014, Mr. Tardugno was appointed by our Board of Directors as our Chairman. Effective July 18, 2022, Mr. Tardugno transitioned
from the roles of President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman to the position of Executive Chairman of the Board . From March 15, 2024, Mr. Tardugno
served as interim Chief Executive Officer until the appointment of Dr. Lindborg effective May 13, 2024 . Prior to joining the Company and for the period from
February 2005 to December 2006, Mr. Tardugno served as Senior Vice President and General Manager of Mylan Technologies, Inc., a subsidiary of Mylan Inc.
From 1998 to 2005, Mr. Tardugno was Executive Vice President of Songbird Hearing, Inc., a medical device company spun out of Sarnoff Corporation. From 1996
to 1998, he was Senior Vice President of Technical Operations worldwide for a division of Bristol- Myers Squibb (NYSE: BMY), and from 1977 to 1995, he held




increasingly senior executive positions including Senior Vice President of Worldwide Technology Development with Bausch & Lomb (NYSE, TSX: BLCO) and
Abbott Laboratories (NYSE: ABT). Mr. Tardugno holds a B. S. degree from St. Bonaventure University and completed the Harvard Business School Program for
Management Development. Executive Officers The following are the biographical summaries for each of our executive officers , other than Dr. Stacy R.
Lindborg, whose biographical summary is described above . Each executive officer is elected by yand serves at the pleasure of ;our Board of Directors.
Khursheed Anwer, Ph. D. Dr. Anwer joined us in June 2014 as Executive Vice President and Chief Scientific Officer, in connection with our acquisition of all the
assets of EGWU, Inc. (formerly known as Egen, Inc.), an Alabama corporation (or “ EGEN 7). Before joining the Company, Dr. Anwer served as EGEN’ s President
and Chief Scientific Officer, a position he held since 2009. He joined EGEN in July 2002 as Vice President of Research and Development and directed EGEN’ s
clinical and research and development functions. Before joining EGEN, Dr. Anwer was Director of Pre- Clinical Development at Valentis, Inc. from July 2000 to
June 2002. From 1993 to 1999, he served in several positions at GeneMedicine, Inc., where he led several research projects in the area of non- viral gene therapy. He
has authored more than 40 publications in the area of non- viral gene therapy, resulting from his active career in research and development. Dr. Anwer holds a Ph. D

in physiology plhumacolou from Ohio University and received post- doctoral training from the University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston. Dr. Anwer
also has a master” s in business administration from the University of Alabama. Susan Eylward Ms 59-Sébastien-Hazard;M-. B—On-DPeeember7;-Eylward joined
the Company in October 2623-2024 -Br-as General Counsel and Corporate Secretary . Hazard-Prior to her position with the Company, Ms. Eylward served
as Senior Counsel at Science 37, Inc. (formerly Nasdaq: SNCE), a solutions organization focused on decentralized clinical trials, from January 2022
through April 2024, where she was appeinted-responsible for a variety of complex legal matters, including, among others, corporate governance, securities
compliance, executive compensation, and acquisitions. Prior to that, Ms. Eylward served as Exeeutive-corporate counsel and Vice President at the Allstate
Corporation (NYSE: ALL) during 2021, at National General Holdings Corp. (formerly Nasdaq: NGHC) from September 2014 through December 2020,
and at Tower Group International, Ltd. (formerly Nasdaq: TWGP) from May 2009 through September 2014, and at each of the foregoing, she had
responsibility for various corporate legal matters including governance, securities law, alternative investments and transactions. From 2004 through 2009,
Ms. Eylward practiced law at Dewey & LeBoeuf LLP, where she represented public and private companies for equity and debt offerings, as well as
mergers and acquisitions. Ms. Eylward received a Juris Doctor from New York Law School and a Bachelor of Arts in Accounting from Boston College.
Douglas Faller, MD Dr. Faller, and— an internationally recognized oncologist / hematologist and scientist, has nearly 30 years of pharmaceutical and
biotech industry experience with a particular focus on clinical R & D, discovery, regulatory affairs, and strategy development. He has worked with small
molecules, gene therapies, biologics and cell therapies to address a range of malignant and non- malignant diseases and disorders, including rare and
genetic diseases, and neurological and neuropsychiatric disorders. He has extensive experience in early- stage development as well as global late- stage
development and world- wide marketing approvals. He has taken molecules (including those discovered in his own academic laboratories) from first- in-
human studies in the clinic, through registrational trials, international regulatory approvals and commercial launch. Prior to his position with the
Company, Dr. Faller served as Chicf Medical Officer of Skyhawk Therapeutics beginning in 2024, where the— he led the development Cempany;effeetive-as
of Peeember+5-splicing modulators for the treatment of oncological and neurological disorders. From 2623-2022 through 2024, Jmmediately-prior-tojoining
the— he Cempany; Dr—Hazardscrved as Chief Medical Officer Sentor-VieePresidentHead-of €linteal-Oryzon Genomics, leading the development of
epigenetic- modifying small molecules in oncology and neuropsychiatric disorders, and prior to that role, from 2015 through 2022, Dr. Faller was Executive
Medical Director at Takeda Pharmaceuticals, where he led multiple programs in hematologic oncology, solid tumor malignancies and rare diseases, from
first- in- human to global registrational trials and post- marketing trials. He was also extensively involved in Business Dcvelopment for oncology,
hematology and rare diseases. Dr. Faller was the scientific founder and CMO / CSO of Viracta Therapeutics, which he joined in 2019 and remained
through 2021, after it became publicly traded and launched a pivotal trial of his therapeutic. Dr. Faller is the sc1entlﬁc founder or co- founder of four
blopharma companles. Prior to worklng full- tlme m the blopharmaceutlcal industry, Dr. Faller was a professor at

Medical School and

an attendlng physician at G—S—IG&@m—J-uﬂe%OH—te—Apfﬂ%@%—l—Brlgham and Women s Hospltal Boston Children’ s Hospital and Dana- Farber Cancer
Institute . He founded and directed the Comprehensive Cancer Center at Boston University, where he also served as Senter-the first Grunebaum Professor
for Cancer Research, Vice- Chairman of the Department of Medicine, and Professor of Medicine, Biochemistry, Pediatrics, Microbiology, Pathology and
Laboratory Medicine. Dr. Faller received a B. S. in biochemistry from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, an MD from Harvard Medical Direetorof
Gl-mtea-]—Beve}epmeﬁt-School and a PhD from the Massachusetts Instltute }&ﬁeﬂ—teMaﬁQ+9—&nd—SemerMedieal—Bﬁeetoﬂ)i Technology Global-Medieat
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230 presentations an-and 375 manuscrlpts that have been published adv ug-Ageney-an a
Br-Hazard-helds-aDeetorate-in Medieine;-peer- reviewed journals. He is certlﬁed in lnlLllldl Medicine aﬂd—Pubhe—Heak-h—frem—Paﬂs—‘«LI—Fme—S&pe&Iefe-
Hematology an-and Oncology, Exeeutive-M-—B—A—fronrINSEAD-and is a Fellow of the American College of Physicians master-s-degree-in-epidemiology-and
statisties-apphied-to-elinteal researeh-fromParis-Vi-Untversity- David Gaiero M. Gaiero Jeffrey-W-—Chureh—Mr—Chureh-joined us-the Company in July-26+6-May
2024 as VieePrestdent-Chief Financial Officer pursuant to a professional agreement (the “ Agreement ”) between the Company and Cerperate-Seeretary
Monomoy Advisors, LLC, a ﬁnanual adv1sory serv1ces firm (“ Monomoy ”) He currently serves as a partner w1th Monomoy Prior to Jommg Monomoy in
May 2024 Mr. Galero e 8 : : _Chy W

jeéﬂiﬂg—ﬂae—@empaﬂy—Mr—Ght&eh—m\ ed as Chief l- nmmml ()ﬁlu.l of Cytelr Therapeutlcs, Inc. Prlor to joining Cytelr Therapeutlcs in December 2020 Mr.
Gaiero served in various roles at Wave Life Sciences (Nasdaq: WVE) from July 2017 to December 2020, most recently servmg as Interim Chlef Fmanclal
Officer and prior to that, serving as Vice President and Corporate Controller. Prior to joining Wave
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finance and accounting at BieSpheries-iRobot Corporation an ¢ y y a . He-started-Mr. Gaiero
began his carcer in public accounting at PrlcewaterhouseCoopers LLP vﬁth—P-ﬂee—Watefheuse—ffem—l—Q%—uﬂtﬁ%&é— Ml Ghureh—helds—Galero received a B. §&
B . degree-A. in aceounting-Accounting from the University of Maryland-Massachusetts, Amherst, and is a Certified Public Accountant in Massachusetts .
Delinquent Scction 16 (a) Benefietal-OwnershipReperting-Reports Comphanee-Scction 16 (a) of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers, directors and
persons who own more than 10 % of our common stock to file reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of common stock and other equity securities
of the Company with the SEC. Executive officers, directors and greater than 10 % stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all
Section 16 (a) forms they file. We have identified the following reports required to be filed by insiders under Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act that were not
filed in a timely manner: one late report by Stacy Lindborg relating to one transaction and one late report by Donald Braun relating to one transaction. To
our knowledge, based solely on a review of the copies of reports furnished to us, we believe that during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , our executive
officers, directors and greater than 10 % stockholders complied with all Section 16 (a) filing requirements. Code of Ethics Our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct
is applicable to all employees, including the principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer or controller, or persons
performing similar functions. The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct is posted on our website at www. imunon. com. Corporate Governance Audit Committee
Our Audit Committee consists of Mr. James A. Dentzer (Chair), Mr. Frederick J. Fritz and Ms. Christine Pellizzari. Our Audit Committee operates under a written
charter as amended and restated effective January 24, 2023. A copy of that charter, as may be amended from time to time, is available on our web site, located at
http: // www. imunon. com. Additional copies of the charter are available upon written request to us. 68-Our Audit Committee assists our Board of Directors in
fulfilling its responsibility to oversee management’ s implementation of our financial reporting process. In discharging its oversight role, the Audit Committee
reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements contained in our 2623-2024 Annual Report on Form 10- K with our management and independent registered
public accounting firm. Management is responsible for the financial statements and the reporting process, including the system of internal controls. Our independent
registered public accounting firm is responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of those financial statements with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U. S. Our Board has determined that all members of the Audit Committee meet the independence standards established by the SEC and Nasdaq. Our
Board has determined that Mr. Dentzer is qualified to serve as the “ audit committee financial expert ” as defined by Item 407 (d) (5) of Regulation S- K and that Mr.
Fritz and Ms. Pellizzari meet the financial literacy requirements under applicable Nasdaq rules. Nomination of Directors There have been no changes to the




procedures by which stockholders may recommend nominees to our Board of Directors. Insider Trading Policy Our board of directors has adopted an insider
trading policy which governs the purchase, sales, and / or other dispositions of our securities by directors, officers, and employees. Our insider trading
policy is attached hereto as Exhibit 19 and incorporated herein. Our insider trading policy is designed to promote compliance with insider trading laws, rules
and regulations and, among other things, prohibits our officers, directors, and employees from, among other things, engaging in short sales, transactions in derivative
securities (including put and call options) or other forms of hedging transactions (i. e., zero- cost collars, equity swaps, exchange funds and forward sale contracts)
that are designed to hedge or offset any decrease in the market value of equity securities (1) granted to the executive officer or director by the Company as part of the
compensation of such individual, or (2) held, directly or indirectly, by the executive officer or director. 6+-ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
COMPENSATIONCompensation of Executive Officers This section discusses the material components of the executive compensation program for our
executive officers who are named in the “ 2024 Summary Compensation Table Fhe-” below. In 2024, our “ named executive officers ” and their positions were
as follows: e Stacy Lindborg, our President and Chief Executive Officer; ® Michael Tardugno, our Executive Chairman and former President and Chief
Executive Officer; @ Corinne Le Goff, our former President and Chief Executive Officer; ® Khursheed Anwer, our Executive Vice President and Chief
Scientific Officer; ® David Gaiero, our Chief Financial Officer; and e Jeffrey Church, our former Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Corporate SecretaryThe following table sets forth information regarding the total compensation for serv 1uus rendered in all capacities during the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022- awarded to, paid to, or wlmd by each “ Named Executive Officer . ” serving-as-of Deeember3+2023—-All compensation
awarded to, earned by, or paid to IMUNON’ s Named Executive Officers are-is included in the table below for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2622~ Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Stock Awards (1) Option Awards £5~(2) Non- Equity Incentive Plan Compensation ( 2-3 ) All Other
Compensation (34 ) Total ($) Stacy Lindborg (5) 2024 $ 341, 954 $- $ 26, 500 $ 335, 641 $- $ 1, 745 $ 705, 839 President & CEO Michael Tardugno (6) 2024
$ 336, 639 $- $- $ 213, 072 $- $ 10, 099 $ 559, 810 Executive Chairman & former interim CEO Corinne Le Goff (47 ) 2024 $ 148, 869 $- $- $- $- $- $ 148, 869
Former President and CEO 2023 $ 658, 080 § —$—-=$ 107, 775 $ 274,959 § 15,000 $ 1, 055, 814 President-&-CEO2022-$264;,000-5—$97500-5308,564-$
+57250-$-56:-480-$-883;794-K hursheed Anwer ( 5-8 ) 2023-2024 $ 442-385 , 760-610 S —- §$ - $ 47-900-87. 678 & - $ 149, 125 2845 94-622 , 413 218-$-680159
Exccutive VP & CSO 2622-2023 $ 382412 , 629-760 $ —- S - 19:-500-5 H8-47 , 286-900 $ 439-125 | 737-281 § 94, 18-218 ;-506-5 678-680 , 658-159 David Gaiero
(9) 2024 $ 280, 000 $- $- $- $- $- $ 280, 000 CFO Jeffrey Church (6-10 ) 2623-2024 $ 444251 , 296-337 § — § — $ 479 . 966-816 & H5-726-5 75498 , 666-615 $
679759 . 922-768 Former Exccutive VP & CFO 2022-2023 $ 469441 , 822-296 5 — $ —- $ 8747 , H5-900 $ +39-115 , 894-726 £ —75, 000 $ 636-679 . 631922 (|
) The value reported for restricted stock awards is the aggregate grant date fair value of restricted stock granted to the Named Executive Officer in the year
shown, determined in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. (2 ) The value reported for option awards is the aggregate grant date fair value of stock options
granted to the Named Executive Officers in the years shown, determined in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, disregarding adjustments for forfeiture
assumptions. The assumptions for making the valuation determinations are set forth in Note 42-11 to the Company’ s financial statements for the sear-years ended
December 31, 2622-2024 and December 31, 2023 included in the Company’ s Annual Reports on Form 10- K for each of those years. With respect to Dr.
Lindborg, the column includes the annual grant of options to Dr. Lindborg as part of the non- employee director compensation program. ( 2-3 ) Executives’
bonuses under our annual incentive program are based on the achievement of specific performance measures established at the beginning of the fiscal year by our
Compensation Committee. Historically, our Compensation Committee has awarded the annual incentive bonus for each year in the first quarter of the following year.
Our In-the-firstguarterof 2624-our-Compensation Committee has not approved the amount and the payment of the incentive bonus for 2623-2024 for each of the
Named Executive Officers in the form of stock awards and Non- Equity (Cash) Incentive Plan Compensation and-steek-awards-. (3-4 ) This column includes other
compensation as indicated below and matching and discretionary contributions made by the Company for the Named Executive Officers under our 401 (k) plan. Our
matching contribution is equal to 50 % of the employee’ s deferrals under the plan up to 6 % of the employee’ s compensation, subject to applicable IRS limitations,
and are made in shares of our common stock. (4-5 ) Dr. Fe-GeffLindborg, a director since 2021, joined the Company as President and Chief Executive Officer
and, effective as of May 13, 2024. Dr. Lindborg became a Named Executive Officer for the first time in 2024. For Dr. Lindborg, the amount in the “ Salary
” column reflects $ 14, 838 that Dr. Lindborg received as her cash retainer for her service as a non- employee dircctor effeetive-prior to becoming the
Company’ s President and CEO in May 2024, as well as efJuly18,2022-and-stepped-down-from-these—- the base salary amount received by Dr. Lindborg
during fiscal year 2024, which was pro- rated for the time served in her employee positions during fiscal year -effeetive-Mareh15;-2024. For Dr. Lindborg +e
Goff- All Other Compensation ” for 2623-2024 consists of a 401 (k)- plan matching contribution of § +5-1 , 866-745 in our common stock. ( 5-6 ) Mr. Tardugno,
the Company’ s Executive Chairman, served as the Company’ s interim Chief Executive Officer from March 15, 2024 until May 13, 2024. F'or B+Mr .
Anwer-Tardugno , “ All Other Compensation ” for 2623-2024 consists of a 401 (k)- plan matching contribution of $ 75-10, 099 in our common stock. (7) Dr. Le
Goff joined the Company as President and Chief Executive Officer and as a director, effective as of July 18, 2022, and stepped down from these positions,
effective March 15, 2024. For Dr. Le Goff, the amount in the “ Salary ” column reflects the base salary amount received by Dr. Le Goff during fiscal year
2024, which was pro- rated for the time served in her employee positions during fiscal year 2024. (8) For Dr. Anwer, “ All Other Compensation ” for 2024
consists of $ 133 , 000 for a retention bonus paid in July 2023-2024 . $ 6-5 , 237775 for discretionary spending allowance and a 401 (k)- plan matching contribution
of $ 4210 , 984350 in our common stock. (6-9 ) Mr. Gaiero joined the Company as Chief Financial Officer, effective as of June 1, 2024. For Mr. Gaiero, the
amount in the “ Salary ” column reflects the pro- rated amount received by Monomoy Advisors, LLC for the time served by Mr. Gaiero in his position of
CFO during fiscal year 2024. (10) Mr. Church retired from the positions of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, effective as of June 1,
2024. For Mr. Church, the amount in the “ Salary ” column reflects the base salary amount received by Mr. Church during fiscal year 2024, which was pro-
rated for the time served in his employee positions during fiscal year 2024. For Mr. Church *“ All Other Compensation ” for 2623-2024 consists of $ 7#5-428, 615
in severance paid, in connection with his retirement, and $ 70 , 000 for aretention-benus-patd-consulting services he provided in Jul2623-2024 post-
retirement . 62-Narrative Disclosure to 2623-2024 Summary Compensation Table Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control Employment
Arrangements Employment Agreement with Stacy R. Lindborg, Ph. D. The Company and Dr. Lindborg entered into an employment agreement effective
as of May 31, 2024, in connection with her appointment as President and Chief Executive Officer. Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, the Company
agreed to pay Dr. Lindborg an initial salary of $ 567, 000 and a targeted annual performance bonus of 100 % of her annual base salary (pro- rated for the
year ended December 31, 2024). Dr. Lindborg also received (i) an option to purchase 112, 500 shares of the Company’ s common stock and (ii) an
additional option to purchase 112, 500 shares of the Company’ s common stock following the Company’ s 2024 annual meeting of stockholders. Both stock
options will vest in equal fourths over four years, with the first 28, 125 options vesting on the first anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining three-
fourths vesting in equal parts on subsequent anniversaries of the grant date. Dr. Lindborg is eligible to receive a sign- on bonus from the Company of $ 200,
000 subject to certain conditions. Dr. Lindborg’ s initial term of employment pursuant to the Employment Agreement is one year, to be extended
automatically by an additional year at the end of such term and each subsequent one- year term absent three months’ prior written notice by Dr. Lindborg
or the Company. Following the effective date of her employment with the Company, Dr. Lindborg did not receive any additional compensation for her
service on the Board. Dr. Lindborg’ s employment agreement provides that, upon a termination of Dr. Lindborg’ s employment by the Company without *
cause ” or by Dr. Lindborg for “ good reason, ” as each such term is defined in her employment agreement: (x) outside the Change in Control Protection
Period (as defined in the employment agr: t), (i) Dr. Lindborg will be entitled to receive an amount equal to 12 months of her then- current base
salary, payable in equal monthly installments during the 12- month period following such termination and reimbursement of her COBRA premiums for up
to 12 months, and (ii) all of her options and similar awards would generally remain exercisable for the remainder of the original term of the award, and (y)
during the Change in Control Protection Period, (i) Dr. Lindborg will be entitled to receive an amount equal to 24 months of her then- current base salary,
payable in equal monthly installments during the 12- month period following such termination and reimbursement of her COBRA premiums for up to 12
months, (ii) full acceleration of then- unvested portions of the options awarded to Dr. Lindborg in connection with her appointment as CEO and (iii) all of
her options and similar awards would generally remain exercisable for the remainder of the original term of the award. [mployment Agreement with
Corinne Le Goff The Company and Dr. Le Goff entered into an employment agreement effective as of July 18, 2022, in connection with her appointment as
President and Chief Executive Officer, Pursuant to the employment agreement, the Company agreed to pay Dr. Le Goff an initial salary of $ 624, 000 and a signing
bonus $ 50, 000. Dr. Le Goff” s targeted annual performance bonus was 72 % of her annual base salary (pro- rated for the year ended December 31, 2022). Dr. Le
Goff also received (i) an option to purchase 177, 000 shares of the Company’ s common stock that vested with respect to 25 % of the subject shares on July 18, 2023
and the remaining 75 % percent to vest in equal quarterly installments thereafter such that the stock option would be fully vested and exercisable as of the fourth
anniversary of July 18, 2022, and (ii) a restricted stock award of 53, 000 restricted shares that vested on July 18, 2023. Dr. Le Goff did not receive any additional
compensation for her service on the Board. The agreement had no set term of employment and provided that in the event of termination by the Company other than
for cause, Dr. Le Goff would receive an amount equal to one year’ s salary as a-severance payment. Effective March 15, 2024, Dr. Le Goff resigned from her




positions as President, Chief Executive Officer and Director of the Company. Employment Agreements— Agreement with OtherNamed-Michael H. Tardugno
Effective July 18, 2022, Mr. Tardugno transitioned from his roles as Chairman, President and Chief Fxccutive Offieers— Officer Jeffrey-Chureh-The-to the
position of Executive Chairman of the Board. Mr. Tardugno and the Company and-Mr—Churehentered into an employment effertetter-agreement, effective as
of July 18, 2022, that superseded the previous employment agreement with Mr. Tardugno. The agreement has a term ending on June-+5-December 31 , 2646
2024, with the option for a one- year extension that was exercised . Under the agreement, the Company agreed to pay Mr. Shureh-Tardugno a base salary of
$ 500, 000 (prorated to $ 240, 000) for 2022 and a base salary of $ 350, 000 for 2023 and 2024, and to reimburse him for all reasonable business expenses.
Mr. Tardugno remains eligible for annual performance bonuses and equity awards and may participate in all compensation and benefit programs
generally made available to other senior executives. In the event of termination by the Company other than for cause, Mr. Tardugno will receive an amount
equal to one year ' s employmentis-salary as a severance payment. Consulting Agreement with Monomoy Advisors, LLC The Company and Monomoy
Advisors, LLC ( “ Monomoy at—will=" hewever-) , subjeetto-Mr—Chureh-a financial advisory services firm, entered into a professional consulting agreement,
effective as of June 1, 2024, in connection with the appointment of David Gaiero as the Company '’ s premotion-Chief Financial Officer. Pursuant to the
Agreement, the Company agreed to pay Monomoy $ 35, 000 per month for Mr. Gaiero’ s service as the Company’ s Chief Financial Officer. Retirement and
Consulting Agreement with Jeffrey Church Effective June 1, 2024, Mr. Church retired from his roles as Exccutive Vice President indanuary 2649 ifwe
terminate-Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary. On May 17, 2024, the Company and Mr. Church 2s-entered into a retirement and consulting
agreement (the “ Retirement and Consulting Agreement ”) that superseded the previous ciiployment agreement with Mr. Church, pursuant to which he
agreed to provide the Company consulting services for a term ending on December 31, 2024, with any— an reaserroption for an agreed upon extension ( other
-- the thanjusteause-*“ Consulting Period ). During the Consulting Period , sve-wil-the Company agreed to pay Mr. Church a monthly retainer of $ 10, 000,
plus an additional $ 250 for each hour of services performed in excess of 40 hours per month. In addition, pursuant to the Retirement and Consulting
Agreement, Mr. Church received (i) within 30 days following his Retirement Date, any accrued but unpaid salary eentintationrand COBRA-premiums-any
unreimbursed business expenses incurred prior to his Retirement Date and (ii) a retirement bonus in the amount of $ 428, 615. Mr. Church also remalned
eligible to receive a pro- rated bonus for 2024 up-to-twelve-months- Thesalary-a W h W
ﬁnds—ﬂeW—efﬂp-l-eyﬁeﬂ-t—Employment Offer Letter with Khursheed Anwer prt

fa&%—ﬁef-t-he—@em-paﬂy.—Thc (.‘ompany and Dr. /\n\\ er entered into an cmploymcm offer letter effective as of June 20, 2014. Dr. Anwer’ s employment with us is “ at-
will ”; however, subject to the retention and severance agreement between the Company and Dr. Anwer dated as of May 28, 2014, if we terminate Dr. Anwer’ s
employment without cause (as such term is defined in the retention and severance agreement), he will be entitled to receive cash severance equal to 12 months of his
base salary and reimbursement of his COBRA premiums for up to 12 months. Dr. Anwer’ s right to receive these severance benefits is subject to his providing a
release of claims in favor of the Company. CIC Agreements— Agreement We have entered into an amended and restated double- trigger change in control severance
agreements— agreement (C1C Agreements— Agreement ) with Mr each-ofthe Named Exeentive-Offieers{other than D Tardugno Anwer-who-is-notstubjeetto
suehanagreement-to provide severance benefits to him these-exeentives-should thetr-his ecmployment terminate in certain circumstances in connection with a
change in control of the Company (a “ CIC ). Under the amended and restated CIC Agreements, in the event that, on or within two years after a CIC, we terminate
the executive’ s employment without cause or in the event that the executive terminates his employment for good reason, the executive would be entitled to receive a
cash lump sum payment equal to two (2) times the sum of (1) the executive’ s annual base salary and (2) the executive’ s target annual bonus for the fiscal year in
which the termination occurs. (For these purposes, the terms “ cause, ” “ good reason ” and ““ change in control ” are each defined in the CIC Agreement.) In
addition, we will pay or reimburse the executive for the cost of COBRA premiums and life insurance coverage for the executive and his eligible dependents, in each
case for a period of up to two years following the termination. The executive would also be entitled to full acceleration of his then- outstanding equity awards
granted to him by us. However, as to any equity award agreement that is subject to performance- based vesting requirements, the vesting of such an award will
continue to be governed by its terms. In the case of options or similar awards, the award would generally remain exercisable for the remainder of the original term of
the award (or, in the case of awards that vested after the date of the CIC, for the lesser of 12 months following the last day such award would have been exercisable
under the applicable award agreement and the remainder of the original term). The benefits provided under the CIC Agreement are in addition to, and not in lieu of,
any severance benefits the executive may be entitled to receive in connection with the termination of his employment under any other agreement with the Company.
The executive’ s right to benefits under the CIC Agreement is subject to his execution of a release of claims in favor of the Company upon the termination of his
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has authority to interpret the plan provisions and make all required determinations under the plan. This authority includes making required proportionate adjustments
to outstanding awards upon the occurrence of certain corporate events such as reorganizations, mergers, and stock splits, and making provision to ensure that any tax
withholding obligations incurred in respect of awards are satisfied. Awards granted under the plan are generally only transferable to a beneficiary of a Named

Executive Officer upon his death. Under the terms of the 2018 Plan, if there is a change in control of the Company, each Named Executive Officer’ s outstanding
awards granted under the plan will generally terminate, unless the Compensation Committee provides for the substitution, assumption, exchange or other
continuation or settlement (in cash, securities, or property) of the outstanding awards. The Compensation Committee has the discretion to provide for outstanding
awards to become vested in connection with a change in control. The Compensation Committee does not take material nonpublic information into account
when determining the timing and terms of equity awards. The Company does not time the disclosure of material nonpublic information for the purpose of
affecting the value of executive compensation. Fach option granted to the Named Executive Officers in 2023-2024 was granted with a per- share exercise price
equal to the closing price of our common stock on the grant date. Each option is scheduled to vest in three installments, with one- third-half vesting on the date of
grant and the-balanee-one- fourth vesting on inrequat-annual-instalments-overeaehof the next-twe-years-first and second anniversary of the date of the grant .
subject in each case to the executive’ s continued employment through the applicable vesting date and has a maximum term of ten years. However, vested options
may terminate earlier in connection with a change in control transaction or a termination of the Named Executive Officer’ s employment. Subject to any accelerated
vesting that may apply in the circumstances, the unvested portion of the option will immediately terminate upon a termination of the Named Executive Officer’ s =
employment. 64-Each share of restricted stock granted to Dr. Lindborg in 2024 is scheduled to fully vest on the first anniversary of the grant date, subject to
the executive’ s continued employment through the applicable vesting date. Subject to any accelerated vesting that may apply in the circumstances, the
unvested portion of the restricted stock will immediately terminate upon the termination of the Named Executive Officer’ s employment. The following
table sets forth the stock options and restricted stock shares granted to our named executive officers in the 2024 fiscal year. Named Executive Officer 2024
Stock Options Granted 2024 Restricted Stock Shares Granted Stacy Lindborg 293, 102 25, 000 Michael Tardugno 207, 926- Corinne Le Goff-- Khursheed
Anwer 90, 653- David Gaiero-- Jeff Church 12, 500- Outstanding Equity Awards at Year- End The following table summarizes the uanexereised-number of shares
of the Company’ s common stock eptiens-held-by-underlying outstanding equity incentive plan awards for cach efthe-Named Executive Offieers— Officer as of
December 31, 2623-2024 . None of the Named Executive Officers held any other outstanding stock awards as of December 31, 2623-2024 . Option Awards Name
Grant Date Number of Shares or Units of Stock No. of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Exercisable No. of Securities Underlying Unexercised
Options (#) Unexercisable Option Exercise Price ($) Option Expiration Date Michae H Cerinne-Ee-Goff7+1+8+2022-44,256132,-7562)-$+ Tardugno 9578
#+2032-3)-3-+17+2023-36,-000-66,-000(1H-$1+-32 37120333 Khursheed-Anwer-10 / 3 / 2019 24 , 832-333 - $ 25. 80 10 /3 /2029 3 /04 /2022 +3-80 , 000-




$4.603/04/20326/13/202243-90 , 000-333-6:667H-5 1.936/13/20323/17/202343-16 , 33426667 8 , 666-333 (1) $ 1.323/17/2033
3/15/20246 250 6,250 (2) $0.863/15/2034 6/12 /2024 50, 000 50, 000 (2) $1.226/12/20349/6 /2024 41, 463 41,463 (2) $1.049/6/203412/18/
2024 6, 250 6, 250 (2) $ 0. 83 12 /18 /2034 Stacy R. Lindborg PhD 6 /4 /2021 2, 666- $ 18. 60 6 /4 /20313 /4 /2022 2,500-$4.603/4/20346/13/20222,
500-$1.936/13/20323/17/2023 1,333 667 (1) $1.323/17/20333/15/20242,2502,250(2)$0.863/15/20345/13/2024-112,500 (2) $1.485/13
/2034 6/12/2024-112,500 (2) $1.22 6/12/20349 /6 /2024 31,801 31,801 (2) $1.049/6/20349/6 /2024 25, 000 (3) Jeffrey W—Church 10/3 /2019 2,
334-$25.8010/3/2029 6/ 13 /2022 33,333 - +6;6673+H-5 1.93 6/ 13 /20323 /17/2023 43:334-26, 667-666-D-5 1.323/17/20333/15/2024 12, 500- $
0. 86 3 /15 /2034 Khursheed Anwer 10/3 /2019 2, 832-$25.80 10 /3 /2029 3 /04 /2022 20, 000- $ 4. 60 3 / 04 /2032 6 / 13 / 2022 20, 000- $1.93 6 /13 /
20323/17/2023 26, 667 13,333 (1) $1.323/17/20333/15/2024 12,500 12,500 (2) $0.86 3 /15/2034 6/12 /2024 12,500 12,500 (2) $1.226/12/
2034 9/6/2024 20, 327 20,327 (2) $1. 04 9/6 /2034 (1) Each of these stock option grants vest in three equal installments, with one- third of the grant vesting
each immediately, on the first anniversary, and on the second anniversary of the date of grant. (2) Each of these stock option grants vest #rfenrequal-instalments;
wrt-h—one half-—fetrft-h—of th he grant vesting eaeh—on date of grant and one- fourth on the flrst +and semnd —t-hrfd—a:nd—fetrﬁh—qnm\ ersary of the date of grant. (3) Dr.

at- hth t—tme—vests fully on they—
the ﬁrst anmversary with-attomatt b tted i i it Hey h d-as-of date of
the grantMareh—lé%O%#were—ferfeﬁed—by—Br—I:e—GefP Director ( ompcn%atlon Non l:mploycc Dlrutor Compmmtmn Tablg The tollov&mg tablc sets forth the
cash and non- cash compensation paid to the Company” s directors who were not employed by the Company or any of its subsidiaries (“ Non- Employee Directors ™)
for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . Other than as set forth in the table, we did not pay any compensation, make any equity awards or non- equity awards to,
or pay any other compensation to any of the Non- Employee Directors in 2623-2024 . The compensation paid to any director who was also one of our employees
during fiscal year 2623-2024 is presented in the “ 2023-2024 Summary Compensation Table ”” and the information that follows that table. Such employee directors
did not receive separate compensation for their service on the Board of Directors or any of its Committees (other than Dr. Lindborg prior to her appointment as
CEO and President of the Company as described in Footnote (1) below). Name (1) Fees Earned ($) Option Awards ($) (2) Total ($) James E. Dentzer 51,
839 12, 144 63, 983 Frederick J. Fritz 93, 419 13, 309 106, 728 Donald P. Braun 58, 949 12. 651 71, 600 Christine A. Pellizzari 41, 039 13, 456 54, 495 (1) Dr.
Lindborg did not participate in the non- employee director compensation program following her appointment as CEO and President of the Company. The
compensation received by Dr. Lindborg during 2024, including the compensation received solely for her service as a non- employee director, is reported in
the Summary Compensation Table above . Mr. Tardugno and Dr. Le Goff are not shown in this table because they were compensated as officers for the years
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4-7—695—6!—) The \dlue reportcd for Option Aw drds is the d;sgrcg,dtc "rdnt date tdlr \dlue 01L stock options gdmed to each Dlrectol in 2-92—3—2024 detelmmed in
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The assumptions for making the valuation determinations are set forth in Note 42-11 to our financial statements. As of
December 31, 2623-2024 , Mr. Dentzer had 4-17 , 667-301 option awards outstanding; Mr. Fritz had +8-32 , 333-070 option awards outstanding; Dr. Braun had +5-28
,833-905 option awards outstanding; and Pr—indbergand-Ms. Pellizzari eaelrhad 9-23 | 666-630 option awards outstanding. 65-The following table sets forth stock
option grants awarded to the Company’ s Non- Employee Directors for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 . Employee directors do not receive separate equity
awards for service on the Board of Directors or any of the Board committees. Dr. Lindborg did not participate in the non- employee director compensation
program following her appointment as CEO and President of the Company. Equity awards received by Dr. Lindborg during 2024 for her service as a non-
employee director are reported in the Summary Compensation Table above. Non- Employee Director Stock Option and Grant Awards Table Name Number of
Options Granted (#) (1) Exercise Price ($) Grant Date Expiration Date Grant Date Fair Value ($) James E. Dentzer 2-4 , 806-500 $ 0. 86 3 /15/20243/15/2034 $
0.794,5005 1.32226/12/20246/12/2034$1.123,634$1.049/6/20249/6/2034 $ 0. 99 Frederick J. Frltz3 500 $ 0. 86 3 / +715/2623-2024 3 / +7
15/2633-2034 $ 0. 79 3,500 $ 1. 20-Frederield—Fritz2,-606-22 6 /12 /2024 6 /12 /2034 $ 1.32-12 6,737 $1.049/6 /20249 /6 /2034 $ 0. 99 Donald P.
Braun 3,500 $ 0. 86 3 /+715/2623-2024 3 / 715/ 2633-2034 $ 0. 79 3, 500 $ 1. 26-DonaldPBraun2,-000-22 6 /12 /2024 6 /12 /2034 $ 1.32-12 6,072 $ 1. 04
9/6/20249/6/2034 $ 0.99 Christine A. Pellizzari 4, 500 $ 0. 86 3 / 715 / 2623-2024 3 / 1715/ 20633-2034 $ 0. 79 4, 500 $ 1. 20-StaeyR-—TEindborg2,-000-22
6/12/20246/12/2034 $ 1. 12 4, 964 32-3-+7+26233-/17+2033-5 |. 20-Christine-A-—Pellizzart 2,-600-04 9/ 6 /2024 9/ 6 / 2034 $ +-0 . 99 32317420233+
+7+2633-$54-20+1) Each of these stock option grants vest-vests irthree-equatinstalliments;-with one- third-half of the grant vesting on the date of grant and one
third-fourth of the grant vesting on each of the first and second anniversary of the date of grant, subject to the applicable director’ s continued service as a member of
our Board through each applicable vesting date. During the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , cach Non- Employee Director of the Company received annual
cash compensation in the amount of $ 36-27 , 566-450 payable in quarterly installments, and an additional $ 2-1 , 266-980 for attendance at regular meetings of the
Board of Directors and § 1, 260-080 for cach meeting of a committee of the Board of Directors that was not held in conjunction with a meeting of the Board of
Directors. Each Non- Employee director is reimbursed for the out- of- pocket costs of attending meetings of the Board of Directors and of committees of the Board
of Directors. In 2623-2024 , the Chairman of the Audit Committee received an additional annual cash fee of $ 43-12 , 586-150 and the Chairman of the Compensation
Committee received an additional annual cash fee of $ +6-9 , 580-450 . 66-Acting on behalf of the Board of Directors, Mr. Fritz also received fees totaling $ 48-43 ,
666-200 in 2623-2024 for his role as a Board Liaison to our Board of Directors. Mr. Fritz’ s responsibilities as Board Liaison include the following: (i) serve as an
initial sounding board for our management regarding issues, matters, or communications to be brought or potentially to be brought before the Board of Directors; (ii)
provide input and feedback to management regarding strategic matters, business matters, major scientific, clinical, collaboration, or corporate development matters,
key personnel matters, or other items of significance regarding which management would like to obtain initial or further Board guidance, including, but not limited
to, guidance regarding timing and content of communications regarding such matters or items with the full Board or any of its committees; (iii) remain accessible to
management to provide guidance on business or strategy issues or other issues of significance on an as- needed basis; (iv) participate in meetings and relevant
discussions as requested by management; (v) conduct general advisory or liaison services to the Board, including relaying to management requests from other
members of the Board regarding desired additional information or clarification or suggestions or feedback regarding improvement in Board processes or
communications; (vi) serve as a conduit for informal communications between management and the Board; and (vii) any other such services established by the
Board from time to time. Acting on behalf of our Board of Directors, Dr. Braun also received fees totaling $ 39-22 , 966-500 in 2023-2024 for his role as a strategic
advisor to our Executive Chairman and our Chief Executive Officer. Dr. Braun’ s responsibilities as a strategic advisor include the following: (i) provide strategic
and tactical advice to our Chief Executive Officer; (ii) evaluate international subsidiary options; (iii) develop strategies to secure business relationships other than in
the U. S.; and (iv) having done both (ii) and (iii), develop high potential ex- US market strategies that address the objectives for broad and profitable sales of its
commercial products. Stock Ownership Guidelines for Non- Employee and Executive Directors Our Board of Directors believes that, as a matter of sound corporate
governance, non- employee and executive directors should have a significant personal financial stake in our performance. Consequently, in February 2011, our Board
of Directors adopted stock ownership guidelines for non- employee and executive directors. Our corporate governance guidelines require that each non- employee
director acquire and hold shares of our common stock having an aggregate value equal to two times the director’ s total compensation in the first year of service and
that our executive director acquire and hold shares of our common stock having an aggregate value equal to the executive director’ s total compensation in the first
year of service. Each director is expected to satisfy the applicable ownership guideline within three years after his or her appointment to the Board. Shares of our
common stock that count toward satisfaction of these ownership guidelines include, unless beneficial ownership therein is disclaimed: (i) shares owned outright by
the director or executive officer or their immediate family members residing in the same household, whether held individually or jointly; (ii) shares held in a trust,
family limited partnership or similar entity solely for the benefit of the director or executive officer and / or their immediate family members; (iii) shares of restricted
stock and restricted stock units awarded under our equity incentive plans, including vested and unvested awards; and (iv) shares acquired upon stock option exercise,
but not shares underlying unexercised stock options. 6ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERSThe following table is furnished by the Company and sets forth certain information known to the Company
regarding the beneficial ownership of the Company’ s common stock as of Mareh26-February 21 , 2024-2025 by: e cach person or group known by us to own
beneficially more than 5 % of the Company’ s outstanding common stock; @ each of our directors, as well as each executive officer named in the Summary
Compensation Table appearing under the heading *“ Executive Compensation; ”” and e our directors and executive officers as a group. We determine beneficial
ownership in accordance with the rules of the SEC. Under SEC rules, beneficial ownership for purposes of this table takes into account shares as to which the
individual has voting or investment power (including shares held indirectly through the Imunon, Inc. 401 (k) Plan), as well as shares that may be acquired within
60 days of Mareh26-February 21 , 2624-2025 . Shares of common stock subject to options that are currently exercisable or that become exercisable within 60 days
of Mareh26-February 21 , 2624-2025 , are treated as outstanding and beneficially owned by the holder of such options. However, these shares are not treated as



outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other person. Unless otherwise indicated or as to the interests of spouses, the persons
included in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares beneficially owned thereby. Percentage ownership calculations are based on 3
14 , 399-620 . 789-732 shares outstanding as of Marehr26-February 21 , 26024-2025 . NAME OF BENEFICIAL OWNER NUMBER OF SHARES OF COMMON
STOCK BENEFICIALLY OWNED (1) PERCENT OF SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OUTSTANDING (2) Ayrton Capital LLC (3) 1, 250, 000 7. 88 %
James E. Dentzer * (44 ) 512 , 3631 = Staey RTindborg*(2)10-109 446 * Frederick J. Fritz * (3-5 ) 28-37 , 682-843 * * Donald P. Braun * (4-6 ) 1548 . 436
841 * * Christine Pellizzari * (57 ) 40-17 , 446773 * * Michael H. Tardugno * ( 6-8 ) +83-375 , 7631562 2 . 95-57 % Stacy Lindborg Cerinne-Ee-Goff* (4—9 )
12772 . 898 * * 250-4-35%Khursheed Anwer * (810 ) 78-147 . +88-265 1. 01 % Jeffrey Church * (11) 77, 172 * * Susan Eylward Jeffrey-W-—Chureh-* -
Douglas Faller MD *- * * David Gaiero *- * * Corrine LeGoff * ( 9-12 ) 78-53 , 456-000 * * Dircctors and Executive Officers as a group (9-12 persons) (+6-13)
416-842 , 7074463 5 . 3776 % * The address of each of the individuals named is ¢ / o IMUNON, INC., 997 Lenox Drive, Suite 100, Lawrenceville, NJ 08648. * *
Less than one percent. (1) Beneficial Ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or investment power
with respect to securities. Except as indicated by footnote, and subject to community property laws where applicable, the persons named in the table above
have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock shown as beneficially owned by them. (2) Based on 14, 620, 732 shares of
common stock outstanding as of February 21, 2025 (3) Based on the Schedule 13G filed by Ayrton Capital, LLC (“ Ayrton Capital ) on February 13, 2025,
reporting beneficial ownership as of December 31, 2024 and represents shares of Common Stock issuable on the exercise of certain warrants held by the
reporting persons. The Schedule 13G provides information only as of December 31, 2024, and, consequently, the beneficial ownership of the
abovementioned reporting person may have changed between December 31, 2024 and February 21, 2025. Shares reported herein were held by Alto
Opportunity Master Fund, SPC — Segregated Master Portfolio B, a Cayman Islands exempted company (the “ Fund ”). The Fund is a private investment
vehicle for which Ayrton Capital LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “ Investment Manager ), serves as the investment manager. Waqas
Khatri serves as the managing member of the Investment Manager. The address of the principal business and office of Ayrton Capital LLC and its
affiliates is 55 Post Rd West, 2nd Floor, Westport Ct, 06880. (4) Includes 5-12 , 364109 shares of common stock underlying options currently exercisable or
exercisable within 60 days of Mareh-February 21, 2025. (5) Includes 11, 766 shares of common stock and 26, 077 2024—+2)netades+0;-44+6-shares of common
stock underlying options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of Mareh26-February 21 , 2024-20255 . (3-6 ) Includes H-25 , 766-597 shares of
common stock and +6-23 , 9-1-6—244 shares of common stock lmdarlymg optlom cmrcmly cxcrc1§1blc or exercisable within 60 days of Mareh26-February 21 , 2024
2025 . 6847 ) Includes 17 S e e h 2022-ataratio-of 15+

and+4-833-shares of common slock unde]]ymg opnom currently exerusable or exelcmable w 1lhm 60 days ofM-afehz'lé-February 21, 26242025 . (5-8 ) Includes
16-69 . 416-141 shares of common stock and 306, 421 shares of common stock underlying options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of Mareh26
February 21 ,2024-2025 . (69 ) Includes +6-28 , 543-056 shares of common stock and +67-44 | 256-842 shares of common stock underlying options currently
exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of Marelh26-February 21 , 2624-2025 . (710 ) Includes 53-12 , 880-855 shares of common stock and 74-134 | 256-410
shdrcs of common stock un( er! lym" optlons ulrrcmly Lxcrusablc or cxuusdbk within 60 ddvs of Mﬁfeh—Q-é—February 21. 9_-924—2025 (Dr—]:e—Ge-ff—sewed—as

) lnc]udw 2 865—338 qharw 01 common slock (-reﬂeet-mg—t-he—revefse

e y to-of15: and 45—74 3—3—3—834 shares of common stock underlying options currently exercisable or
exelusdble thhm 60 days of Mafeh%é—February 21 2-624—2025 (9—12 ) Indudes 3—53 6-1—7—000 shares of common stock . ( refleeting-the-reverse-13) Includes
202 753 of common stouk sphiteffee A Pt a e : dnd -7‘4—639 ~8—3—3—710 5h‘ues of common stuck underlvmg optlons

¥ v 0 l:qu1ty Compensation Plan Im‘ormatlon as of Du:cmbcr 31, 292—3P-}aﬂ-2024Plan Category
Number of securities to be 1ssucd upon exercise of outsmndmé optlons warrants and rights ta)-Weighted- average exercise price of outstanding options, warrants and
rights (-1 ) Number of Securities remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans (excluding securities reflected in first column €a)-e-)
Equity compensation plans approved by securityholders #72;297¢1 , 555, 073 (2 ) $ 2. 03 420, 000 ( 3 —69-+262;776(2-) Equity compensation plans not approved
by securityholders 294-130 , #75+500 (34 ) 1. 5907 - Total 1, 067685 , 648-573 5 1. 95 420, 000 (1) Represents the weighted average exercise price of
outstanding stock options and does not take into account restricted stock awards, which do not have an exercise price. ( 2 —681+202776-(1+) Includes both
vested and unvested options to purchase common stock and unvested stock grants under the 2018 Plan. These awards have a weighted average remaining term of 8. 7
years. (2-3 ) Represents shares available for award grant purposes under the 2018 Plan. Subject to certain express limits of the plan, shares available under the plan
generally may be used for any type of award authorized under that plan including options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and other forms of awards
granted or denominated in shares of our common stock or units of our common stock. (34 ) Includes both vested and unvested options to purchase common stock
and unvested stock grants under inducement grants provided certain employees as an inducement to accept employment with the Company. These awards have a
weighted average remaining term of 9. 6-5 years. These grants are similar to those granted under the 2018 Plan. 69-ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND
RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCERelated Person Transactions Our Code of Ethics requires all of our directors, officers and
employees to give their complete loyalty to the best interests of the Company and to avoid any action that may involve, or that even may appear to involve, a conflict
of interest with the Company. The Code of Ethics also requires any of our directors, officers or employees who become aware of a conflict or potential conflict to
bring it to the attention of supervisor, manager or other appropriate personnel or consult the compliance procedures provided in the Code of Ethics. The Board of
Directors reviews and approves or ratifies all relationships and transactions between us and (i) any of our directors or executive officers, (ii) any nominee for election
as a director, (iii) any securityholder who is known to us to own bcmﬁcmlly or of record more than five pcrccnt of our common stock or (1\) any mcmbu of the
1mmcdlatu fanllly 01 any 01 the fou,gomg rNevember16 e ed-into-a-Con e v

«

efﬁetlt-he-eeﬁveﬁtbmme-aﬁd-fe{&ted-waﬁ&ﬁts—Dlrcctor Indepcndcmc ln d(,(.()lddn(.t: mth the rules of thc SEC dnd \lasddq the Compdny 1equues that at ledst a
majority of the directors serving at any time on the Board of Directors be independent. The Board has determined that of the six currently serving directors, five-four
directors ( Brs— Dr . Braun and-Eindborg-, Messrs. Dentzer and Fritz and Ms. Pellizzari) are independent under applicable SEC and Nasdaq rules. ITEM 14.
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICESWithum, Brown Smith PC (“ Withum ) has served as our independent accountants since 2017 and has
advised us that neither Withum nor any of its members has, or has had in the past three years, any financial interest in the Company or any relation to the Company
other than as auditors and accountants. The following table presents fees as invoiced for professional audit services rendered for the fiscal years ended December 31,
2623-2024 and December 31, 2822-2023 , and fees for other services rendered during those periods: 2024 2023 2622-FEE CATEGORY AMOUNT % OF TOTAL
AMOUNT % OF TOTAL Audit Fees $ 144, 240 68 % $ 150. 000 60 %-$458;-500-8+-% Audit Related Fees 10,200 5 9, 705 4 +4;246-FTax Fees 12,272 6 13, 750
5 +0-806-6-All Other Fees 45,240 21 78, 885 31 H5850-6-Total Fees § 252-211 , 346-952 100 % $ 495252 , 396-340 $ 100 % #0-Audit fees consist of fees for
professional services rendered by Withum for the audits of our annual financial statements in our Annual Reports on Form 10- K and for reviews of the quarterly
financial statements included in the Company’ s Quarterly Reports on Form 10- Q. Audit - related fees pertain to the work performed during our equity offerings in
2024 and 2023 and-2022-. Tax fees consist of fees for preparation of the Company’ s federal and state tax returns. All other fees consist of fees for attendance at the
Company’ s annual meetings, review of registration statements and similar matters. Services by Employees of Withum No part of Withum’ s engagement to audit the
Company’ s financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-was attributable to work performed by persons other than Withum’ s
full- time, permanent employees. Audit Committee Policy on Approval of Audit and Non- Audit Services It is the policy of the Audit Committee to pre- approve all
audit and permissible non- audit services provided by our independent accountants, in accordance with rules prescribed by the SEC. These services may include audit
services, audit- related services, tax services, and other services. Pre- approval is based on a written proposal, accompanied by a cost estimate, and estimated budget.
The Audit Committee has delegated to its chairman the authority to pre- approve audit and non- audit services with an estimated cost of up to $ 25, 000, provided the
exercise of such authority is reported to the Audit Committee at its next regular meeting. The Audit Committee reserves the right, from time to time, to delegate pre-
approval authority to other of its members, so long as such members are independent directors. All audit and permissible non- audit services during 2024 and 2023
and-2022-were approved by the Audit Committee in accordance with its pre- approval policy and the approval requirements of the SEC. PART IVITEM 15.
EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report: 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following is a list of the consolidated financial statements of Imunon, Inc. filed with this Annual Report, together with the reports of our independent registered



public accountants and Management” s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Page REPORTS Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm F- 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Balance Sheets F- 3 Consolidated Statements of Operations F- 5 Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive
Loss F- 6 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows F- 7 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity F- 9 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS F- 112. FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES All financial statement schedules are omitted because the information is
inapplicable or presented in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 743. EXHIBITS The following documents are included as exhibits to this report:
EXHIBIT NO. DESCRIPTION 2. 1 * Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of June 6, 2014, by and between Imunon, Inc. and EGEN, Inc., incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 2. 1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of the Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 2. 2 Amendment to
Asset Purchase Agreement between Celsion Corporation and EGWU, Inc., dated March 28, 2019 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current
Report on Form 8- K of the Company filed on April 1, 2019 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 3. 1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Imunon, dated
March 24, 2023, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company filed on March 24, 2023 (SEC File No. 001-
15911). 3. 2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, effective on March 15, 2024, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 to the Current Report on Form
8- K of the Company, filed on March 18, 2024 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 4. 1 Form of Representative’ s Common Stock Purchase Warrant, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4. 2 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company, filed on October 31,2017 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 4. 2 Form of Placement Agent
Common Stock Purchase Warrant incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4. 4 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company, filed on July 11, 2017 (SEC
File No. 001- 15911). 4. 3 Form of Amended and Restated Warrant (issued under First Amendment of Venture Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of August 1,
2020, by and among Imunon, Inc., Horizon Funding I, LLC, Horizon Funding Trust 2019- 1, and Horizon Technology Finance Corporation, as Collateral Agent),
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company, filed on September 4, 2020 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 4. 4
Form of Exchange Warrant, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company, filed on March 13, 2020 (SEC File
No. 001- 15911). 44. 5 Warrant to purchase Shares of Common Stock of Celsion Corporation between Celsion Corporation and EGWU, Inc., dated March 28, 2019,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2019 (SEC File No. 001-
15911). 4. 6 Peseriptien-Form of Warrant Seeurities-efthe Registrant-, incorporated heretn-by reference to Exhibit 4. 5-1 to the Annuat-Current Report on Form
+6-8 - K of the Company filed on July for-the-fiseal-yearended-Deeember-3 |, 2049-2024 (SEC file No . +6-001- 15911). 4. 7 Description of Securities of the
Registrant10 . 1 * * * Imunon, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of
the Company, filed on May 16, 2017 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 2 Form Inducement Offer to Exercise Common Stock Purchase Warrants, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10. 3 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of the Company for the quarter ended September 30, 2017 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 3 * *
* Imunon, Inc. 2018 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company filed May 15, 2018 (SEC
File No. 001- 15911). 10. 4 * * * First Amendment to the Imunon, Inc. 2018 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on
Form 8- K of the Company, filed on May 15, 2019 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 5 * * * Second Amendment to the Imunon, Inc. 2018 Stock Incentive Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company, filed on June 16, 2020 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 6 * * * Third
Amendment to the Celsion Corporation 2018 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the
Company, filed with the Commission on June 10, 2021 (SEC File No. 001- 15911).42-10. 7 * * * Form of Incentive Stock Option Grant Agreement under the
2018 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of the Company for the quarter ended
March 31, 2024 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 8 * * * Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2018 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 9 * *
* Form of Nonqualified Stock Option and Restricted Stock Grant Agreement for employment inducement awards, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.
1 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 8 filed on August 29, 2024 (No. 333- 281833). 10. 10 * * * Employment Offer Letter, entered into on
June 15, 2010, between the Company and Jeffrey W. Church, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company
filed on June 18, 2010 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 811 * * * Employment Offer Letter effective as of June 2, 2014, between the Company and Khursheed
Anwer incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 27 to the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2014 (SEC File No. 001- 15911).
10. 9-12 * * * Employment Agreement between the Company and Michael H. Tardugno, effective as of July 18, 2022, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10. 2 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company filed with the Commission on July 19, 2022 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. +6-13 * * * Employment
Agreement between the Company Corporation and Corinne Le Gof, effective as of July 18, 2022 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current
Report on Form 8- K of the Company filed with the Commission on July 19, 2022 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. H-14 * * * Amended and Restated Change in
Control Agreement dated as of September 6, 2016, by and between the Company and Michael H. Tardugno, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of the Company for the quarter ended September 30, 2016 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 42-15 * * * Employment Atended-and
Restated-Change-in-Control-Agreement , dated as of September6-May 3 . 2646-2024 , by-and-between the Company and Jeffrey-W-Stacy Lindborg, Ph . €hurehD.
, incorporated hkeretrrby reference to Exhibit 10. 3-1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company filed on May 8, 2024 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10.
16 * * * Retirement and Consulting Agreement, dated May 17, 2024, between Imunon, Inc. and Jeffrey Church, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1
to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company filed on May 20, 2024 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 17 * * * Consulting Agreement, dated April 15,
2024, by and between Imunon, Inc. and Monomoy Advisors, LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the
Company filed on May 20, 2024 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 18 * * * Offer Letter of Employment, dated October 2, 2024, between Imunon, Inc. and
Susan Eylward, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company filed on October 7, 2024 (SEC File No. 001-
15911). 10. 19 * * * Separation Agreement, dated August 9, 2024 by and between the Company and Sébastien Hazard, M. D., incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10. 5 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of the Company for the quarter ended September 30, 2646-2024 (SEC Fite-file No. 001- 15911). 10.43-20 *
Development, Product Supply and Commercialization Agreement, effective December 5, 2008, by and between the Company and Yakult Honsha Co., Ltd.,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 15 to the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2008 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. +4
21 * The 2nd Amendment to The Development, Product Supply and Commercialization Agreement, effective January 7, 2011, by and between the Company and
Yakult Honsha Co., Ltd. incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company filed on January 18, 2011 (SEC File
No. 001- 15911). 10. 4522 * Technology Development Agreement effective as of May 7, 2012, by and between Imunon, Inc. and Zhejiang Hisun Pharmaceutical
Co. Ltd., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of the Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2012 (SEC File No.
001- 15911). 10. +6-23 * Technology Development Contract dated as of January 18, 2013, by and between Imunon, Inc. and Zhejiang Hisun Pharmaceutical Co.
Ltd., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2013 (SEC File No.
001- 15911). #43-10. 4724 Lease Agreement, executed July 21, 2011, by and between Imunon, Inc. and Brandywine Operating Partnership, L. P., incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company filed on July 25, 2011 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 48-25 First Amendment to
Lease Agreement, executed April 20, 2017, by and between Imunon, Inc. and Lenox Drive Office Park, LLC, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the
Current Report on Form 10- Q of the Company filed on November 14, 2017 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. +9-26 Second Amendment to Lease Agreement, dated
January 9, 2019, by and between Celsion Corporation and Lenox Drive Office Park, LLC, successor in interest to Brandywine Operating Partnership, L. P.,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10- Q to the Current Report on Form 10- Q of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2019 (SEC File No. 001-
15911). 10. 26-27 Lease Agreement dated January 15, 2018, by and between Imunon, Inc. and HudsonAlpha Institute of Biotechnology for office and lab space
located in Huntsville, Alabama incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of the Company for the quarter ended March
31,2018 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 24-28 Settlement Agreement and Release, by and between the plaintiff to the shareholder action captioned O’ Connor v.
Braun, et al., N. J. Super., Dkt. No. MERC- 00068- 19, William J. O’ Connor, derivatively on behalf of Imunon, Inc. and individually on behalf of himself and all
other similarly situated stockholders of Imunon, Inc. and defendants, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the
Company, filed on June 16, 2020 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 22-29 Form of Exercise Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current
Report on Form 8- K of the Company, filed on March 13, 2020 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 10. 23-30 At the Market Offering Agreement, dated May 25, 2022 by
and between Celsion Corporation and H. C. Wainwright & Co. LLC, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company,
filed on May 25,2022, (SEC File NO. 001- 15911). 10. 31 Amendment No. 1, dated May 15, 2024, to At the Market Offering Agreement, by and between
Imunon, Inc. and H. C. Wainwright & Co. LLC, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1. 3 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 3 (No.
333- 279425) filed on May 15, 2024. 10. 32 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2024, by and among the company and each
purchaser party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company, filed on July 31, 2024 (SEC File o.
001- 15911). 10. 33 * * * Imunon, Inc. 2018 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended as of June 14, 2023, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the



Current Report on Form 8- K of the Company, filed with the Commission on June 15, 2023 (SEC File 001- 15911). 19 Insider Trading Policy 2. |
Subsidiaries of Imunon, Inc. 23. 1 Consent of WithumSmith Brown, PC, independent registered public accounting firm for the Company. 31. 1 Certification of Chief
Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. 31. 2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act 0f 2002. 32. 1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley
Act 0f 2002. 32. 2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of
2002. 99-Compensation Recovery Policy , incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 97 to the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2023 (SEC File No. 001- 15911). 101. INS Inline XBRL Instance Document 101. SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101. CAL Inline
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101. DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document 101. LAB Inline XBRL
Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document 101. PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document Cover Page Interactive Data File
(embedded within the Inline XBRL document) 101 * * The following materials from the Company’ s Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2623
2024 , formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the audited Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the audited Consolidated Statements of
Operations, (iii) the audited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss, (iv) the audited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) the audited Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and (vi) Notes to Financial Statements. * Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for
confidential treatment under Rule 24b- 2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, amended, and the omitted material has been separately filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Filed herewith. Furnished herewith. * * XBRL information is filed herewith. * * * Management contract or compensatory plan or
arrangement. ITEM 16. FORM 10- K SUMMARYSIGNATURES SUMMARY-74-SIGNATURES-Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. IMUNON, INC.
Registrant Mareh28-February 27 , 2024-2025 By: / s / MiehaelHH-Stacy Lindborg, Ph . D Fardugno-MichaelH-. Fardugno-Stacy Lindborg, Ph. D. Chief
Executive OfficerPursuant Chairman-of-the BoardPursuant-to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated: Name Position Date / s / MICHAEL H. TARDUGNO Executive
Chairman of the Board Mareh28-February 27 . 2624-2025 (Michacl H. Tardugno) / s / JEFFREY-W-STACY R . EHUREH-LINDBORG, Ph. D. President, Chief
Executive Viee-President-and-Chief-Mareh28,2024-Jeffrey-W—Churel)-Finaneial-Officer and Director February 27, 2025 (Stacy R Lindborg, Ph. D.)
(Principal Executive Officer) / s / DAVID GAIERO Chief KIMBEREY-A-GRAPER VicePresident-of Finanee-Financial Officer February 27 &Centrelter
Mareh28-, 2024-2025 ( KimberlyA—-Graper-David Gaiero) (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer ) /s / FREDERICK J. FRITZ Director
Mareh28-February 27 , 2024-2025 (Frederick J. Fritz) /s / JAMES E. DENTZER Director Mareh-28-February 27 , 2024-2025 (James E. Dentzer) /s / DONALD
BRAUN DneclorMafehv’_’-S-February 27 . 26242025 (Donald Braun, Ph D. ) s/ (llRlSTINF PELLIZZARI Director Mareh28-February 27 ., 2624-2025
(Christine A. Pellizzari) #8 N & Report of Independent Reystercd Public Accounting Firm
Board of Directors and Stockholders 01L Imunon Ine Opinion on the Consohddted rllldll(.ldl Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Imunon Inc. as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, changes in
stockholders” equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2623-2024 , and the related notes (collectively referred to as the *
financial statements ™). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Imunon Inc. as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2623-2024 ,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Substantial Doubt Regarding Going Concern The accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the entity will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the entity has suffered recurring losses from operations, has negative cashflows expetieneed-eashused-from operations, and has an-a significant
accumulated deficit, that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management’ s plans in regard to these matters are also described in
Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Basis for Opinion These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the entity’ s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“ PCAOB ) and
are required to be independent with respect to Imunon Inc. in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error
or fraud. Imunon Inc. is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are
required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity” s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matters The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the
current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to
accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate. ¥+
Ge-rng—@eﬂeerﬂ—E—va-l-uat-teﬂ-ClaSSIﬁcatlon of Warrants Critical Audit Matter Description efMatter-As described farther-in Note 2-10 and 12 to the eensolidated
financial statements, in July 2024, the Company sold 5 has-suffered-reeurringtosses-fronroperations-, has-000, 000 shares of common stock at an aeeumutated
defiett-offering price of $ 2. 00 per share and warrants expeets-ts-operatingtosses-o eontinte-purchase up to 5, 000, 000 shares of common stock, at a exercise
price of $ 2. 00 per share, for the-fereseeable-future-net proceeds of approximately $ 9 million . The Aeeerdinghy-the-Company has-determined that these-—- the
-faet-ers—raise—s&bs&mﬁal—denbt—as—tﬁ-Warrants met all the crlterla for equlty classnficatlon and recorded the-them Gﬁmp&ny—s—abﬁrty&to—em&ﬁu&as a component

(,l”ltl(,dl dl.ldlt matter . Our principal cons1deratlons 1ncluded the ex1stence of accountlng complexntles related to certaln provisions of the warrant agreement
including settlement provisions and derivative elements in applying the accounting standard. Auditing these elements involved especially complex auditor
judgment duec to the estimation-terms of the applicable agreement, including the extent of specialized knowledge and uneertaintyregarding-skills needed. How
We Addressed the Matter in Our Audit @ Evaluating the appropriateness of management’ s application of the accounting guidance in determining the
classification of the warrants in the financial statement by i) reviewing the relevant terms of the warrant agreement, (n) evaluating the completeness and
accuracy of the C ompam S ava-rl-abl&eapﬁa-l—technlcal accountlng analysns and h
application dete g t i t g indtea
whether-there—- the ﬁ-substa:nﬁa-l—deubt—abeut—relevant accountlng llterature. . Utl]lzmg personnel w1th speclallzed knowledge and skills in technlcal
accountlng to assist in: (i) evaluatlng the terms of the warrant agreement in relatlon to the relevant accountlng hterature, and (11) assessmg the




/ Wlthumgmlth Br(m n, PC W 1thumSmlth Brovs n, P( We have sel\cd as Imunon InL s dudltor since ”01 7. Edst Bruns\\ ick, ch\ Jcrscy Mﬁ:feh%—?—February 26
2024-2025 PCAOB ID Number 100 F- 2 IMUNON, INC. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 2024 2023 2022-December 31, 2024 2023 2022-ASSETS
Cunmt assets: Cdsh and cash cqunales $5, 872 767 $ 5 838, 566 -$—1—1—492—S-4-1—ln\ estment in debt suuutlcs available for sale, at fair value - 9, 857, 087 245

-Advances and deposits on clinical
plo"mms and othm current assets 2 136 192 2, 545, ()31 2—496—43—3—T0t11 current assets 8 008, 959 18, 240, 7()4 36—7—79—69—1—P10p01t\ and equipment (at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and amortization) 541, 272 751, 906 548;30+-Other assets: Meney-marketinvestments;restrieted-eash—4;-500;-600-Deferred income tax
asset = 1, 280, 385 +5-567-626-Operating lease right- of- use assets, net 1, 117, 133 1, 595, 074 +55;--876-Deposits and other assets 50, 000 425-50 , 000 Total other
assets 1, 167, 133 2, 925, 459 6,647,902 Total assets $ 9,717,364 $ 21, 918, 069 $—43—97—5—894—See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
F-3-Continued) Dccembcr 31, 2024 2023 2022-LIABILITIES AND STOC KHOLDERS EQUITY Current lldbllmes Accounts pdydblC - tladc S -3-1 5-1—5-300
492-026 $ 3, 586-515 , 623-192 Other accrued liabilities 3, 033, 747 3, 390, 521 4794 6 a P d
F#4-Operating lease liabilities- current portion 452, 358 485, 421 236:-749-Total wrunt lmbllmcs 4 786 131 7 391, H4+9—934—982—N9te3—p&y&b*e—neﬂ—eﬁﬂ‘eﬂf
portion;net-of deferredfinaneingeosts—4-616,-946-Operating lease liabilities- non- current portion 686, 935 1, 139, 293 —Total liabilities 5, 473, 066 &, 530, 427 +45
648;:-028-Commitments and contingencies — — Stockholders” equity: Preferred Stock- $ 0. 01 par value (100, 000 shares authorized, and no shares issued or
outstanding at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-) Common stock- $ 0. 01 par value (112, 500, 000 shares authorized; 14, 500, 707 and 9, 399, 811 and-7
436;249-shares issued at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively, and 14, 500, 685 and 9, 399, 789 and-#-436;+9Fshares outstanding at December
31,2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respectively) 145, 007 93, 998 F4:-362-Additional paid- in capital 410, 987, 523 401, 500, 838 397;-980;-623-Accumulated other
comprehensive income = 60, 796 26:-494-Accumulated deficit ( 406, 803, 044) (388, 182, 802 H368;-667-825-) Total stockholders’ equity before treasury stock 4,
329,486 13,472, 830 295443;:-054-Treasury stock, at cost (22 shares at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-) (85, 188) (85, 188) Total stockholders” equity 4,
244,298 13, 387, 642 29:329;-866-Total liabilities and stockholders” equity $9, 717,364 $ 21, 918, 069 $-43-975:-894-F- 4 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS 2024 2023 2022-Y cars Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Hieensingrevente-$—-$-560,-000-Operating expenses: Research and development $ 11,
639, 411 8§ 11, 287, 691 H5-733-666-General and administrative 7, 493, 035 9, 742, 739 43:-687-899-Total operating expenses 19, 132, 446 21, 030, 430 25;:424
565-Loss from operations ( 19, 132, 446) ( 21,0 )() 430 )—(%4—92—1—565— Othel income (expen\e) Investment mcomeGa-m—frem—ehaﬂg&ﬁream—eﬁt—nﬂ-}esfeﬂe
Habitity—5-, 396-net 512 , 204 1 000-Impairme eess-researe v , 366-157 . 625 234)-10ss on debt extinguishment = (329, 158) =
-I-m*esﬁﬁeﬁt—meﬁme—net—l—lé%’—é%%%%éé—lmcrcst expense - (197 080) (6—62-8—6-1-8)-0thel expense- {toss)-ireome-(396, 319) +5-86+Total other income
(expense), net 512, 204 235, 068 (254369531 0ss before income tax benefit ( 18, 620, 242) (20, 795, 362 H3F465:266-) Income tax benefit- 1, 280, 3854
567-026-Net loss $ (18, 620,242) $ (19, 514, 977 ¥$435:-898;234-) Net loss per common share- basic and diluted $ (1. 62) $ (2. 16 3$5-03-) Wu"htcd average
common shares outstanding- basic and diluted 11, 508, 159 9, 045, 320 #+42;970-F—-5-CONSOLIDATED QTATI:MI:NTQ OF (()MI’RI:HI:\JSIVI: LOSS 2024
2023 2-92—2—le\ l:l'ldt.d December 31 2024 2023 2-92—2—0thc1 Lomprclu.lmu. lm\ C h'il'lLL.S in: Rwllzud gatfso ;

d and umcall/td gains on av ﬂhbh, f01 sale

xeuumex net $-$ 34, 302 34—46-8—Nel loss (18, 620,242) (19, 514 L)77 -)-(-35—898—2%4—) Tolal wmplehemne loss $ (18, 620,242) $ (19, 480, 675) $35;-863;
F663yF—6-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 2024 2023 2622-Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2822-Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (18, 620, 242) $ (19, 514, 977 ¥$-35;898;234-) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities: Depreciation 240, 175 248,

154 -1-96%-1-9—Amoltlzdt10n 01‘ rlght of- use assets 477 941 471 851 5—35—H9—Reeegmﬁeﬂ-eildefe&ed-feveﬂﬁe—699—999)—Rc(ihzcd and unreallzed (galns) and

receivi ablc (Tmnsomlu) 375 000 —tm sresea e A 4 Ammt]zat]on of dk,ﬁ.] red finance Lhar%s and dcbt discount
associated with note payable - 55, 12 -1-8-1%59-\Ie1 changes in: /\urued interest receiv ab]e on investment securities - 68, 136 €26;-688)-Advances, deposits, and
other current assets 408, 859 (141, 619 343;-986-Other-assets—24+-5H-) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ( 3, 057, 361) ( 1, 992, 929) 2, HH4-96+Net cash
used in operating activities ( 18, 854, 970) ( 19, 022, 148 3H23;-896;-895-) Cash flows from investing activities: Purchases of investment securities ( 57, 174) (13,
541, 806 H48;226;396-) Proceeds from sale and mdtmity of investment securities 9, 915, 448 25, 000 ;-800-56;,745-, 000 Purchases of property and equipment ( 29,
541) ( 451, 759 )—(—2-67—899—) Net cash prO\ 1du bV investing activities 9, 828 733 11, 00() 435 8;280;-846-C dsh ﬂows from fmdnung dcmmcs Proceeds from

salc m‘ common Gmck Lqunv nct of issuance cmm 9 060 438 2, 78I 4?8 6—7—2%—654—[’1\ off of the SVB loan md accuu.d L.l'ld 01L tt.rm fu.@ - (6, 47() ()00) -\lct
cash (used in) provided by financing activities 9, 060, 438 (3, 638, 562) 6;722;-654-Net change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 34,201 (11, 654, 275 %
85-693;431-) Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year 5, 838,566 17, 492, 841 25:-586;272-Cash ;-and cash equivalents aﬂd—rest-ﬁefed—eash—at
end of year § 5, 872,767 $ 5, 838, 566 $3+%492-84F-FYears Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: Cash paid
for: I-ﬂeﬁme—tmees—pmd%—l%@@%—l—@@@-lmcrcst $ -8 179, 542 $-4-847-359-Non- C dsh Investing and Financing Activities Recognition of right of use asset and
liability $ -$ 1, 911, 049 $—F- 8 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2623-2024
Shares Amount Capltal Shares Amount (Loss) Deficit Total Common Stock Outstanding Additional Paid- in Treasury Stock Accum. Other Compr. Income
Accumulated Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount (Loss) Deficit Total Balance at January 1, 2024 9, 399, 811 $ 93, 998 $ 401, 500, 838 22 §$ (85, 188) $ 60, 796
$ (388, 182, 802) $ 13, 387, 642 Net loss------ (18, 620, 242) (18, 620, 242) Sale of equity through equity financing facilities 5, 088, 796 50, 888 9, 009, 550---- 9,
060, 438 Issuance of stock upon vesting of restricted shares 12, 100 121----- 121 Realized and unrealized gains, net, on investment securities----- (60, 796)-
(60, 796) Stock- based compensation expense-- 477, 135---- 477, 135 Balance at December 31, 2024 14, 500, 707 $ 145, 007 $ 410, 987, 523 22 $ (85, 188) $- $
(406, 803, 044) $ 4, 244, 298 YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 Common Stock Outstanding Additional Paid - in Treasury Stock Accum. Other Compr.
Income Accumulated Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount (Loss) Deficit Total Balance at January 1, 2023 7, 436, 219 $ 74, 362 $ 397, 980, 023 22 $ (85,
188) $ 26, 494 $ (368, 667, 825) $ 29, 327, 866 Balance 7, 436,219 § 74, 362 $ 397, 980, 023 22 § (85, 188) § 26,494 $ (368, 667, 825) $ 29, 327, 866 Net loss------
(19, 514, 977) (19, 514, 977) Sale of equity through equity financing facilities 1, 904, 142 19, 041 2, 762, 397---- 2, 781, 438 Issuance of eemen-stock upon
exereise-vesting of restricted shares eptions—59, 450 595----- 595 Realized and unrealized gains, net, on investment securities----- 34, 302- 34, 302 Stock- based
compensation expense-- 758, 418---- 758, 418 Balance at December 31, 2023 -9, 399, 811 S 93,998 % 401 500, X?X 22 % (83 lXés) $ ()() 796 $ (?XX 182 X(W) $13,
387 647 Balance -F—‘)¥EﬁR—E—N-BE—B—B-EGE-M—BE—R—3—1— 399 ha A 3 Pe %

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Dt‘s(.llptl()ll ot Busmcss -Septembe
Imunon Inc. ( Imunon ” or the Compdnv “) e he-Company

Mafket—tmder—fhe—&eker—syﬁﬂbel—%%i—}muﬂeﬁ-ls dfu-l-ly—rﬂfegﬁ&ted—clmlcal stage blotcchnoloLy company focusud on admncmg a pmt‘rollo of innov dtl\(,

treatments that harness the body’ s natural mechanisms with the aim to generate safe, effective and durable responses across a broad array of human diseases,
constituting a differentiating approach from conventional therapies. Imunon is developing its non- viral DNA technology across feur-its modalities. The first
modality, TheraPlas ®, is developed for the wding of proteins and cytokines in the treatment of solid tumors where an immunological approach is deemed
promising. The second modality, PlaCCine ®, is developed for the coding of viral antigens that can ehut a \tmnu 1mmuno]oygal response Thlb teghnolog:v ma\
represent a promising platform for the dev elopment of vaccines in infectious diseases. The third S e




i eus-on-the-development-of personalized-eaneer-vaee tnes;-or-neoep a aeetnes—The ompany s lead c]lnmal program, IMNN 001,is a DN/\ based
lmmunothempy for the ]oualwed tl eatment of advi aneed oV arlan cancer emeﬁﬂy—rﬁ-that has completed Phase 2-developmentII clinical studies . [IMNN- 001 works
by instructing the body to produce safe and durdblc levels of powerl‘ul cancer- tlghtmg molecules such as interleukin- 12 and interferon gamma, at the tumor site.
Addltlonallv the Company has entered is-cend o ablingp a velopen a first- in- human study of its COVID- 19 boostel

eaneer-vaeeine-in-melanoma-(IMINN-—20D—Imunen-will continue to leverage these moddlmes and to advance the Icchnolo&lcal hontlcr of pldsmld DNA to bcttcr

serve patients with difficult- to- treat conditions. Basis of Presentation The accompanying consolidated financial statements (“ Financial Statements ) of Imunon
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“ GAAP ) and include the accounts of the
Company and CLSN Laboratories, Inc. The Company fn%-@%—?y—dlsso]\ ed C elslon (me]l in 2023 All s]omham intercompany balames and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. Accounting Standards Events-a S g S ©
isstanee-of: Improvements to Reportable Segment Dlsclosures In November 2023 t-hese—-— the F—ma-neia-l—St&temeﬁts—FASB 1ssued ASU No. 2023- 07, «
Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures ”. The disclosure requirements are required on an annual and interim
basis and are applicable to entities with a single reportable segment. The amendments in the ASU require disclosures to include significant segment
expenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker (“ CODM ”), a description of other segment items by reportable segment, and
any additional measures of a segment’ s profit or loss used by the CODM when deciding how to allocate resources. ASU 2023- 07 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2024, with early adoption allowed. We adopted this
guidance as of January 1, 2024 on a retrospective basis and the adoption did not have a material beenevaluated-for-thetr-pessible-impact on the-our
consolidated Finanetat-financial Statements-statements and-aeeompanyingnotes- Refer Neo-events-and-eonditions-wonld-giverise-(0 any-information-thatrequired
aceountingrecognition-Note 3, “ Segment Performance Measures and Expenses, ” or-for new disetesure-disclosures resulting from in-the Finaneial-Statements
other—- the adoption than-these-arisinginthe-ordinary-eourse-of business-ASU 2023- 07 . Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity

V»lth GAAP rcqmrcs thc (ompdny to mdke estimates dnd dssumptlons that dh‘cct Ihe rcported amounts ot assets and liabilities and dlsclosuu of contm;:,ent assets and

dlﬁcr slgmﬁcantly imm those estimates. -F-—H—Rew enue Rceoyﬂtlon Thc Company —s-se-l-&dld not generate any revenue

deseribed-in Note18;-2024 or 2023 and whese-eentraethas-expired—There-there were no accounts receivable as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-. Cash
and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. A portion of these
funds are not covered by FDIC insurance. Fair Value of Financial Instruments The carrying values of financial instruments approximate their respective fair values.
Management believes that the carrying amounts of the Company’ s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents and accounts payable approximate fair
value due to the short- term nature of those instruments. Short- term investments are recorded at their estimated fair value. Short- Term Investments The Company
classifies its investments in debt securities with readily determinable fair values as investments available- for- sale in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification (“ ASC ”) 320, Investments- Debt and Equity Securities. Available- for- sale securities consist of debt securities not classified as trading securities or as
securities to be held to maturity. The Company has classified all of its investments as available- for- sale. Unrealized holding gains and losses on available- for- sale
securities are reported as a net amount in accumulated other comprehensive gain or loss in stockholders’ equity until realized. Gains and losses on the sale of
available- for- sale securities are determined using the specific identification method. The Company’ s short- term investments consist of corporate bonds. Property
and Equipment Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets, ranging from three to seven years, using the straight- line method. Amortization is recognized over the lesser of the life of the asset or the lease
term. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized at cost and ordinary repairs and maintenance are charged against operating expenses as incurred.
Depreciation expense was approximately $ 240, 000 and $ 248 5-8086-and-$1497-, 000 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively. The
Company reviews property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. An asset is considered impaired if its carrying amount exceeds the future net undiscounted cash flows that the asset is expected to generate. If such asset
is considered to be impaired, the impairment recognized is the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset, if any, exceeds its fair value determined using a
discounted cash flow model. There was no impairment of property or equipment during 2024 or 2023 . Advances and Deposits on Clinical Programs and Other
Current Assets Supplies are consumable items kept on hand to support the Company’ s R & D and manufacturing operations which includes prepaid
expense, raw materials, clinical supplies and consumable items orfor 2622-clinical trials with alternate uses that are capitalized. Supplies are recorded at
cost and are charged to expense as they are used in operations. The Company regularly reviews the quality and utilization of supplies to determine if future
use of these supplies is probable. Due to the generic use of these supplies, they can be used in multiple projects other than those currently being studied .
Deposlts mcludc real propelty security deposlts dlld other deposits w hldl are eontrdetudlly reqmred and of a longj term nature. During264H4-the-Company-acquired

Income Loss) ASC 220, Comprehenswe Income, establlbhes standards for the reporting dl]d dlspldy of compr chcnsl\e income (loss) and its components in the
Company’ s consolidated financial statements. The objective of ASC 220 is to report a measure of comprehensive income (loss) of all changes in equity of an
CntCIleSL that rcsult ’nom transdctlons and othcr economic ev cnts ina pcrlod other than transactions with owners. Comprchenslvc g,dms (losscs) rcsult trom Lhangcs

velopmenta es-thathavea ses-are-eap ed-and-charg e he ma Ve NetLoqqpuSharcof
Common Stock Basic and dllulcd net loss per common bhau was wmpulcd by dividing net Ioss for Lhc, year by the weighted average numbu of shares of common
stock outstanding, both basic and diluted, during each period. The impact of common stock equivalents has been excluded from the computation of diluted weighted
average common shares outstanding in periods where there is a net loss, as their effect is anti- dilutive. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-,
the total number of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants and equity awards was 6, 840, 633 and 1, 255, 642 and-988;389-, respectively. For
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, diluted loss per common share is the same as basic loss per common share as all options and all other
warrants that were convertible into shares of the Company’ s common stock were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings attributable to common
stockholders per common share as their effect would be anti- dilutive. Income Taxes Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Under this
method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in results of operations in the period that the tax rate change occurs. Valuation allowances are
established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. In accordance with ASC 740, Income Taxes, a tax position is
recognized as a benefit only if it is “ more likely than not ” that the tax position taken would be sustained in a tax examination, presuming that a tax examination will
occur. The Company recognizes interest and / or penalties related to income tax matters in the income tax expense category. As more fully discussed in Note 10, on
November 28, 2023, the Company received approval from the New Jersey Economic Development Authority to sell $ 1. 3 million of its New Jersey net operating
losses (“ NOLs ), recognizing a tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2023 for the net proceeds (approximately $ 1. 3 million) by reducing the net operating
loss valuation allowance. As more fully discussed in Note 10, on November 28, 2023, the Company was notified by the New Jersey Economic Development
Authority that its application was approved and the Company entered into an agreement to sell thls NOL. On Mard\ 22, 2()24 the C ompany receiv ed approxnnate]y
$ 1. 3 million upon completion of the sale of the 2023 NOLs. During h y v v 6 0 O




J-ersey—-bﬂseei—eeﬂﬁa&mes—B&rmg—ZOZl lhe Ne\x Jersev Slate Leglslatule mueased lhe maximum lifetime benefl per eompany from § 15 m]ll]on to $ 20 ml]llon
which will allow the Company to participate in this innovative funding program in future years for up to an additional $ 0. 4 million in net operating losses under this
maximum lifetime benefit (see Note 2). F- 13 Stock- Based Compensation fa-Mareh2646-The Company accounts for all share- based payment awards granted
to employees and non- employees as stock- based compensation expense at grant date fair value. The Company’ s share- based payments include stock
options and grants of common stock , including common stock subject to vesting. The measurement date for employee awards is the Finanetal-Aeeounting
StandardsBeard-“FASB)-issued-date of grant, and stock- based compensation costs are recognized as expense over the employees’ requisite service period,
which is the vesting period, on a straight- line basis. Prior to the adoption of Accounting Standards Update (“ ASU ) No. 2646-2018 - 89-07 , Compensation =
— Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Nonemployee Share- Based Payment Accounting (“ ASU No. 2018- 07 ) on January 1. 2020, the
measurement date for non- employee awards was generally the date the services were completed, resulting in financial reporting period adjustments to
stock- based compensation during the vesting terms for changes in the fair value of the awards. Since the adoption of ASU 2018- 07, the measurement date
for non- employee awards is the date of grant without changes in the fair value of the award. There was no material impact as a result of adopting this new
standard. Stock- based compensation costs for non- employees are recognized as expense over the vesting period on a straight- line basis. Stock- based
compensation expense is classified in the accompanying consolidated statements of operatlons based on the functlon to which the related services sr-mp-h—ﬁes

Vaﬁeus—as-peeﬁ-ef-ﬁeeetmﬂﬂg—fe% are prowded -based-pa-yﬁeﬂts—

Forfeltures are recorded as m—eempeﬂsa-t-teﬁ-eest—vvﬁhen—lhey occur . The falr value of each stock optlon grant is estlmated on the date of grant usmg the Black-
Scholes option- pricing model. Since there is limited historical data of the Company’ s share price on the public market, the Company estimates its
expected stock volatility based on the historical volatility of a publicly traded set of representative companies and expects to continue to do so until such
time as it has adequate historical data regarding the volatility of its own traded stock price. The expected term of the Company’ s stock options has been
determined utilizing the “ simplified ” method for awards that qualify as “ plain- vanilla ” options. The risk- free interest rate is determined by reference to
the U. S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant of the award for time periods approximately equal to the expected term of the award. Expected
dividend yield is based on the fact that the Company has never paid cash dividends on common stock and does not expect to pay any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future . Recent Accounting Pronouncements From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the FASB and are adopted by the
Company as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise discussed, the Company believes that the impact of recently issued accounting pronouncements will not
have a material impact on the Company’ s consolidated financial position, results of operations, and cash flows, or do not apply to its operations. F- 14 In December
2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023- 09, Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, which requires disclosure of disaggregated income taxes paid, prescribes
standard categories for the components of the effective tax rate reconciliation, and modifies other income tax- related disclosures. ASU No. 2023- 09 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 and allows for adoption on a prospective basis, with a retrospective option. Early adoption is permitted. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of the ASU on the income tax disclosures within the consolidated financial statements. In November 2024, the FASB
issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2024- 03, Income Statement — Reporting Comprehensive Income — Expense Disaggregation Disclosures:
Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses (“ ASU 2024- 03 ). ASU 2024- 03 will require more detailed information about the types of expenses in
commonly presented income statement captions such as “ Cost of sales ” and “ Selling, general and administrative expenses ”. The new guidance is effective
for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027 with early adoption
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that this change will have on the Company’ s disclosures. 2. FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
GOING CONCERN UNCERTAINTY Since inception, the Company has incurred substantial operating losses, principally from expenses associated with the
Company’ s research and development programs, clinical trials conducted in connection with the Company’ s drug candidates, and applications and submissions to
the FDA. The Company has not generated significant revenue and has incurred significant net losses in each year since inception. For the year ended December 31,
2023-2024 , the Company had a net loss of $ +9-18 . 5-6 million and used $ 49-18 . 8-9 million to fund operations. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company has
incurred approximately $ 388-407 million of eumulame net losxex As ol December 31 292—3—2024 the C ompany had ‘1» -16—5 -7'-9 mllllon in Ldﬁh and cash
equivalents ;-and short- term investments ;-an atrd © S v S © = . The Company
has substantial future capital requirements to continue its lesedreh and dev elopment activities dl]d advance its drug (,dndlddteb throwrh various dcw elopment stages.
The Company believes these expenditures are essential for the commercialization of its drug candidates and technologies. The Company expects its operating losses
to continue for the foreseeable future as it continues its product development efforts, and when it undertakes marketing and sales activities. The Company’ s ability
to achieve profitability is dependent upon its ability to obtain governmental approvals, manufacture, and market and sell its new drug candidates. There can be no
assurance that the Company will be able to commercialize its technology successfully or that profitability will ever be achieved. The Company expects that its
operating results will fluctuate significantly in the future and will depend on a number of factors, many of which are outside the Company’ s control. The Company’
s ability to raise additional capital may be adversely impacted by potential worsening global economic conditions and the recent disruptions to, and volatility in,
financial markets in the U. S. and worldwide resulting from the €OVHD—19-pandemie;the-Russian invasion of Ukraine and the unrest in the Middle East. The
Company continues to monitor its operating activities in light of these events, and it is possible that these events could result in a variety of risks to the business. The
specific impact, if any, is not readily determinable as of the date of these consolidated Financial Statements. F—4-The Company has based its estimates on
assumptions that may prove to be wrong. The Company may need to obtain additional funds sooner or in greater amounts than it currently anticipates. Potential
sources of financing include strategic relationships, public or private sales of the Company’ s shares or debt, the sale of the Company’ s New Jersey NOLs and other
sources. If the Company raises funds by selling additional shares of common stock or other securities convertible into common stock, the ownership interest of
existing stockholders may be diluted. The actual amount of funds the Company will need to operate is subject to many factors, some of which are beyond the
Company’ s control. These factors include the progress of research activities; the number and scope of research programs; the progress of preclinical and clinical
development activities; the progress of the development efforts of parties with whom the Company has entered into research and development agreements; the costs
associated with additional clinical trials of drug candidates; the ability to maintain current research and development licensing arrangements and to establish new
research and development and licensing arrangements; the ability to achieve milestones under licensing arrangements; the costs involved in prosecuting and
enforcing patent claims and other intellectual property rights; and the costs and timing of regulatory approvals. F- 15 The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the going concern basis. In making this assessment, management conducted a comprehensive review of the Company’ s business plan including,
but not limited to: ® the Company’ s financial position for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 ; e significant events and transaetion-transactions the Company
has entered into since December 31, 2823-2024 ; @ the Company’ s cash flow and cash usage forecasts for the period one year from the issuance date of this Annual
Report on Form 10- K; @ the Company” s capitalization structure including common stock outstanding and common stock issuable on exercise of warrants and
equity awards, and other common stock issuable under equity plans; and e continued support of the Company”’ s stockholders. As a result of the uncertainties
involved in our business, we are unable to estimate the duration and completion costs of our research and development projects or when, if ever, and to what extent
we will receive cash inflows from the commercialization and sale of a product. Our inability to complete our research and development projects in a timely manner
or our failure to enter into collaborative agreements, when appropriate, could significantly increase our capital requirements and could adversely impact our liquidity.
These uncertainties could force us to seek additional, external sources of financing from time to time in order to continue with our business strategy. Our inability to
raise additional capital, or to do so on terms reasonably acceptable to us, would jeopardize the future success of our business. Our estimated future capital
requirements are uncertain and could change materially as a result of many factors, including the progress of our research, development, clinical, manufacturing, and
commercialization activities. Management has determined the Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and has an accumulated deficit that raises
substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern for the next twelve months from the issuance date of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. The report
of our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 includes an explanatory paragraph, which expresses substantial
doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of the uncertainty.
A fundamental component of the ability to continue as a going concern is the Company’ s ability to raise capital as required, as to which no assurances can be
provided. To address the additional funding requirements of the Company, management has undertaken the following initiatives: ® it has assessed its current
expenditures and will be reducing the current spending requirements where necessary; ® it will pursue additional capital funding in the public and private markets
through equity sales and / or debt facilities; ® it will pursue possible partnerships and collaborations; and e it will pursue potential out licensing for its drug
candidates. F=—35-Our ability to continue as a going concern may depend on our ability to raise additional capital, attain further operating efficiencies, reduce




expenditures, and, ultimately, to generate revenue. There are no assurances that these future funding and operating efforts will be successful. If management is
unsuccessful in these efforts, our current capital is not expected to be sufficient to fund our operations for the next twelve months. F-16 3 . SEGMENT
PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND EXPENSES SCHEDULE OF SIGNIFICANT EXPENSE CATEGORIES AND CONSOLIDATED NET LOSS For
the year ended December 31, (In thousands) Change Increase (Decrease) 2024 2023 Operating Expenses: Clinical Research OVATION $ 1,386 $ 1,197 $
189 15. 8 % Vaccine 1, 420- 1, 420 100. 0 % Other clinical and regulatory 2, 434 1, 793 641 35. 8 % Subtotal 5, 240 2, 990 2, 250 75. 3 % Non- Clinical R &
D and CMC OVATION 1, 819 1, 504 315 20. 9 % PlaCCine Vaccine 2, 554 4, 511 (1, 957) (43. 4) % Manufacturing (CMC) 2, 026 2, 283 (257) (11. 3) %
Subtotal 6, 399 8, 298 (1, 899) (22. 9) % Research and development expenses 11, 639 11, 288 351 3. 1 % General and administrative expenses 7, 493 9, 742
(2, 249) (23. 1) % Total operating expenses 19, 132 21, 030 (1, 898) (9. 0) % Loss from operations $ (19, 132) $ (21, 030) $ (1, 898) (9. 0) % 4 .
INVESTMENTS IN DEBT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE Investments in debt securities available for sale with a fair value of $ 0 and $ 9, 857, 087 and-$
24:254:485-as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively, consisted of U. S. Treasury securities and corporate debt securities. These investments are
valued at estimated fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive loss.
The Company reviews its debt securities classified as short- term investments on a regular basis for impairment. For debt securities in unrealized loss positions, the
Company determines whether any portion of the decline in fair value below the amortized cost basis is due to credit- related factors if it neither intends to sell nor
anticipates that it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell prior to recovery of the amortized cost basis. The Company considers factors such as the extent
to which the market value has been less than the cost, any noted failure of the issuer to make scheduled payments, changes to the rating of the security and other
relevant credit- related factors in determining whether or not a credit loss exists. During fiscal 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the Company did not recognize an
allowance for credit- related losses on any of our investments. F- 17 A summary of the cost, fair value and maturities of the Company’ s short- term investments is as
follows: SCHEDULE OF COST, FAIR VALUE AND MATURITIES OF SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS December 31, 2823-2024 December 31, 2822-2023 Cost
Fair Value Cost Fair Value Short- term investments U. S. Treasury securities $ -$-8 9, 796, 291 § 9, 857, 087 $=—$—Ceorporate-debtseeurities—2H227-99+24254;
485-Fotal-$-9-796;201-$-9,857-087-$- 21,227 99+-$-21:254:485-December 31, 2023-2024 December 31, 20222023 Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Short- term
investment maturities Within 3 months $ -$-$ 2, 467, 518 $ 2, 490, 775 -$-4—99§é§9—$—3—99~4—599—8ut\wcn 3- 12 months == 7, 328, 773 7, 366, 312 7222432
+75-259:-895-Total $-8-5 9, 796,291 § 9, 857, 087 $24227-991-$21,254;485-The following table shows the Company”’ s investment in debt securities available
for sale gross unrealized gains (losses) and fair value by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss
position at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-. The Company has reviewed individual securities to determine whether a decline in fair value below the
amortizable cost basis is other than temporary. SEMMARY-SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES GROSS UNREALIZED GAINS (LOSSES) December
31, 2623-2024 December 31, 2822-2023 Available for sale securities (all unrealized holding gains and losses are less than 12 months at date of measurement) Fair
Value Umedllzcd I—loldmU Gains (Losses) Fdlr leuc Unreallzed Holdmé (Jams (Losses) Inv estmcnts in debt sceurmcb with l.landllZCd gains $ $-$9, 857,087 $

F—l—é—Im LstmLm income , net v»ln(,h mcludcs net l(.dllZLd losscs on SdlLS 01‘ av. dlldbl(, 1‘01 sale SL(,UIIULS and invi Lstant income mttrest dlld dl\ 1dmds is
summarized as follows: SEMMARY-SCHEDULE OF NET REALIZED LOSSES ON SALES OF AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT
INCOME INTEREST AND DIVIDENDS 2024 2023 2822-Interest and dividends accrued and paid $ 450,221 $ 725, 824 $-502;-5%8-Realized losses 61, 983 431,
801 (49—2—2—2-)—1%ei&rz~ed-gams-ﬂesses)-434—894—(49—2-2-29—1n\ uumnl mcmm, ml $ 512 2048 1, ]‘37 62‘3 -$458—3§6—4—R—E—S¥R—¥G"FEB—G&SHﬁs-a-eeﬂdﬁeﬁ-e{lﬂae

F/\SB ASC Seulon 820, Falr Value Measuremems and Dlxdosures e\ldbllshe\ a lhree ]e\ el h]eraldw for fair \alue medsulemenls which reqmres an enmv 10
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of inputs that may be used to
measure fair value are as follows: Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) or identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to access as of
the measurement date; Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in
markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data; and Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that
reflect a reporting entity’ s own assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. F=#Cash and cash equivalents and accounts payable
are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets at their approximate estimated fair values primarily due to their short- term nature. The fair values of securities
available for sale are determined by relying on the securities’ relationship to other benchmark quoted securities and classified its investments as Level 2 items in both
2024 and 2023 and2022- There were no transfers of assets or habllllles bel\\ een Lev el 1 and Level 2 and no 1rans‘rers in or out of Level 3 during the years ended
Decembcrﬂ 2024 and ”07?a-nd—2922— F ang v a W estlt-ofchang atr-vatt earn -lsmmr}esten&habﬂ-ﬁy

below: S( Hl:DULl: OF FAIR VALUI: AQSI:T@ AND LIABILITII:S MEASURED ON REC LRRIN(J BA@IS Total l‘dll leuc Quotui Prices in Acmc Markets
for Identical Assets / Liabilities (Level 1) Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2) Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3) Assets: Recurring items as of
December 31,2024 U. S. treasury obligations, available for sale $- $- $- $- Recurrmg ltems as of December 31 2023 Gefpefafedebt—seeuﬂﬂes—U S. treasury
0bllgat10ns axallable 1or xa]e $9, 8§7 ()87 S 9, 857, ()87 §— % eett d 3

) i § e$ I’ROPERTY AND EQUIPME\JT I’lopertv and
uqmpmcm at Du:umbcr 31, 2024 and "02? ﬁﬂd%GQ-Z—conslst of thc iolloxxm" S{:T-M-MAR%LSCHEDULE OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 26232622
December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Machinery and equipment (5- 7 year life) $ 951 27-655-, 192 $ 2, 468-055 , 388-Maehinery-192 Furniture and equipmentfixtures (3-
5 year life) 167 351 191, 932 Leasehold improvements (5- 7 year life) 619 $2-, 024 855;192-$2-468, 388 Furniture-and-fixtures{3—S-yeardife)194-932-356;
48++Eeaseholdimprovements{(S—7-yeartife)-007, 054 373;494-Property and equipment gross 1, 737, 567 2, 854, 178 34925663 css accumulated depreciation and
amortization ( 1, 196, 295) (2, 102, 272 32;-643;762-) Total $ 541,272 $ 751, 906 7 $-548;364+-8-. OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES Other accrued liabilities at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-include the following: SCHEDULE OF OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES 2623-2622-December 31, 2024 2023 2622



Amounts due to contract research organizations and other contractual agreements $ 1, 048, 036 $ 1, 442, 659 $25396;H4-Accrued payroll and related benefits 1,
945, 111 1, 693, 383 2439927 Aeerted-nterest—37-583-Accrued professional fees 20, 600 234, 479 245:402-Other 20, 000 285 20 , 343-000 Total $ 3, 033, 747
$ 3,390, 521 8-$-4—79-4—936-F-—1-9-9- NOTES PAYABLE The SVB Loan Facility On June 18, 2021, the Company entered into a $ 10 million loan facmly (the «
SVB Loan Facility ") with Silicon Valley Bank (“ SVB ). Imunon immediately drew down $ 6 million from the SVB Loan Facility and used the funds to retire all
outstanding indebtedness with Horizon Technology Finance Corporation pursuant to a loan agreement entered into on June 27, 2018, under which the Company had
drawn down $ 10 million and repaid $ 5 million in August 2020. Concurrently with this transaction, the Company used $ 6. 0 million of other available funds to
establish a restricted cash account which served as security for the SVB Loan Facility. F- 19 The SVB Loan Facility was in the form of money market secured
indebtedness bearing interest at a calculated WSJ Prime- based variable rate. A final payment equal to 3 % of the total $ 10 million commitment amount was due
upon maturity or prepayment of the SVB Loan Facility. There was no facility commitment fee, and no stock or warrants were issued to SVB. Payments under the
loan agreement were interest only for the first 24 months after loan closing, followed by a 24- month amortization period of principal and interest through the
scheduled maturity date. In connection with the SVB Loan Facility, the Company incurred financing fees and expenses totaling $ 243, 370 which was recorded and
classified as debt discount and was amortized as interest expense using the effective interest method over the life of the loan. Also, in connection with the SVB Loan
Facility, the Company was required to pay an end- of- term fee equal to 3. 0 % of the original loan amount at time of maturity. Therefore, these amounts totaling $
300, 000 were amortized as interest expense using the effective interest method over the life of the loan. During the years— year ended December 31, 2023 and-2022
, the Company incurred interest expense of $ 197, 080 and $295;-792-and-amortized $ 329, 158 and-$+8+H259;respeetively-, as interest expense for dcbt discounts
and end- of- term fee in connection with the SVB Loan Facility. On April 21, 2023, the Company repaid the outstanding principal balance, an early termination fee
and the end- of- term charges in full satisfaction of the SVB Loan Facility. The following is a schedule of the amounts paid to SVB on April 21, 2023: SCHEDULE
OF DEBT Principal balance at April 21, 2023 $ 6, 000, 000 Early termination fees 120, 000 End of term charges 300, 000 Total payoff amount $ 6, 420, 000 During
the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recorded a loss of $ 329, 158 on the early termination of the SVB Loan Facility which represented the early
termination fee and the end of the term fees, net of previously amortized interest expense totaling $ 334, 212 on the date of its payoff. 48-9 . INCOME TAXES The
income tax benefit for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-consists of the following: SCHEDULE OF INCOME TAX PROVISION (BENEFIT)
2024 2023 2022-Federal Current $- $- Deferred-- State and Local-- Current-- Deferred = (1, 280, 385 33;-56%-626-) Total § - $ (1, 280, 385) $-(1;-567-026) F-20-A
reconciliation of the Company’ s statutory tax rate to the effective rate for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-is as follows: SCHEDULE OF
EFFECTIVE INCOME TAX RATE RECONCILIATION 2024 2023 2622-Federal statutory rate 21. (-)-00 % 21. 0 % State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 78 . +40
7.1 Permanent differences ( 2. 74) (3. 1) 29=8-True- Up (0. 07) ( 105. 0)—Other 0. 11 (2. 9) —Rate Change 0. 57- Deferred vs statutory rate (0. 75)- Expiration
of NOLSs (17. 51)- Change in valuation allowance and deferred rate change, net (9. 01) 89. 0 {53—8)-Effective tax rate - % 6. 1 % F- 20 4$3%-The components of
the Company’ s deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and20822-are as follows: SCHEDULE OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2023-2022-December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Net operating loss carryforwards $ 66, 141,490 $ 67, 310 -000-$795-806-, 000 Section 174 6, 482, 099 4, 929, 000 -
Other deferred tax assets, net 2, 010, 744 2, 016 7-600-43;287-, 000 Subtotal 74, 634, 333 74, 255 780093687, 000 Valuation allowance ( 74, 634, 333) (72, 974,
615 HH5149-974-) Total deferred tax asset $ -4:280;385-% 1, 567280 , 826-385 The evaluation of the realizability of such deferred tax assets in future periods is
made based upon a variety of factors that affect the Company” s ability to generate future taxable income, such as intent and ability to sell assets and historical and
projected operating performance. Fle-As of December 31, 2024, based on the Company has-established-a-valuationreserve-for-’ s history of earnings and its
assessment of future earnings, management believes that it is more likely than not future taxable income will not be sufficient to realize the dcfcrred ineeme
tax assets other-than-theserelated-. Therefore, full valuation allowance has been applied to deferred tax assets #tsNewJerseyNOEs- At December 31, 2023,
after its evaluation of its New Jersey NOLs as discussed more fully below, the Company reduced the valuation reserve and recognized $ 1. 3 million as a deferred
income tax asset. Such tax assets are available to be recognized and benefit future peuods As of December 31, 2-92—3—2024 the Compcmy hdd iederdl net operdtmg
loss carry earryforwards—--- forwards of approximately $ 364-303 million . If ;-re et-operatinglosses ed-irprioryears v
will expire starting in 2624-2025 through 2037. The federal NOLs generated for the years undud aftm 2017 m‘ approxmlatuly ‘B -7’-8—101 mllllon can bc camcd forward
indefinitely. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , the Company had state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $ 44-40 million, net of net operating losses
utilized in prior years, and, if unused, will expire starting in 2029 through 2642-2043 —likely- than- not to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities.As of
December 31, 2624;and-2023 ,and 2022 ,there were no unrecognized tax benefits.The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties as income tax expense.No
amounts were accrued for the payment of interest and penalties at December 31, 2624-and-2023 and 2022 .The Company is currently not aware of any issues under
review that could result in significant payments,accruals or material deviation from its position in the next year.Sections 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Code
provide for a limitation on the annual use of NOL and tax credit carryforwards following certain ownership changes that could limit the Company’ s ability to utilize
these carryforwards.The Company has completed an analysis to determine if such ownership changes have occurred and concluded it was more likely than not that
there were changes in ownership.Due to the existence of full valuation allowance,limitations under Section 382 and 383 will not impact the Company’ s effective tax
rate.Further analyses will be performed prior to recognizing the benefits of any losses or credits in the financial statements . . Effective for tax years beginning after
December 31, 2021, taxpayers are required to capitalize any expenses incurred that are considered incidental to research and experimentation (“ R & E ) activities
under IRC Section 174. While taxpayers historically had the option of deducting these expenses under IRC Section 174, the December 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
mandates capitalization and amortization of R & E expenses for tax years beginning after December 31, 2021. Expenses incurred in connection with R & E activities
in the US must be amortized over a 5- year period if incurred, and R & E expenses incurred outside the US must be amortized over a 15- year period. R & E
activities are broader in scope than qualified research activities considered under IRC Section 41 (relating to the research tax credit). For the year ended December
31, 2023-2024 , the Company performed an analysis based on available guidance and determined that it will continue to be in a loss position even after the required
capitalization and amortization of its R & E expenses. The Company will continue to monitor this issue for future developments, but it does not expect R & E
capitalization and amortization to require it to pay cash taxes now or in the near future. The Company’ s income tax returns for 2649+6-2622-2020 to 2023 are still
open and subject to audlt In addmon net operalmo losses arlsmg Irom pnor yeals are albo bubject to exammallon at the time lhey are ullh/ed in fulule yeals F A—SG

eeog 6 more— 21 likely- than not to be ......
New Jersey Net Operdtmg Losses Since 2018 the Compdny hds dnnually submltted applications to sell a portion of the Company’ s New Jersey NOLs as pd[‘t of the
Technology Business Tax Certificate Program sponsored by The New Jersey Economic Development Authority. Under the program, emerging biotechnology
companies with unused NOLs and unused research and development credits are allowed to sell these benefits to other New Jersey- based companies. As part of the
Technology Business Tax Certificate Program, the Company sold $ 1. 3 million and-$3—6-mithienrof its New Jersey NOLs in 2023 and-2022;respeetively-. The sale
of these net operating losses resulted in net proceeds to the Company of approximately $ 1. 3 million in 2623-2024 and-$4—6-mithenin2622-. During 2021, the New
Jersey State Legislature increased the maximum lifetime benefit per company from $ 15 million to $ 20 million, which will allow the Company to participate in this
funding program in future years for up to an additional $ 0. 3 mllhon in net operatmg Iosses undel thls maximum ln‘enme beneht 10-F-£—l—l—l— STOLKHO[ DFRS
EQUITY On Mafeh—l-9—May 15 . 292—1—2024 the Company ed-w a 3 3 3




-apprexin y2—5-mitien + nttien: /\L llu Mmku ()llcnng Arm.ummeﬂ- dated as of May 75 2()72 —( the ATMGe-m-paﬂy—eﬂtereé
i-ﬁt-e—&ﬁ—ﬁrt—tlsre—Maﬁeet—O-Ffeﬁng-/\gtunml ”) mth Il C. Wainwright & Co., LLC +(*“ Wainwright ») as sales agent . (LWaﬁWﬁghti)—p&ﬁﬂaﬂt—Pursuant to whieh
the terms of the amended ATM Agreement, the Company may olter and se]l from time to time, lhmu"h Wainw l”thl shales ol the ( ompany s common stock
having an aggregate offering price of up to $ #5, 500, 000 - e-Compan are 98-. The Company
intends to use the net proceeds from the-any offering ,—rf—a-ﬁ-y—under the amended ATM Agreement for gener: d] corporate purposes, mdudnm research and
development activities, capital expenditures and wmkmg capital. #+-On September 3, 2623-2024 , the Company filed a new prospectus supplement to the 2024
Registration Statement with the SEC for an aggregate offering price of up to $ 5, 500, 000 related to the potential issuance from time to time of the
Company’ s common stock pursuant to the ATM Agreement with Wainwright has- as sales agent. The Company sold +-88 | 796 994;442-sharcs of common
stock under the ATM Agreement {or net proceeds of $ 99, 506 during 2024. During 2023, the Company sold 1, 878, 488 shares of common stock under the
ATM Agreement for net proceeds of $ 2. 781750 , 438-658 . Series-A-and-Series-B-Convertible RedeemablePreferred-The Company sold 120, 047 shares of
common Stoek-stock Offering-under the ATM Agreement for net proceeds of $ 105, 693 from January 1, 2025 through February 21, 2025. On January16
July 30 , 2622-2024 . the Company entered into a-Seeurities-the July 2024 Purchase Ag reement fthe—Prefeﬁed—SteeiePt&eh{me%gfeemeﬂt*’)—w ith the Purchasers
sevefa-l—tns&ﬂ*&enﬁ-l—mvestefs— pursuant tow lmh thc (ompany ﬁgfeed—te—nssue—lssued 8

Ag 3 st eh agre sel, ina rC"llelCd dlreu oilermgft-he—kpﬁ}
, an d‘_‘L’,ILL,dtL of -1—5 , 328000 . 2—7—4—000 sharcs of the Company’ s common stoek at an m‘fcrmgb price ot $ 52 . 2700 per share for gross proceeds

2022-Offering )

of $ 710 . 0 million before the deduction of fhe—Apﬂ-l—EQQ%—P—l-aeemeﬂt—placement Agent-agent (as-defined-betow)-fces and offering expenses. In a concurrent
private placement and also pursuant to the July 2024 Purchase Agreement, the Company issued to the Purchasers the Warrants to purchase an aggregate
of 5, 000, 000 shares of its common stock at an exercise price of $ 2. 00 per share. The Warrants became exercisable immediately after issuance for a term
of five and one- half years followmg the date of issuance. T]]L. closing of the Apﬁ-l—July 292—2—2024 ()ffu ing OLLU]ILd on Apﬁ-l—S—August 1, 292%—2024 —n

-$—59—996— F- 2—3—1—2—22 11 STOCK BASED C OMI’ENSATION The ( ompany hd\ long term eomptnsatlon pldns that pumlt the granting 01‘ thutv basui aw. Ards
in the form of stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, other stock awards, and performance awards. At the 2018 Annual
Stockholders Meeting of the Company held on May 15, 2018, stockholders approved the Imunon, Inc. 2018 Stock Incentive Plan (the “ 2018 Plan ). The 2018 Plan,
as adopted, permits the granting of 180, 000 shares of Imunon common stock as equity awards in the form of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options,
restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, other stock awards, performance awards, or in any combination of the foregoing. At the 2019 Annual
Stockholders Meeting of the Company held on May 14, 2019, stockholders approved an amendment to the 2018 Plan whereby the Company increased the number of
common stock shares available by 80, 000 to a total of 260, 000 under the 2018 Plan, as amended. At the 2020 Annual Stockholders Meeting of the Company held
on June 15, 2020, stockholders approved an amendment to the 2018 Plan, as previously amended, whereby the Company increased the number of shares of common
stock available by 166, 667 to a total of 426, 667 under the 2018 Plan, as amended. At the 2021 Annual Stockholders Meeting of the Company held on June 10,
2021, stockholders approved an amendment to the 2018 Plan, as previously amended, whereby the Company increased the number of shares of common stock
available by 513, 333 to a total of 940, 000 under the 2018 Plan, as amended. At the 2023 Annual Stockholders Meeting of the Company held on June 14, 2023,
stockholders approved an amendment to the 2018 Plan, as previously amended, whereby the Company increased the number of shares of common stock available by
1, 030, 000 to a total of 1, 970, 000 under the 2018 Plan, as amended. The Company has issued stock awards to employees and directors in the form of stock options
and restricted stock. Options are generally granted with strike prices equal to the fair market value of a share of Imunon common stock on the date of grant. Incentive
stock options may be granted to purchase shares of common stock at a price not less than 100 % of the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of
grant, provided that the exercise price of any incentive stock option granted to an eligible employee owning more than 10 % of the outstanding stock of Imunon must
be at least 110 % of such fair market value on the date of grant. Only officers and key employees may receive incentive stock options. Option and restricted stock
awards vest upon terms determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors and are subject to accelerated vesting in the event of a change of
control or certain terminations of employment. The Company issues new shares to satisfy its obligations from the exercise of options or the grant of restricted stock
awards. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors a '1pp1m ed l]]t. grant of(-ﬁ-mdueunun stock opllonx (1he

Inducement Option Grants ) to purchase a total of 294-110 , 000 sh :
-SteekG-ra-ntsi)-teta-l-mg—H§9«hale\ of Imunon common stock. dLh award has a blanl date of lhe (Lue of grant. Each Inducement ()pllon (ndm has a weighted
exercise price of § 1. 59-02 per share. Each Inducement Option Grant vests over three-four years, with one- third-fourth vesting on the one- year anniversary of the
cmplovu s Tllst dd\ (nL unplm ment w 1th thc ( ompdm and one- th-lfd-fourth \tstm;: on thL. scwndaﬂd— thud and fourth anniversaries thurcatttr sub|tct to thc

is h eab strie 8 - }\s ofDeumbu 31 7’_’-92-3-2024 lheu were a total of] ‘)7\ 073 shares of Imunon common stock nsu\ed
for issuance under the 2()] 8 Plan, which were LO]l’lpllsLd of 7681 , 734555, 073 shares of Imunon common slock subject to equity awards previously granted under
the 2018 Plan and 2007 Plan and 4420 , 000 266;-342-shares of Imunon common stock available for future issuance under the 2018 Plan. As of December 31, 2623
2024 , there are a total of 294-130 , 754500 shares of Imunon common stock subject to outstanding inducement awards. Total compensation cost related to stock



options and restricted stock awards was approximately $ 0. 5 million and $ 0. 8 million ard-$-2—F-mithen-during 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respectively. Of these
amounts, $ 0. 2-3 million and $ 0. 9-2 million were charged to research and development expenses during 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively, and $ 0. 2 million
and $ 0. 6 mithenrand-$3-—8-million were charged to general and administrative expenses during 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively. F-24-23 A summary of
stock option awards as of December 31, 2623-2024 and changes during the two- year period ended December 31, 2823-2024 is presented below: SUMMARY OF
STOCK OPTIONSStock Options Number Outstanding W ewhte( 1 Average E‘(uuse Price W u"hted Av erage Remammg Contr: (Mu(ll Term (vedrs) A"glegate
Intrinsic Value Outstanding at January 1, 2622-2023 P a utstanding
at-Deeember31;2022-760, 220 $ 4. 55 Options granted 43 2, ()0 S 1. 2? Optmns l.dllu.l\.d or expued (129 2?8) $9.37 Outst(mdmu at Dccunbu gl 2023 1,063,
482 52,61 Options granted 1, 051, 835 $ 1. 12 Options canceled or expired (469, 444) $ 1. 58 Outstanding at December 31, 2024 1, 645, 873 § 1.958.85—
13, 476 Exercisable at December 31, 2623-2024 453-907 , 766-723 § 2. 58 8. 3 —64-8-5-5 —7, 299 A summary of the status of the Company’ s non- vested restricted
stock awards as of December 31, 2623-2024 and changes during the two- year period ended December 31, 2023-2024 , is presented below: SUMMARY OF NON-
VESTED RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDSRestricted Stock Number Outstanding Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value Non- vested stock awards outstanding
at Jdnuan 1, 2022-2023 +-48+-$1236-Granted-09, 650 $ 1. 92 Granted 22,100 $ 0. 92 Vested and issued (59, 450) $ | 5384 91 Forfeited (200 ) $ 124 . 60 64
Non- vested stock awards outstanding at December 31, 2022-2023 69-32 , 656-100 S 1. 92-23 Granted 22-39 , 486-700 $ 0. 9299 Vested and
issued ( 59-12 .459—100 )$ 1. 9484 Forfeited (200 20, 000 ) $ 4-0 . 60-88 Non vested stock awards outstanding at December 31.292—3—2024 32-39 ,166-700 S +-0
. 23-99 A summary of stock options outstanding at December 31, 2023-2024 by price range is as follows: SUMMARY OF STOCK OPTIONS OUTSTANDING
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable Range of Exercise Prices Number Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Term (in years) Weighted Average Exercise
Price Number Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Term (in years) Weighted Average Exercise Price Up to $ 1. 95-689-50 1 , H3-250, 252 9.3 $ 1. 15 513,
4339.1 5 1. 13 743145867885 1. H-51t0 $ 4. 50 207,345 7.5 5 1. 96093 206, 289 7. 5 $ +6-1 . 86-34%4975-8-4-53271H3;936— 93 Above 825 4. 63
Above-51 188, 276 6. 9 $ +6-7 . 28 188, 61-001 26;394-6. 3-9 § 23-7 . 27 69-23;963-6-1 -, 645, 873 907, 723 F- 24 204063482453 766-F-25-The fair values
of stock options granted were estimated at the date of grant using the Black- Scholes option pricing model. The Black- Scholes model was originally developed for
use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have different characteristics from Imunon’ s stock options. The model is also sensitive to changes in
assumptions, which can materially affect the fair value estimate. The Company used the following assumptions for determining the fair value of options granted
under the Black- Scholes option pricing model: SCHEDULE OF ASSUMPTIONS USED TO DETERMINE FAIR VALUE OF OPTIONS GRANTED Year Ended

December 31,2024 2023 2622-Risk- free interest rate 3. 72 % to 4. 50 % 3. 39 % to 4. 81 %+-F4%t0-3-97 Expected volatility 101. 7 % to 115. 8 % 100. 0 %
to 113. 6 %1H00-6-%te-H3-9-% Expected life (in years) 7. 5 to 10 —6-7. 5 to 10 =8-Expected dividend yield 0. 0 % 0. 0 % Expected volatilities utilized in the model
are based on historical volatility of the Company” s stock price. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , there was $ 0. 4-5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost
related to non- vested stock- based compensation arrangements. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted- average period of 1. 8-4 years. 43-12 .

WARRANTS E—ARN—GUT—M-H:ES?@N-E—HAB-I—H#TI]L Company accounts tet&l—aggfeg&te—ptﬁehase—pﬂee—tm warrants t-he—E-GEN—Aequ-ts-meﬁ—mehideé

payh vatue-ofthe-acq isittoneon i Was— as elther equlty- classnﬁed or hablllty- classnﬁed
mstruments baxtd on an assessment of the warrant’ s specific terms and apphcable authorltatlve guidance in FASB ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities
from Equity (“ ASC 480 ”), and ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“ ASC 815 ). The assessment considers whether the warrants are freestanding
financial instruments pursuant to ASC 480, meet the definition of a liability pursuant to ASC 480, and whether the warrants meet all of the requirements
for equity classification under ASC 815, including whether the warrants are indexed to the Company’ s risk—adjusted-own common stock, among other
conditions for equity classification. This asscssment , which requires the use of professional judgment, is conducted at the time of warrant issuance and as of
each milestone{16-%-subsequent quarterly period end date while the warrants are outstandlng For issued or modified warrants that meet all of the criteria
for equity classification, the warrants are required to be recorded as 67-%)-and-utilizing-a diseountrate-based p t of additional paid- in capital at the
time of issuance. For issued or modlﬁed warrants that do not meet all the criteria for equlty class1ﬁcatlon, the warrants are requlred to be recorded at their
initial fair value on the date estima § v 3 fi 1ssuance, and
each balance sheet date thereafter ftt y

a teation a ifte The Company haed-has analyzed the Warrants 1ssued in the July 2024 Offerlng and
determmed t-he—they option-are cons1dered to malee—the—payme&t—&peﬁ-aeh}evemeﬁt—be freestandmg lnstruments and do not exhlblt any ot the m-x-lesteﬁes

efﬁtheearn—eut—mﬁestene-ha{ﬂhﬁhhablhtles under ASC 480 The Warrants meet all of the requlrements for equlty class1ﬁcatlon under ASC 815 and

therefore are class1f ed as equlty a

%N—T—S—Followm" isa summaw of all warrant activity 1‘01 the two years ended Deumbu 31, 2-923—2024 SUMMARY OF WARRAI\T A( TIVITYV\’dl rams
Number of Warrants Issued Weighted Average Exercise Price Warrants outstanding at January 1, 2622-2023 +75-168 , 792-519 $ 26-19 . 96-78 Warrants issued
during 2024 5, 000, 000 2. 00 Warrants expired during 2022-2023 (78 , 273-459 ) § 48-37 . 36-29 Warrants outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2622-2023
+68-160 ., 519-060 $ 19-18 . 78-86 Warrants issued during 2024 5, 000, 000 2. 00 Warrants expired during 2023-2024 ( 85, 459-000 ) $ 3711 . 29-85 Warrants
outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2023-2024 +66-5, 155 , 060 $ 48-2 . 86-51 Aggregate intrinsic value of outstanding warrants at December 31, 2623
2024 $- Weighted average remaining contractual terms (years) 2-5 . 245-0 F- 25 13 . IMUNON EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS Imunon maintains a defined-
contribution plan under Section 401 (k) of the Code. The plan covers substantially all employees over the age of twenty- one. Ptulieipalin“ employees may defer a
portion of their pretax earnings, up to the IRS annual contribution limit. The Company makes a matching contribution up to a maximum of 3 % of an employee’ s
annual salary. The Company’ s total matching contributions for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-were $ 62, 000 and $ 142, 000 and-$H7
000-, respectively. +6-14 . LEASES Lawrenceville, New Jersey Lease In August 2023, the Company renewed its Lawrenceville office lease for a 24- month
agreement for 9, 850 square feet with monthly rent payments of approximately $ 22, 983 to $ 23, 394. Huntsville, Alabama Lease The following is a table of the
lease payments and maturity of the Company’ s operating lease liabilities as of December 31, 2023-2024 : SCHEDULE OF LEASE PAYMENTS AND MATURITY
OF OPERATING LEASE LIABILITIES For the year ending December 31, 2624-2025 $ 626;-323-2625-543, 009 2026 362, 976 2027 370, 236-235 2028 and
Fhereafter-thereafter 30, 963-904 Subtotal future lease payments 1,933-307 , 447124 Less imputed interest ( 368-167 , 733-831 ) Total lease liabilities § 1, 624-139
,FH4-293 Weighted average remaining life 3-2 . 5-7 years Weighted average discount rate 9. 98 % The discount rate used was the Company’ s incremental
borrowing rate, which is 9. 98 %, as the Company could not determine the rate implicit in the lease. For 2024, operating lease expense was $ 652, 166 and
cash paid for operating leases included in operating cash flows was $ 659 646 For 2023, opuatmu lease exmnse was §$ 646, () 33 and eash paid tol opu(mng
leases included in operating cash flows was $ 644, 593. a 3 A A epera op
eash-flows-was-$-60+-495-Amortization expense was appmmmdlely $ 478 000 and $472 ,—999—&-&1—5&%35— ()0() 101 lhe )Lal\ ended Decunbu gl 2024 and 2023
a-ﬂd%@%%— usped]\ ely. 15F-—2—'y'—l—7— (‘()MMITM]:NTS AND ( ()I\ NGENCIES 16 On-Oe 3 h




49-. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION On November 16, 2022 , the Company entered into a convertible note purchase agreement with Transomic Technologies,

Inc. (“ Transomic ”’) whereby the Company purchased $ 375, 000 of convertible notes secured by certain assets held by Transomic and warrants. Imunon purchased
preduetproducts from Transomic for research and development purposes — primarily delivery vectors for its vaccine program. As a result of this investment in
Transomic, Imunon’ s executive chairman, Mr. Michael Tardugno, was appointed to the Board of Directors of Transomic. The Company disclosed the notes

receivable as a related party transaction. In December 2023, Transomic filed a formal certificate of dissolution of the company resulting in a complete write = off of
the convertible note and related warrants. 26-17 . SUBSEQUENT EVENTS ©On-Mareh6-The Company has evaluated its subsequent events from December 31 ,
2024, Pr—Corinne-Le-Goff-through the date these condensed consolidated financial statements were issued , Pharnr-determining all subsequent events have
been disclosed . B-F- 26 EXHIBIT 4 . 7 DESCRIPTION OF THE REGISTRANT’ S SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 , informed-AS AMENDED DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK The following summary of the general terms
and provisions of the capital stock of Imunon, Inc. (“ Imunon ”, “ we ”, “ our ) does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and qualified in its
entirety by, reference to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (“ certificate of incorporation ) our Amended and Restated Bylaws (“
bylaws ) each of which is incorporated by reference as an exhibit to our most recent Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and applicable provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “ DGCL ”). Our common stock, par value $ 0. 01 per share is
registered pursuant to Section 12 (b) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 and trades on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol IMNN. The
summaries below do not purport to be complete statements of the relevant provisions of the certificate of incorporation, the bylaws or the DGCL.
Authorized Capital Stock Our authorized capital stock consists of 112, 500, 000 shares of common stock, par value $ 0. 01 per share and 100, 000 shares of
preferred stock, par value $ 0. 01 per share, all of which preferred stock is undesignated. Common Stock Holders of common stock are entitled to one vote
for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders and do not have cumulative voting rights. Subject to any preferential rights
of any outstanding preferred stock, holders of common stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends, if any, as may be declared from time to time by
our board of directors out of funds legally available therefor. In the event of a dissolution, liquidation or winding- up of the Company, holders of common
stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities and any preferential rights of any outstanding preferred stock. Holders
of common stock have no preemptive or conversion rights or other subscription rights. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to
our common stock. All outstanding shares of common stock are fully paid and non- assessable. The rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of
common stock are subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of shares of any series of preferred stock which may be designated
and issued in the future. Our Common Stock is listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ IMNN. ” Transfer Agent and Registrar The
transfer agent and registrar for our Common Stock is Equiniti Trust Company, LLC. Equiniti Trust Company, LLC is located at 6201 15th Avenue,
Brooklyn, NY 11219. Their telephone number is (888) 999- 0032. Preferred Stock Undesignated Preferred Stock Pursuant to our certificate of
incorporation, our board of directors has the authority, without further action by the stockholders (unless such stockholder action is required by applicable
law or NASDAQ rules), to designate and issue shares of preferred stock in one or more series, to establish from time to time the number of shares to be
included in each such series, to fix the designations, powers (including voting), privileges, preferences and relative participating, optional or other rights, if
any, of the shares of each such series and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof and to increase or decrease the number of shares of any such
series, but not below the number of shares of such series the-then outstanding. We will fix the designations, powers (including voting), privileges,
preferences and relative participating, optional or other rights, if any, of the preferred stock of each series, as well as the qualifications, limitations or
restrictions thereof, in the certificate of designation relating to that series. The certificate of designation will describe the terms of the series of preferred
stock. This description will include: e the title and stated value; ® the number of shares we are offering; e the liquidation preference per share; e the
purchase price; o the dividend rate, period and payment date and method of calculation for dividends; ® whether dividends will be cumulative or non-
cumulative and, if cumulative, the date from which dividends will accumulate; ® the procedures for any auction or remarketing, if any; e the provisions for
a sinking fund, if any; e the provisions for redemption or repurchase, if applicable, and any restrictions on our ability to exercise those redemption and
repurchase rights; e any listing of the preferred stock on any securities exchange or market; e whether the preferred stock will be convertible into or
exchangeable for other securities and, if applicable, the conversion price, or how it will be calculated, and the conversion period; e voting rights, if any, of
the preferred stock; e preemptive rights, if any; e restrictions on transfer, sale or other assignment, if any; e liability as to further calls or to assessment by
the Company, if any; e a discussion of any material United States federal income tax considerations applicable to the preferred stock; e the relative
ranking and preferences of the preferred stock as to dividend rights and rights if we liquidate, dissolve or wind up our affairs; e any limitations on the
issuance of any class or series of preferred stock ranking senior to or on a parity with the series of preferred stock as to dividend rights and rights if we
liquidate, dissolve or wind up our affairs; and e any other specific terms, preferences, rights or limitations of, or restrictions on, the preferred stock. The
DGCL provides that the holders of preferred stock will have the right to vote separately as a class or, in some cases, as a series on an amendment to our
certificate of incorporation if the amendment would change the par value or, unless our certificate of incorporation provides otherwise, the number of
authorized shares of the class or the powers, preferences or special rights of the class or series so as to adversely affect the class or series, as the case may be.
This right is in addition to any voting rights that may be provided in the applicable certificate of designation. Our board of directors may authorize the
issuance of preferred stock with voting or conversion rights that could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of our ¢ stock
or other securities. Preferred stock could be issued quickly with terms designed to delay or prevent a change in control of our Company or make removal of
management more difficult. Additionally, the issuance of preferred stock may have the effect of decreasing the market price of our common stock. Anti-
Takeover Considerations and Special Provisions of Our Certificate of Incorporation, Our Bylaws and the Delaware General Corporation Law Certificate
of Incorporation and Bylaws A number of provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws concern matters of corporate governance and the rights
of our stockholders. Provisions that grant our board of directors the ability to issue shares of preferred stock and to set the voting rights, preferences and
other terms thereof may discourage takeover attempts that are not first approved by our board of directors, including takeovers that may be considered by
some stockholders to be in their best interests, such as those attempts that might result in a premium over the market price for the shares held by
stockholders. Certain provisions could delay or impede the removal of incumbent directors even if such removal would be beneficial to our stockholders,
such as the classification of our board of directors and the lack of cumulative voting. Since our board of directors has the power to retain and discharge our
officers, these provisions could also make it more difficult for existing stockholders or another party to effect a change in management. These provisions
may have the effect of deterring hostile takeovers or delaying changes in our control or in our management. These provisions are intended to enhance the
likelihood of continued stability in the composition of our board of directors and in the policies they implement and to discourage certain types of
transactions that may involve an actual or threatened change of our control. These provisions are designed to reduce our vulnerability to an unsolicited
acquisition proposal. The provisions also are intended to discourage certain tactics that may be used in proxy fights. However, such provisions could have
the effect of discouraging others from making tender offers for our shares and, as a consequence, they also may inhibit fluctuations in the market price of
our shares that could result from actual or rumored takeover attempts. These provisions also could discourage or make more difficult a merger, tender
offer or proxy contest, even if they could be favorable to the interests of stockholders, and could potentially depress the market price of our common stock.
Our board of directors believes that these provisions are appropriate to protect our interests and the interests of our stockholders. Classification of Board ;
No Cumulative Voting. Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide for our board of directors to be divided into three classes, with staggered three-




year terms. Only one class of directors is elected at each annual meeting of our stockholders, with the other classes continuing for the remainder of their
respective three- year terms. Because our stockholders do not have cumulative voting rights, our stockholders representing a majority of the shares of
common stock outstanding will be able to elect all of our directors due to be elected at each annual meeting of our stockholders. Meetings of and Actions by
Stockholders. Our bylaws provide that annual meetings of our stockholders may take place at the time and place designated by our board of directors. A
special meeting of our stockholders may be called at any time by our board of directors, the chairman of our board of directors or the president. Our
bylaws provide that (i) our board of directors can fix separate record dates for determining stockholders entitled to receive notice of a stockholder meeting
and for determining stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting; (ii) we may hold a stockholder meeting by means of remote communications; (iii) any
stockholder seeking to have the stockholders authorize or take corporate action by written consent shall, by written notice to the secretary of the Company,
request that the board fix a record date and the board shall adopt a resolution fixing the record date in all events within ten calendar days after a request is
received; and (iv) a written consent of stockholders shall not be effective unless a written consent signed by a sufficient number of stockholders to take such
action is received by us within 60 calendar days of the earliest dated written consent received. Advance Notice Requirements for Stockholder Proposals
and Pireetors— Director Nominations. Our bylaws provide that stockholders seeking to bring business before an annual meeting of

pesitien-stockholders or to inate candidates for electlon as P-res:eleﬁt—dlrectors atﬁ:ﬁd~ an annual meeting ChiefExeeutive-Offieerof stockholders must
provide timely notice in writing th h . Pr—Ee-Geff To be timely, a stockholder ’ s resignation-was
notice must be delivered to, or mailed and recelved by, the secretary of the Company at our principal executive offices not later than the result-close of
business any-disagreement-with-the-Company-on the 90th calendar day aﬂy—mﬁte%rela-t-mg—te—ﬁs—epeﬁrﬁeﬂs— pe-heres—e%nor earller than the close of busmess on
the 120th calendar day in advance of the date specified in prae nduetingases $
MiehaeHH—TFardugno-the Company’ s Exeeutive-Chairman-proxy statement released to stockholders in connectlon w1th the prev10us year’ s annual meetmg of
stockholders. If the date of the annual meeting is more than 30 calendar days before or after such anniversary date . notice by the stockholder to be timely
must be so not earlier than the close of business on the 120th calendar day in advance of such date of annual meeting and not later than the close of business
on the later of the 90th calendar day in advance of such date of annual meeting or the tenth calendar day following the date on which public announcement
of the date of the meeting is made. In no event shall the public announcement of and- an ChiefExeeutive-Officerpriorto-Dr-adjournment or postponement of
an annual meeting commence a new time period (or extend any time period) for the giving of an advance notice by any stockholder . Ee-Geff-Any
stockholder that proposes director inations or other busi must be a stockholder of record at the time the advance notice is delivered by such
stockholder to us and entitled to vote at the meeting. Our bylaws also specify requirements as to the form and content of a stockholder’ s notice. These
provisions may preclude stockholders from bringing matters before an annual meeting of stockholders or from making nominations for the election of
directors at an annual meeting of stockholders. Unless otherwise required by law , any director nomination or other business shall not be made or
transacted if the stockholder (or a qualified representative of the stockholder) does not appear at the meeting to present the director nominee or other
proposed business. Filling of Board Vacancies. Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that the authorized size of our board of directors shall
be determined by the board by board resolution from time to time and that our board of directors has assamed-day—the exclusive power to —dayleadership
fill any vacancies and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors and the stockholders do not have the
power to fill such vacancies. Vacancies in our board of directors and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of
directors on our board of directors may be filled by a majority of the directors remaining in office, even though that number may be less than a quorum of
our board of directors, or by a sole remaining director. A director so elected to fill a vacancy shall serve for the remaining term of the predecessor the-- he
‘Company-or she replaced and until sueh-his or her successor is named-elected and has qualified, or until his or her earlier resignation, removal or death.
Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation. Our certificate of incorporation may be amended, altered, changed or repealed at a meeting of our
stockholders entitled to vote thereon by the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding stock entitled to vote thereon and a majority of the outstanding
stock of each class entitled to vote thereon as a class, in the manner prescribed by the DGCL. Amendment of the Bylaws. Our bylaws may be amended or
repealed, or new bylaws may be adopted, by either our board of directors or the affirmative vote of at least 66 2 / 3 percent of the voting power of our
outstanding shares of capital stock. Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law We are subject to Section 203 of the DGCL, which prohibits a
Delaware corporation from engaging in any business combination with any interested stockholder for a period of three years after the date that such
stockholder became and-- an interested stockholder, with the following exceptions: ® before such date, the board of directors of the corporation approved
either the business combination or the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder; ® upon completion of the
transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least 85 percent of the voting stock of
the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction began, excluding for purposes of determining the voting stock outstanding (but not the outstanding
voting stock owned by the interested stockholder) those shares owned (i) by persons who are directors and also officers and (ii) pursuant to employee stock
plans in which employee participants do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will eentinte-be tendered in a
tender or exchange offer; and e on or after such date, the business combination his— is rele-direeting-Company-strategy-approved by the board of directors
and authorized at an annual or special meeting of the stockholders, and not by written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least 66 2 / 3 percent of the
outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder . F~28-In general, Section 203 defines a business combination to include the
following: e any merger or consolidation involving the corporation and the interested stockholder; e any sale, lease, transfer, pledge or other disposition of
ten percent or more of the assets of the corporation to or with the interested stockholder; e subject to certain exceptions, any transaction that results in the
issuance or transfer by the corporation of any stock of the corporation to the interested stockholder; e any transaction involving the corporation that has
the effect of increasing the proportionate share of the stock or any class or series of the corporation beneficially owned by the interested stockholder; and e
the receipt by the interested stockholder of the benefit of any loss, advances, guarantees, pledges or other financial benefits by or through the corporation.
In general, Section 203 of the DGCL defines an “ interested stockholder ” as an entity or person who, together with the entity’ s or person’ s affiliates and
associates, beneficially owns, or is an affiliate of the corporation and within three years prior to the time of determination of interested stockholder status
did own, 15 percent or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation. A Delaware corporation may “ opt out ” of these provisions with an express
provision in its certificate of incorporation. We have not opted out of these provisions, which may as a result, discourage or prevent mergers or other
takeover or change of control attempts of us. Exhibit 21. | Subsidiaries of Imunon, Inc. Name Jurisdiction of Incorporation CLSN Laboratories, Inc.
DelawareExhibit 23. 1 CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the
Registration Statements of Imunon, Inc. on Form S- 1 (333- 221543, 333- 219414, 333- 217156, 333- 214353 and-, 333- 234603 and 333- 281834 ), Form S- 3 (Nos.
333- 174960, 333- 183286, 333- 198786, 333- 193936, 333- 205608, 333- 206789 and-, 333- 227236 , 333- 240271, 333- 249420 and 333- 279425 ) and on Form S-
8 (Nos. 33 139784, 333- 145680, 333- 183288, 333- 207864 and 333- 281833 ) of Imunon, Inc. of our report dated Mareh-February 27, 2024-2025 (which includes
an explanatory paragraph relating to the-Imunon, Inc. > s ability to continue as a going concern), relating to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, which appear in this Form 10- K. / s / WithumSmith Brown, PC East Brunswick, New Jersey Mareh27

February 26 , 2624-2025 Exhibit 31. 1 CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
RULES 13a- 14 (a) AND 15d- 14 (a) AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO § 302 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 I, Michael- H—Fardugno-Stacy
Lindborg, PhD , certify that: 1. I have reviewed this Annual Report of Imunon, Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of

a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condmon, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report; 4. The Registrant’ s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the Registrant
and have: (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared; (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures
and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based
on such evaluation; and (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant” s most



recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and5. The Registrant” s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’ s Board of Directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions): (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant” s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and (b) Any fraud, whether or not
material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting. Date: Mareh28
February 27 , 2624-2025 / s / Miehael-H-Stacy R . Fardugno-Miehael-H-Lindborg, Ph . Fardugne-Chairman-ofthe BoardExhibitD. Stacy R. Lindborg, Ph. D.
President and Chief Executive OfficerExhibit 31. 2 CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO I, David Gaiero Jeffres-W-
Chureh, certify that: (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared; (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’ s disclosure controls
and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and5. The Registrant’ s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most
recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’ s dudnms and the audit committee of the Registrant’ s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions): Date: Mareh-28-February 27 , 2624-2025 / s / David Gaiero David Gaiero Jeffrey-W-—ChurehJeffrey-W-—Chureh-Exeeutive
VieePresident-and-Chicf Financial OfficerExhibit 32. 1 PURSUANT TO 18 UNITFD STATES CODE § 1350 § 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Imunon, Inc. (the “ Company ) for the year ended December ?l 2-923—2024 , as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on or about Mareh28-February 27 , 2024-2025 (the “ Report 7). I, Mehael—H—"F&rdugﬁe—Stacy Lindborg, PhD , President and Chief Lxccutl\
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350, as adopted pul\u'ml to § 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge: 1. The
Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Suunms Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and 2. The information conmmcd in the
Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. This certification accompanies each Report pursuant
to § 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for
purposes of § 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. A signed original of this written statement required by § 906 has been provided to the
Company and will be retained by the Compdnv and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. Exhibit 32. 2 In connection with
the Annual Report of Imunon, Inc. (the “ Company ) for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or
about February 27 Mareh-Date: Mareh28-, %92-4—2025 (the “ Report 7), I, David Gaiero Jeffrey-W—Chureh-, Exeeutive-VieePresident-and-Chicl Financial Officer
of the C ompam culliv pulsuam to 18 U. § C. § 1350, as 1d0plgd pul:uanl to § 906 of th. Sarbanes- ()xlw Act of 70()2. that, to my knm\ln,dg;t. E—)eh-rb-rt—hﬁuﬂeﬂ-
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